
 

 
 
 506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                                   PHONE: 352 360-6727                                                                            
 FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                               FAX: 352 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE  

JUNE 7, 2022 
10:00AM 

      
I. MEETING START TIME:  

 
II. MEMBERS PRESENT:   

 
III.      MEETING NOTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Meeting minutes from April 5, 2022 included for 

review/comment. 
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: NONE 
 

 NEW BUSINESS:  
 

A.  Timbertop Lane:  Planned Development/ (PUD Amendment) and Comp Plan Amendment 
(Alternate Key: 1287715) 
 
A Planned Development, Preliminary Plan, Comp Plan Amendment and Rezoning application was   
submitted by Tara Tedrow of Lowndes Law on behalf of the owner, Stephanie Bailey Bouis and Patricia 
Bouis Thompson. The proposed development consists of approximately 24.52 +  acres of commercial 
uses and 44.03 + acres of a total of  486 units representing  288 garden apartments and 198 townhomes.   
The proposed maximum height is 4 stories (approximately 60’). The existing PUD,  known as Live Oak 
Center,  allowed for 120 units (townhomes/apartments – 10 acres), 300,000 (30 acres) SF of 
commercial, and 200,000 (20 acres) SF of office with a maximum building height of 45 feet. The current  
 

  TRC COFP Members:    TRC Members:     
  City Manager Gary La Venia, Chairman  City of Leesburg Utilities 
  Police Chief Eric Luce, Vice Chair   Lake County School Board  
  City Attorney      Lake County Public Works Department 
  Building Official      Lake County Economic Development 
  Community Development Director 
  Code Enforcement Officer   
  Engineer - Halff 
  Fire Chief  
  Fire Inspector                                                     
  Land Planner LPG                                       
  Public Works Director                         
 
 
 
 

 



 
TRC Meeting April 5, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
 
future land use designation is Mixed Community; development proposing future land use designation of 
General Mixed Use.  
 
B.  Reserve at Spring Lake Cove – Major Site Plan, PUD Amendment, Rezoning, ROW/Plat 
Vacate  (Alternate Keys: 1287251, 1287600, 1504333, 1504341, 1504350, 1504368, 2669306, 
3038550, 3801592, 3823815, 3823816, 3839947) 

 
The subject site consists of 35.99 +/- acres and a portion of the site borders Zephyr Lake. The subject 
site’s existing future land use is Multi-Family High Density (maximum of 15 units/acre). The applicant 
is seeking a rezoning to Residential PUD for a 128 unit apartment complex. The proposed gross density 
is 3.2 units/acre. The apartment layout consists of 30 buildings some of which are 2-story with units 
ranging from 2 units to 7 units per building. It should be noted that the subject site is an extension of the 
existing Spring Lake Cove Apartments located to the east. The recreation amenities provided include a 
dog park, trails, 20’ x 20’ pavilion with 4 picnic tables and 2 grills, and lake overlook sitting area with 2 
grills. It is the applicant’s intent to also utilize the recreational amenities at Spring Lake Cove 
apartments which includes playground equipment. In addition, the applicant is seeking Preliminary Plan 
approval for the rezoning process. The applicant is also requesting a variable buffer width adjacent to 
the cul-de-sac located within the southwestern property boundary from 25’ to 10’ and to allow a 10’ 
buffer adjacent to a small portion of the stormwater pond. 
 
A PUD MDA amendment has concurrently been submitted to city attorney for review/comments and 
subsequent submittal for city approval.  The applicant is requesting both multi-family and single family 
use options for a .  The multi-family option is part of the request for 128 apartments; the single family 
residence option is requested to be added to the MDA amendment to allow for 95 single family homes 
(with typical 65’ lots).  Due to shifts in the housing market, the owner/applicant wishes to amend the 
language in the Master Development Agreement to allow greater flexibility with permitted uses to 
include the aforementioned.   
 

  BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS:    
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
 

 This section is reserved for members of the public to bring up matters of concern or opportunities for 
praise.  Note:  Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114 and the City of Fruitland Park’s Public Participation Policy 
adopted by Resolution 2013-023, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be 
heard on propositions before the Planning and Zoning Board.  Pursuant to Resolution 2013-023, public 
comments are limited to three minutes. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT:   



 

 
 
 506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                                   PHONE: 352 360-6727                                                                            
 FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                               FAX: 352 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING NOTES 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE  

APRIL 5, 2022 
10:00AM 

      
I. MEETING START TIME: 10:00AM 

 
II. MEMBERS PRESENT:  All members present except Police Chief, Building Official, Code 

Enforcement, Fire Chief/Inspector;  City of Leesburg Utilities and Lake County School Board/Public 
Works Department and Lake County Economic Development.  Also present were  Angel Rivera, via 
teleconference, applicant for Myrtle Lake Breezes and Crystal Lake Vista; Jimmy Crawford, Tara 
Tedrow on behalf of Lake Saunders.  

 
III.      MEETING NOTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Meeting minutes from February 1, 2022 included 

for review/comment. 
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS: NONE 
 

 NEW BUSINESS:  
 

A. Lake Myrtle Breezes Amendment to Annexation Agreement (Alternate Key: 3845274) 
 

Introduction of application provided by LPG Michael Rankin of the proposed Annexation Agreement 
Amendment submitted by Angel Rivera of A&B Engineering Consultants, PA on behalf of the owner, 
Eric Coe (Developer). The annexation agreement was approved on June 10, 2004.  Per  The annexation  
 
 

  TRC COFP Members:    TRC Members:     
  City Manager Gary La Venia, Chairman  City of Leesburg Utilities 
  Police Chief Eric Luce, Vice Chair   Lake County School Board  
  City Attorney      Lake County Public Works Department 
  Building Official      Lake County Economic Development 
  Community Development Director 
  Code Enforcement Officer   
  Engineer - Halff 
  Fire Chief  
  Fire Inspector                                                     
  Land Planner LPG                                       
  Public Works Director                         
 
 
 
 

 



 
TRC Meeting Notes April 5, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
 
amendment is requested to remove the sidewalk requirements both within the Lake Myrtle Breezes  
subdivision and along Myrtle Lake Road from the subdivision entrance to the corner of County Road 
468.  City attorney is in concurrence that the amendment would require a sidewalk to be constructed 
along the subdivision frontage within Tract A (identified by the above referenced alternate key.  Tract A 
is approximately 658.7 linear feet and has been dedicated to the City of Fruitland park for right-of-way 
purposes.  
 
No recognized issue with moving forward with the aforementioned request.  Application to be scheduled 
for P&Z on April 21, 2022 at 6:00 pm.  Staff to send follow-up email to applicant to confirm same. 
 
B.  Crystal Lake Vista - Annexation, Comp Plan Amendment &PUD Application (Alternate Key: 
1288606) 
 
Introduction of application provided by LPG Michael Rankin Annexation for  Large Scale 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment (LSCPA) and Planned Unit Development applications submitted by 
Angel Rivera of A&B Engineering Consultants, PA on behalf of the owner, Crystal Lake Land 
Holdings, LLC.  The applicant is requesting annexation to receive city services and develop a proposed 
single family residential subdivision.  The proposed future land use is a decrease in density and the 
proposed rezoning to PUD is consistent with the city’s LDRs and Comprehensive Plan. The subject 
property is currently zoned R-3 in Lake County and the proposed city zoning is PUD (Minimum lot size 
of 8,000 sf with central water and central sewer).  Staff/LPG recommends approval.  
 
Per PWD Dicus, water is available however, sewer is not available.  Halff’s Hugo Cabrera stated that 
clarification of  road width of 24’ should be provided.  Per discussion with applicant,  City of Fruitland 
Park will require a 24’ road with and will need modification on the applicable submittal documentation. 
 
Application will follow same timeline as the aforementioned application with P&Z to be scheduled on 
April 21, 2022 at 6:00pm.  
 
 
C.  Lake Saunders Groves PUD Amendment (Alternate Keys: 1284490, 1284503, 1284511, 
1284805, 1284821, 1771617, 1771625, and 3883988) 
 
CDD Dwayne Williams introduced PUD amendment request submitted by Jimmy Crawford, Esq on 
behalf of Lake Saunders Groves Land, LLP.  The applicant is requesting an amendment to the existing 
PUD (Ordinance 2018-043) and associated Development Agreement to reduce the density from 542 
units to 420 units, eliminate the potential for multi-family apartments, allow 50’and 60’ lots, allow 20’ 
to 22’ townhome lots;  reduce phasing from five (5) to two (2), remove language regarding potential 
road connection to US 441;  allow for a pioneer agreement for utility extensions, and allow temporary 
irrigation wells until City reuse is available.  
 
CDD Williams stated that alignment with county and MPO suggested for internal road network for the 
northern part of the city’s boundaries.  Staff/LPG recommends approval.  City attorney has provided 
MDA amendment.  Hugo Cabrera requested that Halff be excused from discussion/recommendations as 
they are the engineering representative for this development. 
 



 
Jimmy Crawford requested procedure clarification on whether this action entails a PUD or MDA 
amendment.  With such substantial changes, city attorney stated that this would involve both PUD and 
MDA amendment.  Further discussion ensued regarding school concurrency and water/sewer hookup.   
 
Application will be scheduled for P&Z on April 21, 2022.  
 

  BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS:    
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
 

 This section is reserved for members of the public to bring up matters of concern or opportunities for 
praise.  Note:  Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114 and the City of Fruitland Park’s Public Participation Policy 
adopted by Resolution 2013-023, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be 
heard on propositions before the Planning and Zoning Board.  Pursuant to Resolution 2013-023, public 
comments are limited to three minutes. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT:   



TARA L. TEDROW 

tara.tedrow@lowndes-law.com 
215 North Eola Drive, Orlando, Florida 32801-2028 

T: (407) 418-6361 |  F: 407-843-4444 
MAIN NUMBER: 407-843-4600  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reed, P.A. lowndes-law.com 
 
0038773\193462\11960916v1 

April 22, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS 
City of Fruitland Park Planning Department 
c/o Sharon Williams 
506 West Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, FL  34731 

VIA EMAIL  sherie@lpgurp.com 
LPG Urban & Regional Planners, Inc. 
c/o Sherie Lindh 
1162 Camp Avenue 
Mount Dora, FL  32757 
 

 

Re: Resubmittal to City of Fruitland and LPG Urban & Regional Planners, Inc./Large 
Scale Comp Plan Amendment and Rezoning/ Parcel ID 05-19-24-0003-000-02000 
(the “Subject Property”) 

To Whom it May Concern: 

Enclosed is a revised application package including a revised plan and support documents for a Large 
Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Rezoning application in response to comments dated 
February 2, 2022, for development of the above referenced Subject Property.  Attachments are as 
follows: 

1. Staff report response letter  

2. Revised application 

3. Updated traffic memo 

4. Redline of the DA 

5. Revised narrative justification statement 

6. Updated concept plans 

7. Florida Master Site File sign off 

 

 



City of Fruitland Park Planning Department 
April 22, 2022 
Page 2 
 

0038773\193462\11960916v1 

 
We appreciate your review documentation and processing of this request.  If you have any questions, 
comments or need additional information, please feel free to contact us at your earliest convenience. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 

        
 
       Tara L. Tedrow 
 
TLT/lak 
Enclosures 



TARA L. TEDROW 

tara.tedrow@lowndes-law.com 
215 North Eola Drive, Orlando, Florida 32801-2028 

T: (407) 418-6361 |  F: 407-843-4444 
MAIN NUMBER: 407-843-4600  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reed, P.A. lowndes-law.com 
 
0038773\193462\11960080v1 

April 22, 2022 
 
VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS 
City of Fruitland Park Planning Department 
c/o Sharon Williams 
506 West Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, FL  34731 

VIA EMAIL  sherie@lpgurp.com 
LPG Urban & Regional Planners, Inc. 
c/o Sherie Lindh 
1162 Camp Avenue 
Mount Dora, FL  32757 
 
 

 

Re: Response to City of Fruitland Park Staff Report by LPG Urban & Regional 
Planners, Inc./Large Scale Comp Plan Amendment and Rezoning/ Parcel ID 05-
19-24-0003-000-02000 (the “Subject Property”) 

To Whom it May Concern: 

This letter shall serve as a response to the following staff comments dated February 2, 2022, provided 
with regards to the application for development of the above referenced Subject Property. 

COMMENT: The application indicates that there is no existing future land use on the subject site; 
however, that is in error. The site is designated as Mixed Community (6 units/acre) on the adopted 
future land use map. Please revise application. 

RESPONSE:  A revised application indicating the correct requested FLU designation is included with this 
resubmittal.  

COMMENT: Please provide the Florida Master Site File Sign Off 

RESPONSE:  Attached. 

COMMENT: The traffic impact analysis submitted does address the proposed rezoning; however, the 
unit count within the analysis indicates 786 multi-family units whereas the plan submitted indicates 
288 multi-family units and 198 townhomes for a total of 486 units. No analysis was submitted to 
address the proposed comprehensive plan amendment which is an amendment from Mixed 
Community (6 units/acre) to General Mixed Use (12 units/acre). Please revise the traffic analysis to 
be consistent with the conceptual plan and submit traffic impact analysis addressing the proposed 
amendment. 



City of Fruitland Park Planning Department 
April 22, 2022 
Page 2 
 

0038773\193462\11960080v1 

RESPONSE:  A revised narrative justification statement and traffic analysis (dated April 4, 2022), as 
requested, are included with this resubmittal.  

COMMENT: Please provide a strike through and red-lined format of the proposed revisions to the 
Amended Master Development Agreement. Also, please clarify the type of residential uses you are 
seeking. The plan submitted indicates multi-family and townhome units; however, the MDA includes 
single family detached and duplex units. If it is the applicant's intent to allow for single family 
detached and duplex units, a conceptual plan as Option B must also be submitted. 

RESPONSE:  A redline of the DA is included with this resubmittal and indicates the total number of 
residential unit types being requested. 

COMMENT: The submitted MDA indicates a maximum height of 70 feet; however, the plan 
submitted indicates 4 stories. Please be advised that heights above 35' may require proportionate 
fair share mitigation for fire apparatus. 

RESPONSE:  A redline of the DA is included with this resubmittal and indicates the total number of 
residential unit types being requested. 

Conceptual Plan  

COMMENT: The application submitted indicates preliminary plan review; however, the plan 
submitted does not meet the minimum requirements of Chapter 154, Section 154.030,10,G,ii. 

RESPONSE: The plan has been updated to meet the minimum requirement of Chapter 154, Section 
154.030,10,G,ii. 

COMMENT: If it is the applicant's intent to submit a conceptual plan which is the minimum 
requirement for a PUD, the plan needs to meet the minimum requirements of Chapter 154, Section 
154.030,10,G,i. The plan submitted does not meet these criteria. 

RESPONSE:  The plan has been updated to meet the minimum requirement of Chapter 154, Section 
154.030,10,G,i and ii. 

COMMENT: Please be advised that a minimum 25' buffer will be required along CR 466A pursuant to 
Chapter 154, Section 154.070. Please refer to Chapter 164, Section 164.030(b) regarding typical 
buffer standards to adjacent properties. The plan does not clearly indicate the buffer areas, or 
widths, or proposed landscaping within such buffers. 



City of Fruitland Park Planning Department 
April 22, 2022 
Page 3 
 

0038773\193462\11960080v1 

RESPONSE: A minimum 25’ buffer along CR 466A has been added and all buffers along adjacent 
properties have been updated per Chapter 164, Section 164.030(b). 

COMMENT: The proposed development plan submitted does not designate the wetland areas as 
indicated in the environmental assessment, required upland buffer adjacent to the wetland or 
minimum setback from the wetland pursuant to Chapter 165. 

RESPONSE: The wetland area has been indicated on the plans and a 25’ buffer has been added. 

COMMENT: Review of available mapping online indicates that a portion of the site is within the 100-
year floodplain pursuant to FEMA 2012 Flood Map. The development plan submitted does not 
designate the 100-year flood line and appears to indicate that development is proposed within the 
floodplain. 

RESPONSE:  The 100-year line per FEMA maps has been added to the plan. 

COMMENT: Please be advised that the development must meet the transportation and parking 
standards within Chapter 162 including bicycle parking. If any variances are requested from these 
standards it must be noted within the application. 

RESPONSE:  A note has been added that the plan will meet the standards within Chapter 162. 

COMMENT: The project at build out is anticipated to have a population of 1,176 residents (2.42 pph x 
486 units). Chapter 154 requires a minimum of 25% of common open space of which portions should 
be suitably improved to meet the recreational needs of the community. The plan shows clubhouses; 
however, other recreational amenities (i.e. playground, grills, picnic tables, etc.) are not provided 
nor how the 25% of common open space is provided. 

RESPONSE:  Per Section 154.030, 11,A,ii Mixed Use PUD the minimum Parks & Open Space is 20%. 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

COMMENT: The applicant submitted justification for the proposed amendment; however, an 
analysis of the existing land use of Mixed Community (6 units/acre) compared to the proposed land 
use of General Mixed Use (12 units/acre) will need to be conducted. Any proposed amendment has 
to compare the maximum development potential of the existing land use and proposed future land 
use as it relates to public facilities (i.e. roads, water, sewer, solid waste, schools). The submittal is 
lacking this data. 

RESPONSE:  A revised narrative justification statement is included with this resubmittal.  



City of Fruitland Park Planning Department 
April 22, 2022 
Page 4 
 

0038773\193462\11960080v1 

 

Environmental Assessment 

COMMENT: The assessment indicates the presence of wetlands, potential presence of gopher 
tortoises and the site is within the sand skink consultation area. Prior to development, a relocation 
permit will need to be secured and a sand skink survey or exemption will need to be secured. Should 
sand skinks occupy the site and habitat set aside is not an option, mitigation will be required. 

RESPONSE:  Noted.  

Recommendation 

COMMENT: Please revise application, plan and support documents as outlined above. 

RESPONSE: All requested information and supporting documents have been included with this 
resubmittal. 

Very truly yours, 

Tara L. Tedrow 
TLT/lak 
 



4/12/22

Tara L. Tedrow

X

smithka
Typewritten Text
Tara Tedrow

smithka
Typewritten Text
215 N. Eola Drive, Orlando, FL 32801

smithka
Typewritten Text
407-418-6361

smithka
Typewritten Text
Tara.Tedrow@lowndes-law.com

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text
Stephanie Bailey Bouis and Patricia Bouis Thompson

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text
31217 Overbrook Street, Mount Plymouth, FL  32776

smithka
Typewritten Text
The parcel has not been assigned an address but is located on Timbertop Lane.

smithka
Typewritten Text
05-19-24-0003-000-02000

smithka
Typewritten Text
Community Mixed Use

smithka
Typewritten Text
General Mixed Use

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text
PUD

smithka
Typewritten Text
MUPUD

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text
Vacate land

smithka
Typewritten Text
24.52 acres of commercial/retail use, 288 garden apartments and 

smithka
Typewritten Text
Yes

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text
x

smithka
Typewritten Text
Timbertop Lane

smithka
Typewritten Text
Timbertop Lane and Miller Blvd.

smithka
Typewritten Text
*Please see attached justification statement.

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text
Kimley-Horn

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text
189 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1000, Orlando, FL  32801

smithka
Typewritten Text

smithka
Typewritten Text
407-427-1610

smithka
Typewritten Text
Brent.Lenzen@kimley-horn.com

smithka
Typewritten Text
Timbertop Lane

smithka
Typewritten Text

kornla
TLT signature

smithka
Typewritten Text
198 townhomes.

smithka
Typewritten Text

dwilliams
Highlight

dwilliams
Highlight



Development Application Checklist 

The Following are Reguired for ALL Develogment Agglications: 

D Legal Description (Word file req'd) D Current Deed D Aerial Photo 

D Property Appraiser Information D Electronic Copy of Application D Location Map 

Pre-application conferences are strongly encouraged. Submit lWO CDs with ALL documents in pdf; those that are generated as CAD files should 
be submitted in pdf and dwg formats.. Legal Descriptions should also come with a MS Word file of the legal description. Most maps are accessible 
through www.lakec.ountyfl.gov/maps/. Note: All maps are required to depict adjacent properties at a minimum. 

Failure to erovide adeguate maes mal delal the aeellcation erocess. 

Other Reguired Anal�ses and Mags: 

Small Scale Com�rehensive Plan Amendment A��lications: 

D Justification for Amendment D Environmental Constraints Map D Requested FLU Map 

Large Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment Applications: 

Maps: D Environmental Constraints D Soils � Requested FLUM Designation _] Requested Zoning Map Designation 

Analyses: D Environmental Assessment D Utility Availability Analysis D Urban Sprawl Analysis D School Impact Analysis 

D Traffic Impact Analysis D Consistency with the Comp Plan D Florida Master Site File sign-off or Archaeological Survey 

Rezoning Agplications: _] Requested Zoning Map ..J Justification for Rezoning 

Planned Development Apglications: 

Maps/Plans: D Conceptual Plan as Described in LDRs Chapter 154, 0 Environmental Constraints 
Section 154.030, 1 0,G 

Anal:tses: D Environmental Assessment D Traffic Impact Analysis D Preliminary Concurrency Analysis 

Variance Applications: D Justification for Variance 

Sgecial Excegtion Use Applications: D Justification for Special Exception Use 

0 Site Sketch D List of Special Requirements as Described in LDRs, Chapter 155 

Conditional Use Permit Applications: D Proposed List of Conditions and Safeguards 

D Site Plan as Described in LDRs, Chapter 155 D Written Statement as Described in LDRs, Chapter 155 

Subdivision Agplications: D As Described in LDRs, Chapter 157 
(Preliminary Plan, Improvement Plan and Final Plat) 

Minor Subdivision Applications: D As Described in LDRs, Chapter 157 

Site Plan Applications: D As Described in LDRs, Chapter 160 

X

X                   X

X        X             X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
N/A

smithka
Typewritten Text
 X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

smithka
Typewritten Text
X

dwilliams
Highlight

dwilliams
Highlight

dwilliams
Highlight

dwilliams
Highlight

dwilliams
Highlight







Timbertop Lane

Lake County P roperty Appraiser
Lake BCC

pointLayer

Override 1

polygonLayer
Override 1
Tax Parcels Alternate Key
Tax Parcels

Surrounding Counties
April 20, 2022

0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.15 0.30.075 km

1:5,000

Lake County Board of County Commissioners
 



PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that I am a registered professional engineer in the State of Florida, practicing with 
VHB/Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc., a corporation authorized to operate as a Professional Engineering 
business by the State of Florida Department of Professional Regulation, Board of Professional Engineers, 
and that I have approved the Timbertop Property Traffic Assessment Memorandum in Fruitland Park, 
Florida, dated April 4, 20211. 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT:  Timbertop Property - Intram 

LOCATION:  Fruitland Park, Florida 

CLIENT:  Intram Investments, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I acknowledge that the procedures and references used to develop the results contained in this report are 
standard to the professional practice of transportation engineering as applied through professional judgment 
and experience. 
 

SIGNATURE:  

NAME: Joedel A Zaballero 
P.E. 
NUMBER: 55517 

DATE: April 4, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED 
AND THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED ON ANY ELECTRONIC COPIES. 



Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
225 E. Robinson Street, Suite 300, Landmark Center Two, Orlando, Florida 32801 
P  407.839.4006 F  407.839.4008 www.vhb.com 

To: City of Fruitland Park Date: April 4, 2022 
506 W. Berckman St  
Fruitland Park, FL 34731 Project #: 63887.00 

From: Joedel Zaballero, PE, PTOE Re: Timbertop Property - Intram 
Rezoning Application – Traffic Assessment 

This analysis was prepared in support of the proposed comprehensive plan amendment and rezoning applications 
associated with one parcel totaling approximately 70+/- acres. The currently approved zoning designation for the 
property is Planned Development (PD) which allows for up to 300,000 square feet of retail, 200,000 square feet of 
office and 120 Multifamily dwelling units (low-rise).  The proposed zoning designation for the subject parcel is PD 
comprising of a maximum of 300,000 square feet of retail, 50,000 square feet office and 288 multifamily dwelling units 
(mid-rise) and 198 townhomes. The subject parcel is generally located on the north side of CR 466A and east of 
Timbertop Lane in Fruitland Park, Florida.  Figure 1 shows the project location.  Future Access is proposed along CR 
466 as well as Timbertop Lane.  
The following traffic analysis is in support of the proposed zoning designation of the subject parcel.  

Trip Generation 
A comparative trip generation analysis was prepared to determine if the land use zoning will result in an increase or 
decrease in external trips using the transportation network. The trip generation of the current and the proposed 
zoning designations was calculated using information published in the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition, as 
summarized in Table 1.  In addition, the mixed-use nature of the land uses both in the current and proposed PD is 
anticipated to allow for internal capture and passerby capture opportunities. Daily internal capture for each phase was 
calculated for each phase year based on the ITE Trip Generation Handbook, Figure 7.3.  PM peak hour internal capture 
was calculated based on the NCHRP 684 Internal Trip Capture Estimation Tool developed by the Texas A&M 
Transportation Institute (Version 2013.1) and calculations are provided in Attachment A.  Pass by trips were limited to 
10% of existing traffic volumes.  
As shown in Table 1, the proposed PD land uses will result in a decrease of approximately -281 daily trips and -77 pm 
peak hour trips when compared to the current PD zoning. Table 1 also indicates an increase of 35 trips in PM peak 
hour for trips entering the site and a decrease of -112 trips exiting.  
The following capacity analysis is for roadways within a two-mile radius of the property. 



 

Su
m

te
r C

ou
nt

y
La

ke
 C

ou
nt

y
Su

m
te

r C
ou

nt
y

La
ke

 C
ou

nt
y

468

466A

44

441

441

Griffin Rd.Griffin Rd.

Lake Ella Rd.Lake Ella Rd.

Miller Blvd.Miller Blvd.

D
ix

ie
 A

ve
.

D
ix

ie
 A

ve
.

Ro
ok

s A
ve

.
Ro

ok
s A

ve
.

Ro
lli

ng
 A

cr
es

 R
d.

Ro
lli

ng
 A

cr
es

 R
d.

Ti
m

be
rt

op
 L

n.
Ti

m
be

rt
op

 L
n.

Th
om

as
 A

ve
.

Th
om

as
 A

ve
.

M
or

se
 B

lv
d.

M
or

se
 B

lv
d.

Morse Blvd.

Ti
m

be
rt

op
 L

n.
Ti

m
be

rt
op

 L
n.

Miller Blvd.466A

\\vhb\gbl\proj\Orlando\63887.00 Intram-Timbertop Prop\Graphics\FIGURES Base Map Source: Google Maps

 

Figure 1
Location Map
Timbertop Property

Project Location

2 Mile Radius
N

N.T.S.



City of Fruitland Park 
Ref:  63887.00 
April 4, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 
Table 1 - Trip Generation Comparison 

 

 

 

Existing Roadway Capacity Analysis – Year 2019 

Table 2 presents the existing conditions analysis for PM peak hour directional traffic. The traffic count data and 
roadway characteristics were obtained from the Lake County Congestion Management Process (CMP) Database (Year 
2019). The existing conditions analysis shows that all roadways are operating within the acceptable Level of Service 
(LOS).  

 

710 General Office 200,000 SF equation 2,078 equation 220 16% 35 185
820 Shopping Center 300,000 SF equation 12,690 equation 1,225 48% 588 637
220 Multi-Family (Low Rise) 120 DUs equation 866 equation 69 63% 43 26

15,634 1,514 666 848
1,454 164 81 83
1,578 138 69 69

12,602 1,212 516 696
710 General Office 50,000 SF equation 542 equation 59 16% 9 50
820 Shopping Center 300,000 SF equation 12,690 equation 1,225 48% 588 637
220 Multi-Family (Low Rise) 198 DUs equation 1,456 equation 108 63% 68 40
221 Multi-Family (Mid-Rise) 288 DUs equation 1,568 rate 127 61% 77 50

16,256 1,519 742 777
2,357 246 122 124
1,578 138 69 69

12,320 1,135 551 584
Net New External Trips -281 -77 35 -112

Source: Institute of Transportation (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition
NCHRP Report 684
ITE Trip Generation Handbook, 3rd Edition

PD 
(Proposed)

Total

Total New External Trips

 Total Trips
Internal Capture (9.03% / 10.8%)

Pass By Trips (limited to 10% of 2030 background traffic)
Total New External Trips

 Total Trips
Internal Capture 14.5% / 19.5%)

Pass By Trips (limited to 10% of 2030 background traffic)

% In Enter ExitDaily Trips
ITE 

Code Land Use Size

Daily Trips PM Peak Hr Trips

method 
used

PD 
(Current)

Zoning
method 

used



City of Fruitland Park 
ref:  63887.00 
April 4, 2022 
Page 4 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
225 E. Robinson Street, Suite 300, Landmark Center Two, Orlando, Florida 32801 
P  407.839.4006 F  407.839.4008 www.vhb.com  

Table 2 – Existing PM Peak Conditions Analysis - 2019 

Station Segment NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB
CR 25A

116 US 27/US 441 to CR 466A Lake Co 2LU Urban 30 7,541 361 346 D 530 169 184 Yes Yes
189 CR 466A to US 27/US 441 Lake Co 2LU Urban 30 4,780 194 255 D 530 336 275 Yes Yes

CR 446A
49 Morse Blvd to Lake Co Line Sumter Co 4LD Urban 45 19,532 845 920 D 1,900 1,055 980 Yes Yes
11 Sumter Co Line to Timbertop Ln Lake Co 4LD Urban 45 13,377 513 618 D 1,500 987 882 Yes Yes
11 Timbertop Ln to CR 468/Rose Ave Lake Co 2LU Urban 45 13,377 513 618 D 620 107 2 Yes Yes
171 CR 468/Rose Ave to US 27 Lake Co 4LD Urban 35 6,474 271 264 D 1,470 1,199 1,206 Yes Yes

CR 468
10 CR 466A to Pine Ridge Dairy Rd Lake Co 2LU Urban 35 3,637 126 162 D 530 404 368 Yes Yes
12 Pine Ridge Dairy Rd to Griffin Rd Lake Co 2LU Urban 35 6,169 276 291 D 680 404 389 Yes Yes

Lake Ella Rd
187 Sumter Co Line to Micro Racetrack Rd Lake Co 2LU Urban 35 10,360 100 41 D 530 430 489 Yes Yes
186 Micro Racetrack Rd to Rolling Acres Rd Lake Co 2LU Urban 35 10,360 99 34 D 530 431 496 Yes Yes
186 Rolling Acres Rd to US 27 Lake Co 2LU Urban 45 16,820 99 34 D 840 741 806 Yes Yes

Micro Racetrack Rd
188 Lake Ella Rd to CR 466A Lake Co 2LU Urban 35 9,401 362 460 D 1,190 828 730 Yes Yes

Rolling Acres Rd
201 CR 466 to Lake Ella Rd Lake Co 2LU Urban 45 7,929 320 384 D 1,070 750 686 Yes Yes

US 27/SR 25
110430 Lake Ella Rd to CR 466A/Miller Blvd Lake Co 6LD Urban 55 31,000 1,278 1,512 D 3,020 1,742 1,508 Yes Yes
110431 CR 466A/Miller Blvd to CR 460/MLK Blvd Lake Co 6LD Urban 45 38,500 1,662 1,616 D 3,020 1,358 1,404 Yes Yes
110109 CR 460/MLK Blvd to CR 466A/Lee Rd Lake Co 6LD Urban 45 50,250 2,061 1,932 D 3,020 959 1,088 Yes Yes
110109 CR 466A/Lee Rd to CR 44A/Griffin Rd Lake Co 6LD Urban 45 50,250 2,061 1,932 D 3,020 959 1,088 Yes Yes

Source: 2019 Lake County  and Sumter County Annual Traffic Counts 
2019 Lake County and Sumter County Congestion Managment Program (CMP) 
VHB, Inc.

CMP 
Source

Urban / 
Rural

2019 
AADT

Roadway Segment No. of      
Lanes

Available Capacity Meets Standard?LOS 
Std

2019 Volume

2019 Peak Hour Directional

LOS 
Capacity

Speed 
Limit



City of Fruitland Park 
ref:  63887.00 
April 4, 2022  
Page 5 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
225 E. Robinson Street, Suite 300, Landmark Center Two, Orlando, Florida 32801 
P  407.839.4006 F  407.839.4008 www.vhb.com  

Planned and Programmed Improvements 

Programmed improvements are those with funding commitments within the next five years.  According to the Florida 
Department of Transportation Adopted 2022-2026 Work Program, CR 466A from east of Timbertop Lane to Poinsettia 
Boulevard is funded for construction to widen from two to four-lanes in Fiscal Year 2023 (included in Attachment C) 
This improvement will be assumed as a four-lane roadway in the future roadway conditions analyses.  

Growth Projections for Lake County 

Although the BEBR Lake County medium population projections from 2019 to 2045 is 1.83%, a minimum growth rate 
of 2.0% was applied to the existing roadway segment volumes to project traffic volume in the short term (2026) and 
long term (2030) Fruitland Park horizon years.  Table 3 provide a summary of the BEBR data annual growth 
calculations 

Table 3 – BEBR Growth Calculations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Five-Year Analysis, Year 2026 

To estimate Year 2026 background roadway volumes for the analysis area, a conservative 2% annual growth was used 
to forecast 2026 volumes.  The Central Florida Regional Planning Model (CFRPM) travel demand model was used to 
determine the project traffic distribution including the proposed development program. The project trips for each 
segment were calculated based on the model distributions. The distribution of the project trips along the segments 
within the analysis area for Year 2026 is provided in Table 4.  Trip distribution from the CFRPM Model output can be 
found in Attachment D. 

Table 4 summarizes the roadway analysis completed for the five-year conditions for the PM peak hour period. The 
five-year analysis shows all roadway segments are projected to operate at an acceptable LOS.  

Long Term Analysis, Year 2030 

Table 5 summarizes the roadway analysis completed for long-term (Year 2030) conditions utilizing the project trip 
distribution from the five-year analysis. Year 2030 background volumes for the roadways within the study area of 
influence were obtained using 2% Annual Growth Rate. Under the 2030 condition analysis, all roadway segments are 
projected to operate at an acceptable LOS.

2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045

Low 347,800 376,000 399,700 417,200 429,500 438,400 1.04%

Medium 366,600 410,900 450,300 482,700 510,300 534,800 1.83%

High 384,400 440,400 496,700 546,800 593,400 638,000 2.64%
Source: BEBR Florida Population Estimates, Volume 53, Bulletin 186, January 2020

Notes: Lake 2019 Population = 357,247

Population

Projection Year
Annual 
Growth



City of Fruitland Park 
ref:  63887.00 
April 4, 2022  
Page 6 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
225 E. Robinson Street, Suite 300, Landmark Center Two, Orlando, Florida 32801 
P  407.839.4006 F  407.839.4008 www.vhb.com  

Table 4 – PM Peak Five-Year Conditions Analysis, Year 2026 

  

NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB
CR 25A

US 27/US 441 to CR 466A 2LU D 530 361 346 2.0% 412 394 118 136 Yes Yes 3.3% OUT 0 1 412 396 118 134 Yes Yes
CR 466A to US 27/US 441 2LU D 530 194 255 2.0% 221 291 309 239 Yes Yes 1.3% IN 0 0 222 291 308 239 Yes Yes

CR 446A
Morse Blvd to Lake Co Line 4LD D 1,900 845 920 2.0% 963 1,049 937 851 Yes Yes 40.9% IN 14 0 978 1,049 922 851 Yes Yes
Sumter Co Line to Timbertop Ln 4LD D 1,500 513 618 2.0% 585 705 915 795 Yes Yes 56.6% IN 20 0 605 705 895 795 Yes Yes
Timbertop Ln to CR 468/Rose Ave 4LD D 1,500 513 618 2.0% 585 705 915 795 Yes Yes 36.0% OUT 0 13 585 717 915 783 Yes Yes
CR 468/Rose Ave to US 27 4LD D 1,470 271 264 2.0% 309 301 1,161 1,169 Yes Yes 23.5% OUT 0 8 309 309 1,161 1,161 Yes Yes

CR 468
CR 466A to Pine Ridge Dairy Rd 2LU D 530 126 162 2.0% 144 185 386 345 Yes Yes 9.0% IN 3 0 147 185 383 345 Yes Yes
Pine Ridge Dairy Rd to Griffin Rd 2LU D 680 276 291 2.0% 315 332 365 348 Yes Yes 7.9% IN 3 0 317 332 363 348 Yes Yes

Lake Ella Rd
Sumter Co Line to Micro Racetrack Rd 2LU D 530 100 41 2.0% 114 47 416 483 Yes Yes 6.0% IN 2 0 116 47 414 483 Yes Yes
Micro Racetrack Rd to Rolling Acres Rd 2LU D 530 99 34 2.0% 113 39 417 491 Yes Yes 7.6% OUT 0 3 113 41 417 489 Yes Yes
Rolling Acres Rd to US 27 2LU D 840 99 34 2.0% 113 39 727 801 Yes Yes 0.0% OUT 0 0 113 39 727 801 Yes Yes

Micro Racetrack Rd
Lake Ella Rd to CR 466A 2LU D 1,190 362 460 2.0% 413 524 777 666 Yes Yes 13.6% OUT 0 5 413 529 777 661 Yes Yes

Rolling Acres Rd
CR 466 to Lake Ella Rd 2LU D 1,070 320 384 2.0% 365 438 705 632 Yes Yes 7.6% OUT 0 3 365 440 705 630 Yes Yes

US 27/SR 25
Lake Ella Rd to CR 466A/Miller Blvd 6LD D 3,020 1,278 1,512 2.0% 1,457 1,724 1,563 1,296 Yes Yes 7.9% OUT 0 3 1,457 1,726 1,563 1,294 Yes Yes
CR 466A/Miller Blvd to CR 460/MLK Blvd 6LD D 3,020 1,662 1,616 2.0% 1,895 1,842 1,125 1,178 Yes Yes 14.2% IN 5 0 1,900 1,842 1,120 1,178 Yes Yes
CR 460/MLK Blvd to CR 466A/Lee Rd 6LD D 3,020 2,061 1,932 2.0% 2,350 2,202 670 818 Yes Yes 12.2% IN 4 0 2,354 2,202 666 818 Yes Yes

Source: 2019 Lake County  and Sumter County Annual Traffic Counts 
2019 Lake County and Sumter County Congestion Managment Program (CMP) 
VHB, Inc.

Roadway  Segment
No. of 
Lanes LOS Std

PHPD 
Capacity

2019 PHPD Volumes Annual 
Growth Rate

PHPD Volume Available Capacity
Meets Standard 

without proj?

2026 Background Trips Project Trips 2026 Total Trips

 Distrib-
ution

Trips Total trips
Total Available 

Capacity
Meets Standard 

with Project?



City of Fruitland Park 
Ref:  63887.00 
April 4, 2022 
Page 7 
 
 
Table 5 – PM Peak Long Term Conditions Analysis, Year 2030 

 

NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB NB/ EB SB/ WB
CR 25A

US 27/US 441 to CR 466A 2LU D 530 361 346 2.0% 440 422 90 108 Yes Yes 3.3% OUT 0 1 440 423 90 107 Yes Yes
CR 466A to US 27/US 441 2LU D 530 194 255 2.0% 237 311 293 219 Yes Yes 1.3% IN 0 0 237 311 293 219 Yes Yes

CR 446A
Morse Blvd to Lake Co Line 4LD D 1,900 845 920 2.0% 1,031 1,122 869 778 Yes Yes 40.9% IN 14 0 1,045 1,122 855 778 Yes Yes
Sumter Co Line to Timbertop Ln 4LD D 1,500 513 618 2.0% 626 754 874 746 Yes Yes 56.6% IN 20 0 646 754 854 746 Yes Yes
Timbertop Ln to CR 468/Rose Ave 4LD D 1,500 513 618 2.0% 626 754 874 746 Yes Yes 36.0% OUT 0 13 626 767 874 733 Yes Yes
CR 468/Rose Ave to US 27 4LD D 1,470 271 264 2.0% 331 322 1,139 1,148 Yes Yes 23.5% OUT 0 8 331 330 1,139 1,140 Yes Yes

CR 468
CR 466A to Pine Ridge Dairy Rd 2LU D 530 126 162 2.0% 154 198 376 332 Yes Yes 9.0% IN 3 0 157 198 373 332 Yes Yes
Pine Ridge Dairy Rd to Griffin Rd 2LU D 680 276 291 2.0% 337 355 343 325 Yes Yes 7.9% IN 3 0 339 355 341 325 Yes Yes

Lake Ella Rd
Sumter Co Line to Micro Racetrack Rd 2LU D 530 100 41 2.0% 122 50 408 480 Yes Yes 6.0% IN 2 0 124 50 406 480 Yes Yes
Micro Racetrack Rd to Rolling Acres Rd 2LU D 530 99 34 2.0% 121 41 409 489 Yes Yes 7.6% OUT 0 3 121 44 409 486 Yes Yes
Rolling Acres Rd to US 27 2LU D 840 99 34 2.0% 121 41 719 799 Yes Yes 0.0% OUT 0 0 121 41 719 799 Yes Yes

Micro Racetrack Rd
Lake Ella Rd to CR 466A 2LU D 1,190 362 460 2.0% 442 561 748 629 Yes Yes 13.6% OUT 0 5 442 566 748 624 Yes Yes

Rolling Acres Rd
CR 466 to Lake Ella Rd 2LU D 1,070 320 384 2.0% 390 468 680 602 Yes Yes 7.6% OUT 0 3 390 471 680 599 Yes Yes

US 27/SR 25
Lake Ella Rd to CR 466A/Miller Blvd 6LD D 3,020 1,278 1,512 2.0% 1,559 1,845 1,461 1,175 Yes Yes 7.9% OUT 0 3 1,559 1,847 1,461 1,173 Yes Yes
CR 466A/Miller Blvd to CR 460/MLK Blvd 6LD D 3,020 1,662 1,616 2.0% 2,028 1,972 992 1,048 Yes Yes 14.2% IN 5 0 2,033 1,972 987 1,048 Yes Yes
CR 460/MLK Blvd to CR 466A/Lee Rd 6LD D 3,020 2,061 1,932 2.0% 2,514 2,357 506 663 Yes Yes 12.2% IN 4 0 2,519 2,357 501 663 Yes Yes

Source: 2019 Lake County  and Sumter County Annual Traffic Counts 
2019 Lake County and Sumter County Congestion Managment Program (CMP) 
VHB, Inc.

Trips

Project Trips

 Distrib-
ution

Total Available 
Capacity

Meets Standard 
with Project?Total trips

2030 Total Trips

Meets Standard 
without proj?Annual 

Growth Rate

2030 Background Trips

2019 PHPD Volumes PHPD Volume Available Capacity

Roadway  Segment
No. of 
Lanes LOS Std

PHPD 
Capacity



City of Fruitland Park 
ref:  63887.00 
April 4, 2022  
Page 8 
 

Engineers Scientists Planners Designers 
225 E. Robinson Street, Suite 300, Landmark Center Two, Orlando, Florida 32801 
P  407.839.4006 F  407.839.4008 www.vhb.com  

Conclusions and Recommendations 

It is evident from the above analysis that the proposed PD zoning will result in a decrease of -281 daily trips and -77 
pm peak hour trips when compared to the current PD zoning. In addition, a minor increase of +35 trips in PM peak 
hour for trips entering the site and a decrease of -112 trips exiting is anticipated with the proposed PD. 

The existing (2019) roadway capacity analysis which includes roadways within a two-mile radius of the subject 
property shows that all roadways are operating at an acceptable LOS.  

The future conditions analysis includes the four-lane widening of CR 466A from east of Timbertop Lane to Poinsettia 
Boulevard which is funded in the 2022-2027 FDOT’s Five-Year Work Program.  Both the Five-Year (Year 2026) and 
Long Term (Year 2030) PM peak hour directional conditions analysis shows that all studied roadways within a two-mile 
radius of the site will continue to operate at an acceptable LOS. 

Based on the analysis, the proposed CPA/PD zoning is projected to have minor traffic impacts on the roadway 
network and that all studied roadways will operate at an acceptable LOS with or without the proposed PD rezoning; 
therefore, no mitigation is warranted with the proposed CPA and Rezoning application. 

It should be noted that the project will be required to undergo further analysis through the transportation 
concurrency process as further development approval is pursued for the proposed development program.  Below is a 
summary of the trip potential for the conceptual development program for the site which is less than the proposed PD 
land use maximum development potential, and lower than the potential trip generation from the adopted PD land use 
maximum. 

Table 6 – Trip Potential Comparison 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A copy of the trip generation calculation for the conceptual development program is provided in Attachment E.  The 
daily trip generation based on the conceptual plan in comparison to the adopted estimate shows a reduction of 
approximately -3,274 daily trips and -484 PM Peak hour trips. 

 
Attachments:   Attachment A: Internal Capture Calculations 
  Attachment B: Lake and Sumter Counties CMPs  

Attachment C: Planned and Programmed Improvements  
Attachment D: CFRPM Model – Trip Distribution 
Attachment E: Trip Generation - Concept Development Program  

Total Enter Exit
PD (Adopted) 12,602 1,212 516 696

Concept 9,047 651 356 295
Net New External Trips -3,555 -561 -160 -401

PD (Proposed) 12,320 1,135 551 584
Concept 9,047 651 356 295

Net New External Trips -3,274 -484 -195 -289

Daily TripsDevelopment Scenarios

PM Peak Hour Trips



Retail

Total Internal External
Enter 6,345 394 5,951
Exit 6,345 299 6,046

Total 12,690 693 11,997
% 100% 5% 95%

9% 571

3% 190
4% 254

11% 698

15% 156
38% 165

22% 229 33% 143

Office Residential

0% 0 0% 0
Total Internal External Total Internal External

Enter 1,039 156 883 Enter 433 156 277
Exit 1,039 242 797 Exit 433 165 268

Total 2,078 398 1,680 2% 21 3% 13 Total 866 321 545
% 100% 19% 81% % 100% 37% 63%

Source:  VHB, Inc.
ITE Trip Generation Handbook, Figure 7.3

277

Exit to External

Demand

Balanced

13
Balanced

Size  

Demand

Demand

Demand

Demand

Demand

Demand

143
Balanced

0
Demand

Demand

Enter from External
883

797
Exit to External

Demand

Size  200.0 KSF GLA
710ITE LU Code  

Demand

Exit to External
6,046

5,951
Enter from External

Balanced

ITE LU Code  
Size  

Demand

Balanced

156
229

October 8, 2021

Attachment A:  Internal Capture Summary - Daily (Current PD)

268

ITE LU Code  210
120 DUs Enter from External

820
300.0 KSF GLA

165
Balanced



Retail

Total Internal External
Enter 6,345 631 5,714
Exit 6,345 731 5,614

Total 12,690 1,362 11,328
% 100% 11% 89%

9% 571

3% 190
4% 254

11% 698

15% 41
38% 795

22% 60 33% 690

Office Residential

0% 0 0% 0
Total Internal External Total Internal External

Enter 271 41 230 Enter 2,092 695 1,397
Exit 271 65 206 Exit 2,092 571 1,521

Total 542 106 436 2% 5 3% 63 Total 4,184 1,266 2,918
% 100% 20% 80% % 100% 30% 70%

Source:  VHB, Inc.
                 ITE Trip Generation Handbook, Figure 7.3

October 8, 2021

230
Enter from External 5 1,521

Demand Balanced Demand Exit to External

768 DUs Enter from External
Demand Balanced Demand 1,397

Exit to External ITE LU Code  710 ITE LU Code  210
206 Size  50.0 KSF GLA 0 Size  

690
Balanced

Demand

Demand

Demand Demand

41 571
Balanced 60 Balanced

Balanced

5,714
Enter from External

Demand

Demand

Demand

Demand

Exit to External ITE LU Code  820
5,614 Size  300.0 KSF GLA

Attachment A:  Internal Capture Summary - Daily (Proposed PD)



Retail

External
Enter 5,410
Exit 5,291

Total 10,701
% 90%

11% 654 9% 535

33% 690 38% 795

Residential

External
Enter 1,438
Exit 1,557

Total 2,995
% 72%

Source: VHB
ITE Trip Generation Handbook, Figure 7.3

28%

Total
5,945
5,945

11,890
100%

Total

Demand

Balanced

4,184
100%

Demand

ITE LU Code  

2,092
2,092

Attachment A:   Internal Capture Summary - Daily - Concept Plan

Size  

Demand

Balanced

Internal 
535
654

1,189

820
142.0 KSF GLA

Demand

535

Exit to External

Enter from External
5,410

5,291
ITE LU Code  

10%

654

Internal 

220 Enter from External

654

October 8, 2021

Size  

1,189
535

Exit to External

1,438768 DUs

1,557



Attachment A: Internal Capture Calculations - PM Peak (Current PD

Project Name: Organization:
Project Location: Performed By:

Scenario Description: Date:
Analysis Year: Checked By:

Analysis Period: Date:

ITE LUCs1 Quantity Units Total Entering Exiting
Office 710 200 KSF 220 35 185
Retail 820 300 KSF 1,225 588 637
Restaurant 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0
Residential 220 120 DU 69 43 26
Hotel 0
All Other Land Uses2 0

1,514 666 848

Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized
Office
Retail 1.00 0% 0% 1.00 0% 0%
Restaurant 1.00 0% 0% 1.00 0% 0%
Cinema/Entertainment
Residential
Hotel
All Other Land Uses2

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 0 0 0
Retail 0
Restaurant 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0
Residential 0 0
Hotel 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 37 0 2 0
Retail 11 0 20 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 1 11 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0

Total Entering Exiting Land Use Entering Trips Exiting Trips
All Person-Trips 1,514 666 848 Office 34% 21%
Internal Capture Percentage 11% 12% 10% Retail 8% 5%

Restaurant N/A N/A
External Vehicle-Trips5 1,350 584 766 Cinema/Entertainment N/A N/A
External Transit-Trips6 0 0 0 Residential 51% 46%
External Non-Motorized Trips6 0 0 0 Hotel N/A N/A
1Land Use Codes (LUCs) from Trip Generation Manual , published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers.
2Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator.
3Enter trips assuming no transit or non-motorized trips (as assumed in ITE Trip Generation Manual ).
5Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-P.

Table 5-P: Computations Summary Table 6-P: Internal Trip Capture Percentages by Land Use

4Enter vehicle occupancy assumed in Table 1-P vehicle trips.  If vehicle occupancy changes for proposed mixed-use project, manual adjustments must be 
6Person-Trips

0
0

0
0

Table 4-P: Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix*

Origin (From) Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

0

Table 3-P: Average Land Use Interchange Distances (Feet Walking Distance)

Origin (From) Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

NCHRP 684 Internal Trip Capture Estimation Tool
Timbertop Property-Intram VHB

Fruitland Park, FL JZ

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.
Estimation Tool Developed by the Texas A&M Transportation Institute - Version 2013.1

Adopted PD Zoning 8/9/2021
2025

PM Street Peak Hour

Table 1-P: Base Vehicle-Trip Generation Estimates (Single-Use Site Estimate)

Land Use Development Data (For Information Only ) Estimated Vehicle-Trips3

Table 2-P: Mode Split and Vehicle Occupancy Estimates

Land Use Entering Trips Exiting Trips



Project Name:
Analysis Period:

Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips* Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips*
Office 1.00 35 35 1.00 185 185
Retail 1.00 588 588 1.00 637 637
Restaurant 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0
Residential 1.00 43 43 1.00 26 26
Hotel 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 37 7 4 0
Retail 13 185 166 32
Restaurant 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 1 11 5 1
Hotel 0 0 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 47 0 2 0
Retail 11 0 20 0
Restaurant 11 294 7 0
Cinema/Entertainment 2 24 0 2 0
Residential 20 59 0 0
Hotel 0 12 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 12 23 35 23 0 0
Retail 48 540 588 540 0 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 22 21 43 21 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0
All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 39 146 185 146 0 0
Retail 31 606 637 606 0 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 12 14 26 14 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0
All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

3Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator

Table 9-P (O): Internal and External Trips Summary (Exiting Trips)

Origin Land Use Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

0

Table 8-P (D): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Destination)

Origin (From)

2Person-Trips

0
0

Table 9-P (D): Internal and External Trips Summary (Entering Trips)

Destination Land Use

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.

Timbertop Property-Intram
PM Street Peak Hour

Table 7-P: Conversion of Vehicle-Trip Ends to Person-Trip Ends

Land Use Table 7-P (D): Entering Trips Table 7-P (O): Exiting Trips

Table 8-P (O): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Origin)

Origin (From) Destination (To)

Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

Cinema/Entertainment
0

25

1Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-P

Attachment A: Attachment A: Internal Capture Calculations - PM Peak (Current PD



Attachment A: Internal Capture Calculations - PM Peak (Proposed PD)

Project Name: Organization:
Project Location: Performed By:

Scenario Description: Date:
Analysis Year: Checked By:

Analysis Period: Date:

ITE LUCs1 Quantity Units Total Entering Exiting
Office 710 50 KSF 59 9 50
Retail 820 300 KSF 1,225 588 637
Restaurant 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0
Residential 221 768 DU 338 206 132
Hotel 0
All Other Land Uses2 0

1,622 803 819

Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized
Office
Retail 1.00 0% 0% 1.00 0% 0%
Restaurant 1.00 0% 0% 1.00 0% 0%
Cinema/Entertainment
Residential
Hotel
All Other Land Uses2

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 0 0 0
Retail 0
Restaurant 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0
Residential 0 0
Hotel 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 10 0 1 0
Retail 3 0 95 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 5 55 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0

Total Entering Exiting Land Use Entering Trips Exiting Trips
All Person-Trips 1,622 803 819 Office 89% 22%
Internal Capture Percentage 21% 21% 21% Retail 11% 15%

Restaurant N/A N/A
External Vehicle-Trips5 1,284 634 650 Cinema/Entertainment N/A N/A
External Transit-Trips6 0 0 0 Residential 47% 45%
External Non-Motorized Trips6 0 0 0 Hotel N/A N/A

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.
Estimation Tool Developed by the Texas A&M Transportation Institute - Version 2013.1

Proposed PD Zoning 10/7/2021
Build Out

PM Street Peak Hour

Table 1-P: Base Vehicle-Trip Generation Estimates (Single-Use Site Estimate)

Land Use Development Data (For Information Only ) Estimated Vehicle-Trips3

Table 2-P: Mode Split and Vehicle Occupancy Estimates

Land Use Entering Trips Exiting Trips

NCHRP 684 Internal Trip Capture Estimation Tool
Timbertop Property-Intram VHB

Fruitland Park, FL JZ

Table 3-P: Average Land Use Interchange Distances (Feet Walking Distance)

Origin (From) Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

Table 4-P: Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix*

Origin (From) Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

0
0
0

0
0

Table 5-P: Computations Summary Table 6-P: Internal Trip Capture Percentages by Land Use

4Enter vehicle occupancy assumed in Table 1-P vehicle trips.  If vehicle occupancy changes for proposed mixed-use project, manual adjustments must be 
6Person-Trips

1Land Use Codes (LUCs) from Trip Generation Manual , published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers.
2Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator.
3Enter trips assuming no transit or non-motorized trips (as assumed in ITE Trip Generation Manual ).
5Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-P.



Attachment A: Internal Capture Calculations - PM Peak (Proposed PD

Project Name:
Analysis Period:

Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips* Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips*
Office 1.00 9 9 1.00 50 50
Retail 1.00 588 588 1.00 637 637
Restaurant 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0
Residential 1.00 206 206 1.00 132 132
Hotel 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 10 2 1 0
Retail 13 185 166 32
Restaurant 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 5 55 28 4
Hotel 0 0 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 47 0 8 0
Retail 3 0 95 0
Restaurant 3 294 33 0
Cinema/Entertainment 1 24 0 8 0
Residential 5 59 0 0
Hotel 0 12 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 8 1 9 1 0 0
Retail 65 523 588 523 0 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 96 110 206 110 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0
All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 11 39 50 39 0 0
Retail 98 539 637 539 0 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 60 72 132 72 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0
All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.

Timbertop Property-Intram
PM Street Peak Hour

Table 7-P: Conversion of Vehicle-Trip Ends to Person-Trip Ends

Land Use Table 7-P (D): Entering Trips Table 7-P (O): Exiting Trips

Table 8-P (O): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Origin)

Origin (From) Destination (To)

Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

Cinema/Entertainment
0

25

1Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-P
2Person-Trips

0
0

Table 9-P (D): Internal and External Trips Summary (Entering Trips)

Destination Land Use

3Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator

Table 9-P (O): Internal and External Trips Summary (Exiting Trips)

Origin Land Use Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

0

Table 8-P (D): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Destination)

Origin (From)

0

0

0

0

0



Attachment A: Internal Capture Calculations - PM Peak (Concept)

Project Name: Organization:
Project Location: Performed By:

Scenario Description: Date:
Analysis Year: Checked By:

Analysis Period: Date:

ITE LUCs1 Quantity Units Total Entering Exiting
Office 0
Retail 820 143 KSF 1,012 508 504
Restaurant 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0
Residential 221 768 DU 338 206 132
Hotel 0
All Other Land Uses2 0

1,350 714 636

Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized Veh. Occ.4 % Transit % Non-Motorized
Office
Retail 1.00 0% 0% 1.00 0% 0%
Restaurant 1.00 0% 0% 1.00 0% 0%
Cinema/Entertainment
Residential
Hotel
All Other Land Uses2

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 0 0 0
Retail 0
Restaurant 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0
Residential 0 0
Hotel 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 0 0 0 0
Retail 0 0 95 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 0 51 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0

Total Entering Exiting Land Use Entering Trips Exiting Trips
All Person-Trips 1,350 714 636 Office N/A N/A
Internal Capture Percentage 22% 20% 23% Retail 10% 19%

Restaurant N/A N/A
External Vehicle-Trips5 1,058 568 490 Cinema/Entertainment N/A N/A
External Transit-Trips6 0 0 0 Residential 46% 39%
External Non-Motorized Trips6 0 0 0 Hotel N/A N/A
1Land Use Codes (LUCs) from Trip Generation Manual , published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers.
2Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator.
3Enter trips assuming no transit or non-motorized trips (as assumed in ITE Trip Generation Manual ).
5Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-P.

Table 5-P: Computations Summary Table 6-P: Internal Trip Capture Percentages by Land Use

4Enter vehicle occupancy assumed in Table 1-P vehicle trips.  If vehicle occupancy changes for proposed mixed-use project, manual adjustments must be 
6Person-Trips

0
0

0
0

Table 4-P: Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix*

Origin (From) Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

0

Table 3-P: Average Land Use Interchange Distances (Feet Walking Distance)

Origin (From) Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

NCHRP 684 Internal Trip Capture Estimation Tool
Timbertop Property-Intram VHB

Fruitland Park, FL JZ

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.
Estimation Tool Developed by the Texas A&M Transportation Institute - Version 2013.1

Concept 10/7/2021
Build Out

PM Street Peak Hour

Table 1-P: Base Vehicle-Trip Generation Estimates (Single-Use Site Estimate)

Land Use Development Data (For Information Only ) Estimated Vehicle-Trips3

Table 2-P: Mode Split and Vehicle Occupancy Estimates

Land Use Entering Trips Exiting Trips



Attachment A: Internal Capture Calculations - PM Peak (Concept)

Project Name:
Analysis Period:

Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips* Veh. Occ. Vehicle-Trips Person-Trips*
Office 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0
Retail 1.00 508 508 1.00 504 504
Restaurant 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0
Residential 1.00 206 206 1.00 132 132
Hotel 1.00 0 0 1.00 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 0 0 0 0
Retail 10 146 131 25
Restaurant 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 5 55 28 4
Hotel 0 0 0 0

Office Retail Restaurant Residential Hotel
Office 41 0 8 0
Retail 0 0 95 0
Restaurant 0 254 33 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 20 0 8 0
Residential 0 51 0 0
Hotel 0 10 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 0 0 0 0 0 0
Retail 51 457 508 457 0 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 95 111 206 111 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0
All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Internal External Total Vehicles1 Transit2 Non-Motorized2

Office 0 0 0 0 0 0
Retail 95 409 504 409 0 0
Restaurant 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cinema/Entertainment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Residential 51 81 132 81 0 0
Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0
All Other Land Uses3 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

3Total estimate for all other land uses at mixed-use development site is not subject to internal trip capture computations in this estimator

Table 9-P (O): Internal and External Trips Summary (Exiting Trips)

Origin Land Use Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

Person-Trip Estimates External Trips by Mode*

0

Table 8-P (D): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Destination)

Origin (From)

2Person-Trips

0
0

Table 9-P (D): Internal and External Trips Summary (Entering Trips)

Destination Land Use

*Indicates computation that has been rounded to the nearest whole number.

Timbertop Property-Intram
PM Street Peak Hour

Table 7-P: Conversion of Vehicle-Trip Ends to Person-Trip Ends

Land Use Table 7-P (D): Entering Trips Table 7-P (O): Exiting Trips

Table 8-P (O): Internal Person-Trip Origin-Destination Matrix (Computed at Origin)

Origin (From) Destination (To)

Destination (To)
Cinema/Entertainment

Cinema/Entertainment
0

20

1Vehicle-trips computed using the mode split and vehicle occupancy values provided in Table 2-P



��������	
�������
�����
�������������� ������������ ����������� ���������� ������������������� ��������� ���� �� ������� !"#� ������� ! $� ��%���&������ ��'�����&�����'���� ������������������ (����������� ������������������� ���������'����'�����  !"#�����  !"#�������'&�  !"#���������� ��)���������������������'����'�����  !"#���)�������%&�%�'�����  !"#���)�������%&*%�'�����  !"#���)������'&�  !"#���)��������� ���*������� ���������'����'������� ! $�  ! $����� ! $�������'&�  ! $���������� ��)���������������������'����'������� ! $�  ! $���)�������%&�%�'�����  ! $���)�������%&*%�'�����  ! $���)������'&�  ! $���)���������+, ,,-./. 012345 /. ,6/- 7897:;�9<7= ;9�>> ?7@09<;;�7ABCDB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,>I.J. KI,>K .6/- 0 -,. EJ- E,+ .6/+ 0 >6..L ,>I.J. JIEJ. .6>K 0 -,. /EK EJK .6>J 0-, 012345 /. .6J- 7C=B9;<C�MFNN�9<7= N7OB�;M<9B�=9FAB� D;�E- E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,.I/J. ,I+-. .6,+ 0 K/. ,E- KJ .6E> 0 E6..L ,.I/J. EI.JK .6E. 0 K/. ,>. JE .6EJ 0EKE 012345 /. .6/+ 79=F0B�7ABCDB OD9G�;G9BBG ;9�,Q� E E D987C =FAF=B= 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,/IQQ. KI,JE .6/- 0 -,. E/. E-K .6/Q 0 ,6..L ,/IQQ. KI>EK .6/Q 0 -,. E>E E+Q .6>, 0E,- 012345 EK .6J/ 79NFCRG<C�7ABCDB ?�N7=@�N7OB�8<DNBA79= ;<DGM�GB9:FCF E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ G<?C�<H�N7=@�N7OB = ,.I/J. ,IKQ/ .6,K 0 K/. K+ QJ .6,+ 0 >6K.L ,.I/J. ,IQ+K .6,Q 0 K/. -E ,E. .6E/ 0E. 012345 >. ,6+Q 7D;GFC�:B99FGG�9<7= @<DGM�07:P�9<7= 09�// E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 QI./. ,I>-J .6,J 0 >-. ,.. >, .6E, 0 +6-KL QI./. EIE>K .6EK 0 >-. ,KE JE .6/E 0EJ/ ,,-..> 012345 EK ,6-> 87GB;�7ABCDB C�0BCGB9�;G9BBG 09�>>�S�=BN7C=�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,.I/J. ,I/E. .6,/ 0 K/. K> J- .6,/ 0 Q6EKL ,.I/J. EI.K> .6E. 0 K/. +> ,.> .6E. 0EJE 012345 >. .6++ 87GB;�7ABCDB 09�>>�S�=BN7C=�9<7= B;GB;�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. ,I-+K .6,, 0 +>. ,/- ,>Q .6,+ 0 /6..L ,JI+E. EI.JQ .6,E 0 +>. ,KQ ,-/ .6E, 0EK> 012345 /K .6+E 87@�9<7= 87@�9<7=�S�09�,Q7 <N=�D;�>>,S�09�K..7 E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,.I/J. /I.,K .6EQ 0 K/. ,EK ,>> .6E- 0 E6..L ,.I/J. /I/EQ .6/E 0 K/. ,/+ ,KQ .6/. 0EK/ ,,-..J 012345 /K .6KK 87@�9<7= <N=�D;�>>,S�09�K..7 09�>KES�N7OB;M<9B�=9FAB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,.I/J. ,IJ/, .6,J 0 K/. +J KQ .6,J 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. ,I-,> .6,- 0 K/. Q. JE .6,- 0,QJ 012345 /K ,6J> 8N70O;GFNN�N7OB�9<7= H<;R7GB�9<7= 09�K. E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�0NB9:<CG = ,>I.J. KI./, .6/J 0 -,. E,K EE/ .6/, 0 +6..L ,>I.J. -I/QE .6K/ = -,. /,J /E+ .6>J 0E, 012345 >. E6J> 89F=RB;�9<7= ;9�// D;�E- E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. ,I>+K .6E. 8 /Q. QQ /> .6EK 8 >6-KL -IKJ. ,I+-/ .6EK 8 /Q. ,EK >/ .6/E 8+> ,,-.,J 012345 >K ,6,J 89FGG�9<7= ;9�>> M<9;B�97C0M�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�:<DCG�=<97 = ,EI/Q. >I.>, .6// 0 JE. ,EE EK> .6>, 0 Q6EKL ,EI/Q. JIE+Q .6K, 0 JE. ,Q. /QK .6J> 0+> 7=T70BCG >K ,6>- 89FGG�9<7= M<9;B�97C0M�9<7= ?<NH�897C0M�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�:<DCG�=<97 = ,EI/Q. >I.>, .6// 0 JE. ,EE EK> .6>, 0 Q6EKL ,EI/Q. JIE+Q .6K, 0 JE. ,Q. /QK .6J> 0E>, 012345 /K .6,> 0696�,Q7�U=<97�7ABCDBV N7OB�=<97�=9FAB 0696�K..7S�<N=�>>, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�G7A79B; = ,.I/J. ,IJE+ .6,J 0 K/. J- ,.. .6,Q 0 ,6K.L ,.I/J. ,I-K> .6,- 0 K/. -E ,.+ .6E. 0K. 012345 /K ,6/K 0696�,Q7�U=<97�7ABCDBV 0696�K..7S�<N=�>>, =7AF=�?7NOB9�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�G7A79B; = ,>I.J. KI.,, .6/J 0 -,. E/J E,+ .6// 0 ,6..L ,>I.J. KIEJ- .6/- 0 -,. E>+ EEQ .6/K 0,.> 012345 E. ,6.. 0696�,Q7�U=<97�7ABCDBV =7AF=�?7NOB9�9<7= D;�>>, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�G7A79B; = ,>I.J. /I+K+ .6E- 0 -,. ,KK ,-- .6EK 0 ,6..L ,>I.J. >I.KK .6EQ 0 -,. ,J/ ,+J .6EJ 0. C<�0<DCG /K .6>+ 0696�,Q7 09�>KE 09�>> E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,>I.J. W W W -,. W W W W ,>I.J. W W W -,. W W W 8,,> 012345 >K .6J+ 0696�,Q7 09�>> ;9�,Q E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,EI/Q. EI+-E .6E/ 0 JE. ,/Q ,,. .6EE 0 ,6-KL ,EI/Q. /I,/E .6EK 0 JE. ,KE ,E. .6EK 0,.K 012345 >. .6K/ 0696�,Q7 D;�>>, 87@�9<7=� E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ BD;GF;S:<DCG�=<97 = ,JI+E. ,>I>JQ .6+J 0 +>. J>E K-- .6-J 0 ,6..L ,JI+E. ,KIE.- .6Q. 0 +>. J-K J.J .6+. 0EK+ 012345 >K .6Q/ 0696�,Q7 87@�9<7=�S�09�,Q7 09�>>0S�09�K..7 E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�:<DCG�=<97 = ,JI+E. +I/E+ .6K. 0 +>. /E+ /-, .6>> 0 ,6..L ,JI+E. +I-K/ .6KE 0 +>. />K /Q. .6>J 0, 012345 /K ,6K/ 0696�EK :79F<C�0<DCG@�NFCB� R9FHHFC�7ABCDB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,>I.J. ,.IJQJ .6-J = -,. JQ/ EK+ .6Q+ = /6EKL ,>I.J. ,EIKK, .6+Q = -,. +,/ /./ ,6,K H,KQ ,,-.E/ 012345 /K ,6E- 0696�EK R9FHHFC�7ABCDB D;�E-�S�D;�>>, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ G<?C�<H�N7=@�N7OB = ,>I.J. QIJ/. .6J+ = -,. /-. >JE .6JK = E6-KL ,>I.J. ,,I.EQ .6-+ = -,. >E> KEQ .6-K =,,J 012345 /. .6>/ 0696�EK7 D;�E-SD;�>>, 09�>JJ7 E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ H9DFGN7C=�P79O = ,.I/J. -IK>, .6-/ = K/. /J, />J .6J+ = ,6..L ,.I/J. -IQEJ .6-- = K/. /-Q /J> .6-E =,+Q 012345 /. ,6K. 0696�EK7 09�>JJ7 D;�E-SD;�>>, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ H9DFGN7C=�P79O = ,.I/J. >I-+. .6>J 0 K/. ,Q> EKK .6>+ 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. KI.E> .6>+ 0 K/. E.> EJ+ .6K, =,,+ ,,-./- 012345 >K ,6JK 0696�EK7 D;�E-�UC<9GMV D;�E-�U;<DGMV E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�NBB;8D9R = ,EI/Q. /+> .6./ 0 JE. ,K ,- .6./ 0 ,6-KL ,EI/Q. >,Q .6./ 0 JE. ,J ,Q .6./ 0,/E 012345 K. ,6>Q ;9�//�S�0696�// D;�E-� 09�>+�S09�>-. E E D987C DC=FAF=B= ;G7GB DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,+IKQ. QI>.E .6K, 0 QE. >E- /., .6>J 0 /6-KL ,+IKQ. ,,I/.E .6J, 0 QE. K,/ /JE .6KJ 0,// 012345 >K .6KE ;9�//�S�;9�>+�S�0696�//�S�09�>+ 09�>+�S09�>-. 09�>+ E E D987C DC=FAF=B= ;G7GB DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,-I-.. +IQ/J .6K. 0 ++. /.+ >>/ .6K. 0 >6K.L ,-I-.. ,,I,/J .6J/ 0 ++. /+> KKE .6J/ 0,Q 012345 KK >6E- 0696�// 09�>+ 89F=RB;�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = E,I-+. >IE.. .6,Q 8 ,I.-. EEQ ,/. .6E, 8 +6K.L E,I-+. JI/,K .6EQ 8 ,I.-. />> ,QK .6/E 8E> 7=T70BCG /K K6J, 0696�// 89F=RB;�9<7= PB88NB�9<0O�9<7= E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. KIQ/, .6-+ 0 /Q. E>, EE/ .6JE 0 K6EKL -IKJ. -IJJ. ,6., = /Q. /,, E++ .6+. 0E> 012345 /K ,6JK ;9�//�S�0696�// PB88NB�9<0O�9<7= ;9�K. E E D987C DC=FAF=B= ;G7GB 0FG@�<H�:7;0<GGB = ,KIK>. KIQ/, .6/+ 0 -Q. E>, EE/ .6/, 0 K6EKL ,KIK>. -IJJ. .6>Q 0 -Q. /,, E++ .6/Q 0-> 012345 >K .6J> 0696�>E :79F<C�0<DCG@�NFCB� ;9�,Q� E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,KIQ/. >I+JJ .6/, 0 -Q. E/, ,QE .6EQ 0 K6EKL ,KIQ/. JIE+K .6/Q 0 -Q. EQ+ E>+ .6/+ 0-K 012345 >K ,6>, 0696�>E ;9�,Q 09�>K. E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 QI./. >I/++ .6>Q 0 >-. ,-K E.- .6>> 0 -6EKL QI./. JIEE- .6JQ 0 >-. E>+ EQ> .6J/ 0,.J 012345 KK E6.K 0696�>E 09�>K.� 09�>/Q E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. KI/-+ .6-, 0 /Q. EE. E>E .6JE 0 J6EKL -IKJ. -IE+E .6QJ 0 /Q. EQ+ /E+ .6+> 0Q, 7=T70BCG >. /6K+ 0696�>E 09�>/Q� 0BCG97N�7ABCDB E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. /IK./ .6>J 8 /Q. ,JE ,++ .6>+ 8 -6..L -IKJ. >IQ,/ .6JK 0 /Q. EE- EJ> .6J+ 0Q, 012345 >. >6Q/ 0696�>E 0BCG97N�7ABCDB P7N:BGG<�;G9BBG E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,>I-J. /IK./ .6E> 8 --. ,JE ,++ .6E> 8 -6..L ,>I-J. >IQ,/ .6// 8 --. EE- EJ> .6/> 8Q- 7=T70BCG KK /6J. 0696�>E P7N:BGG<�;G9BBG N7OB�:70O�=9FAB E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,>I-J. >I-EJ .6/E 8 --. ,K. EQE .6/+ 8 >6EKL ,>I-J. KI+,Q .6/Q 8 --. ,+K /J. .6>- 8Q- 012345 KK /6.J 0696�>E N7OB�:70O�=9FAB ;9�>> E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,>I-J. >I-EJ .6/E 8 --. ,K. EQE .6/+ 8 >6EKL ,>I-J. KI+,Q .6/Q 8 --. ,+K /J. .6>- 8,+E 012345 >. .6+J 0696�>/K ;9�>J =D8;=9B7=�=9FAB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,KIQ/. -IKJK .6>- 0 -Q. /J- /K. .6>J 0 /6..L ,KIQ/. +I--. .6KK 0 -Q. >EK >.J .6K> 0QJ 012345 >. .6+, 0696�>/K =D8;=9B7=�=9FAB <97CRB�0<DCG@�NFCB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. KIJQ- .6/> 0 +>. /+/ E,> .6>J 0 ,6..L ,JI+E. KIQ++ .6/J 0 +>. >./ EEK .6>+ 0,+, 012345 KK ,6-> 0696�>/- 09�>>7 ;9�>> E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,EIEJ. KIQJ- .6>Q 0 J>. E., /Q, .6J, 0 >6K.L ,EIEJ. -I>/J .6J, 0 J>. EK. >+- .6-J 0QE 012345 >K E6KE 0696�>/- ;9�>> ?<NH�897C0M�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = E,I-+. ,.I/.K .6>- 0 ,I.-. J/J /KE .6KQ 0 J6EKL E,I-+. ,/IQK> .6J> 0 ,I.-. +J, >-- .6+. =Q> 012345 >K .6>Q 0696�>/- ?<NH�897C0M�9<7= ;9�>J E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,KIQ/. ,/I-+K .6+- 0 -Q. -+. >+> .6QQ = E6..L ,KIQ/. ,KIEE. .6QJ = -Q. +J, K/> ,6.Q HQK 012345 >K ,6K. 0696�>/- ;9�>J <97CRB�0<DCG@�NFCB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,KIQ/. +I--Q .6KK 0 -Q. /J, KEE .6JJ 0 ,6..L ,KIQ/. QIEE- .6K+ 0 -Q. /-Q K>Q .6JQ 0-J 012345 KK J6EK 0696�>/Q 09�>E �09�>>7 E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,>I-J. /IJJK .6EK 8 --. E/> ,E/ .6/. 8 +6K.L ,>I-J. KIK,, .6/- 8 --. /KE ,+K .6>J 8,E- 012345 >K ,6K/ 0696�>/Q 09�>>7 ;9�>> E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 QI./. >IEE+ .6>- 0 >-. ,/J E>K .6KE 0 >6EKL QI./. KIE.J .6K+ 0 >-. ,J- /.E .6J> 0/, 012345 KK ,6>J 0696�>> D;�>>, ;FNAB9�N7OB�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. ,,I/QQ .6J+ 0 +>. J,Q /K. .6-> 0 E6EKL ,JI+E. ,EI->. .6-J 0 +>. JQE /Q, .6+E 0EQ 012345 KK E6-Q 0696�>> ;FNAB9�N7OB�9<7= 09�>-/ E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = E,I-+. ,.IJQQ .6>Q 0 ,I.-. JK> />/ .6J, 0 >6..L E,I-+. ,/I.,- .6J. 0 ,I.-. -QJ >,- .6-> =,,Q 012345 >. /6,- 0696�>> 09�>-/ 7PF79@�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. ,-I>K/ ,6.> H +>. ,I./K KQ+ ,6E/ H -6-KL ,JI+E. EKI/>Q ,6K, H +>. ,IK./ +JQ ,6-Q H>K 012345 >K E6-K 0696�>> 7PF79@�9<7= 09�>KE E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = E,I-+. ,/I.-/ .6J. 0 ,I.-. KJJ KEQ .6K/ 0 ,6..L E,I-+. ,/I->. .6J/ 0 ,I.-. KQK KKJ .6KJ 0>+ 012345 /. .6J+ 0696�>> 09�>KE ;9�,Q� E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,>I.J. ,>I/Q- ,6.E B -,. J/, J/Q .6Q. = >6..L ,>I.J. ,-IK,J ,6EK H -,. -J+ --- ,6.Q H>- 012345 >K ,6., 0696�>> ;9�,Q MF0O;�=FG0M�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,JI+E. ,EI.+Q .6-E 0 +>. >+/ KK, .6JJ 0 ,6EKL ,JI+E. ,EI+J> .6-J 0 +>. K,> K+J .6-. 0+. 012345 >K ,6E, 0696�>> MF0O;�=FG0M�9<7= 09�>>7 E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,JI+E. ,.IQ-> .6JK 0 +>. >// >Q- .6KQ 0 >6K.L ,JI+E. ,/IJ-J .6+, 0 +>. K>. J,Q .6-> 0+E 012345 KK ,6,E 0696�>>� 09�>>7 <97CRB�7ABCDB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. ,.IKJ+ .6J/ 0 +>. >J. >>. .6KK 0 +6EKL ,JI+E. ,KI-.+ .6Q/ 0 +>. J+> JK> .6+, 0,E. 012345 >K .6>E 0696�>>�NBR�7 09�>> D;�>>, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,KIQ/. ,IEQ. .6.+ 0 -Q. >K -> .6.Q 0 ,6..L ,KIQ/. ,I/KJ .6.Q 0 -Q. >- -+ .6,. 0-/ 012345 KK J6,/ 0696�>>K ;9�,Q CH�KKE E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. JQ- .6.Q 8 /Q. /> /. .6.Q 8 /6..L -IKJ. +.+ .6,, 8 /Q. /Q /K .6,. 8-/ 7=T70BCG KK >6-> 0696�>>K CH�KKE 09�>>K7 E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. JQ- .6.Q 8 /Q. /> /. .6.Q 8 /6..L -IKJ. +.+ .6,, 8 /Q. /Q /K .6,. 8-E 012345 KK /6KK 0696�>>K7 ;9�,Q 09�>>K E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. EI.J. .6E- 8 /Q. Q, Q/ .6E> 8 Q6..L -IKJ. /I,-. .6>E 8 /Q. ,>. ,>/ .6/- 8,E+ 012345 >K .6KK 0696�>>K7 09�>>K� ;9�>. E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,,IJ,. EIJK- .6E/ 0 J.. ,.+ ,.J .6,+ 0 +6-KL ,,IJ,. >I.>, .6/K 0 J.. ,J> ,J, .6E- 0,+/ 012345 KK ,6.+ 0696�>>+ ;9�,Q 09�KJ, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. >I/QJ .6EJ 0 +>. ,++ ,-Q .6EE 0 +6EKL ,JI+E. JIK/> .6/Q 0 +>. E-Q EJJ .6// 0KJ 012345 KK .6JK 0696�>>+ 09�KJ, N7OB�FC=D;G9F7N�8<DNBA79= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�G7A79B; = ,JI+E. -IJ,K .6>K 0 +>. /// /.- .6>. 0 ,6..L ,JI+E. +I../ .6>+ 0 +>. /K. /E/ .6>E 0,/> 012345 >K >6JQ 0696�>>+ N7OB�FC=D;G9F7N�8<DNBA79= <97CRB�0<DCG@�NFCB E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,>I-J. -I.-K .6>+ 8 --. /J, /,K .6>- 8 ,6..L ,>I-J. -I>/J .6K. 8 --. /-Q //, .6>Q 8E-E 012345 >K ,6>E 0696�>>+7 09�>>+ 09�>+ E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,,IJ,. >I-J/ .6>, 0 J.. E>. EJK .6>> 0 ,6K.L ,,IJ,. KI,/, .6>> 0 J.. EKQ E+K .6>+ 0E-, 012345 KK ,6/+ 0696�>>+7 09�>+ ;<DGM�GB9:FCF E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 QI./. EQ. .6./ 0 >-. ,+ ,/ .6.> 0 ,6..L QI./. /.K .6./ 0 >-. ,Q ,> .6.> 0/. 7=T70BCG >K ,6+. 0696�>>Q�U;FNAB9�N7OBV 09�>> :<9CFCR;F=B�=9FAB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,EI/Q. EI,,E .6,- 0 JE. ,JK KJ .6E- 0 ,6EKL ,EI/Q. EIE>- .6,+ 0 JE. ,-J J. .6E+ 0/. 012345 >K ,6EK 0696�>>Q�U;FNAB9�N7OBV :<9CFCR;F=B�=9FAB D;�>>, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�NBB;8D9R = ,EI/Q. EI,,E .6,- 0 JE. ,JK KJ .6E- 0 ,6EKL ,EI/Q. EIE>- .6,+ 0 JE. ,-J J. .6E+ 0E,Q 012345 EK ,6/> 0696�>>7�UN7OB;F=B�7ABCDBS�9<;B�;G9BBGV ;9�,Q� ;O@NFCB�=9FAB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�D:7GFNN7 = ,.I/J. QK> .6.Q 0 K/. K/ >, .6,. 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. ,I../ .6,. 0 K/. KJ >/ .6,, 0EE. 012345 >K E6.> 0696�>>7 ;O@NFCB�=9FAB 09�>K.7S�09>>7 E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. ,I-K. .6E/ 8 /Q. ,,. JE .6E+ 8 /6..L -IKJ. EI.EQ .6E- 8 /Q. ,E+ -E .6// 8E++ 012345 >K E6+/ 0696�>>7� 09�>K.7 09�>>7 E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. ,IQJ. .6EJ 8 /Q. ,E> J> .6/E 8 E6K.L -IKJ. EIE,+ .6EQ 8 /Q. ,>. -E .6/J 8,-E 012345 /K ,6., 0696�>>7�UR9FHHFC�9<7=V GM<:7;�9<7= D;�E-SD;�>>, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�NBB;8D9R = ,/I/E. +I-EE .6JK = J+. /,J >J+ .6JQ = ,6..L ,/I/E. QI,J- .6JQ = J+. //E >QE .6-E =-Q 012345 KK .6++ 0696�>>7 09�>>�S�=BN7C=�9<7= B;GB;�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,KIQ/. >IQK- .6/, 0 -Q. EEQ E/K .6/. 0 ,6K.L ,KIQ/. KI/>. .6/> 0 -Q. E>- EK/ .6/E 0-+ 012345 KK E6EQ 0696�>>7 B;GB;�9<7= 09�>/Q E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. >I->J .6J/ 0 /Q. ,Q+ E>, .6JE 0 /6K.L -IKJ. KIJ/- .6-K 0 /Q. E/K E+J .6-/ 0EE, 012345 >K /6,+ 0696�>>7 09�>/Q� 09�>/- E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,>I-J. >I.K- .6E- 8 --. ,-K E./ .6EJ 8 +6..L ,>I-J. KIQJ, .6>. 8 --. EK- EQ+ .6/Q 8,,K 012345 KK >6./ 0696�>>7 09�>/- ;9�>> E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,>I-J. ,I>K+ .6,. 8 --. -/ -+ .6,. 8 J6K.L ,>I-J. ,IQQ+ .6,> 8 --. ,.. ,.- .6,> 8K, 012345 EK .6Q, 0696�>>0�UBD=<97�9<7=V D;�>>,� 09�K..7 E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�:<DCG�=<97 = ,/I/E. QIK// .6-E = J+. >E/ /+- .6JE = ,6..L ,/I/E. ,.I.,Q .6-K = J+. >>K >.- .6JK =,J, 012345 /K .6-K 0696�>>0�UR9FHHFC�9<7=V 09�>J+ GM<:7;�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�NBB;8D9R = ,/I/E. KIJJ> .6>/ 0 J+. E/, E>J .6/J 0 ,6..L ,/I/E. KIQK/ .6>K 0 J+. E>/ EKQ .6/+ 0>E 012345 KK >6KK 0696�>K. :79F<C�0<DCG@�NFCB� 8788�9<7= E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. ,I+.+ .6E> 8 /Q. ,EE -- .6/, 8 ,6..L -IKJ. ,IQ.. .6EK 8 /Q. ,E+ +, .6// 8>/ 012345 /K .6QJ 0696�>K. 8788�9<7= ;9�,Q� E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�D:7GFNN7 = ,.I/J. EIJQ- .6EJ 0 K/. ,-+ ,E. .6/> 0 /6-KL ,.I/J. /IE>E .6/, 0 K/. E,> ,>> .6>. 0>> 012345 /K E6.J 0696�>K. ;9�,Q B�D:7GFNN7�8<DNBA79=S�?�-GM�;G9B E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�D:7GFNN7 = E,I-+. >I>.K .6E. 8 ,I.-. ,-Q EJQ .6EK 8 ,6K.L E,I-+. >I->K .6EE 8 ,I.-. ,Q/ EQ. .6E- 8>> 7=T70BCG /K ,6/J 0696�>K. B�D:7GFNN7�8<DNBA79=S�?�-GM�;G9B 09�>E E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 QI./. >I>.K .6>Q 0 >-. ,-Q EJQ .6K- 0 ,6K.L QI./. >I->K .6K/ 0 >-. ,Q/ EQ. .6JE 0-- 012345 KK E6-E 0696�>K.7 ;9�,Q 09�>>7�C<9GM E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�D:7GFNN7 0 -IKJ. ,I+.. .6E> 8 /Q. ++ ++ .6E/ 8 -6EKL -IKJ. EIKK> .6/> 8 /Q. ,EK ,EK .6/E 8,,/ 012345 KK /6Q/ 0696�>KE :79F<C�0<DCG@�NFCB HBNOFC;�9<7= E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. KI+.J .6-- 0 /Q. EQ- EEK .6-J 0 J6EKL -IKJ. -I+JE ,6.> = /Q. >.E /.K ,6./ =,,/ 7=T70BCG KK ,6-E 0696�>KE HBNOFC;�9<7= ;7C=@�N7CB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. KI+.J .6/K 0 +>. EQ- EEK .6/K 0 J6EKL ,JI+E. -I+JE .6>- 0 +>. >.E /.K .6>+ 0>J 7=T70BCG >K E6KK 0696�>KE ;7C=@�N7CB� N7OB�N7C=FCR�8<DNBA79= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = E,I-+. QI-++ .6>K 0 ,I.-. >-> >.- .6>> 0 K6..L E,I-+. ,EI>QE .6K- 0 ,I.-. J.K K,Q .6K- 0>J 012345 >K ,6.J 0696�>KE N7OB�N7C=FCR�8<DNBA79= 09�>> E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,JI+E. QI-++ .6K+ 0 +>. >-> >.- .6KJ 0 K6..L ,JI+E. ,EI>QE .6-> 0 +>. J.K K,Q .6-E 0,.- ,,-.EJ 012345 >. .6QQ 0696�>KE�UBD;GF;V 09�>>�S�09�>KE ;9�,Q� E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�BD;GF; = ,EI/Q. ,/I/-J ,6.+ H JE. J.J >Q- .6Q+ = >6..L ,EI/Q. ,JIE-> ,6/, H JE. -/- J.K ,6,Q HE>. 012345 /. .6+> ;G�0N7F9�7897:;�7ABCDB D;�>>,� 09�K..7 E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�G7A79B; = ,.I/J. EIK>. .6EK 0 K/. ,,/ ,E+ .6E> 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. EIJ-. .6EJ 0 K/. ,,Q ,/K .6EK 0E>. 7=T70BCG /. .6,/ ;G�0N7F9�7897:;�7ABCDB 09�K..7 09�>KE�S�B7;G�:7FC�;G9BBG E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�G7A79B; = ,.I/J. EIK>. .6EK 0 K/. ,,/ ,E+ .6E> 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. EIJ-. .6EJ 0 K/. ,,Q ,/K .6EK 0E/+ 012345 /K .6>. 0696�>KE�UB�:7FC�;G9BBGV ;G�0N7F9�7897:;�7ABCDB =<97�7ABCDB E E D987C =FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�G7A79B; = ,/IQQ. EIJK> .6,Q 0 -,. ,>. ,/K .6E. 0 ,6..L ,/IQQ. EI-+Q .6E. 0 -,. ,>- ,>E .6E, 0E/Q 012345 /K ,6K+ 0696�>KE�UN7OB�=<97�=9FABV =<97�7ABCDB N7OB�7ABCDB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�G7A79B; = ,.I/J. ,I>>E .6,> 0 K/. +. JQ .6,K 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. ,IK,J .6,K 0 K/. +> -/ .6,J 0K> 7=T70BCG /K .6K/ 0696�>KE�UN7OB;M<9B�=9FABV N7OB�7ABCDB 87@�9<7=� E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,.I/J. ,IKE. .6,K 0 K/. -- -- .6,K 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. ,IKQ+ .6,K 0 K/. +, +, .6,K 0K> 012345 /K E6,Q 0696�>KE�UN7OB;M<9B�=9FABV 87@�9<7=� <N=�D;�>>,�S�09�K..7 E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = E,I-+. ,IKE. .6.- 8 ,I.-. -- -- .6.- 8 ,6..L E,I-+. ,IKQ+ .6.- 8 ,I.-. +, +, .6.+ 8EJ- 012345 EK .6,K 0696�>KE�UN7OB;M<9B�=9FABV <N=�D;�>>,�S�09�K..7 ,,GM�7ABCDB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�:<DCG�=<97 = ,.I/J. J.J .6.J 0 K/. EK // .6.J 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. J/- .6.J 0 K/. EJ /K .6.- 0,JE 012345 >K E6-/ 0696�>KK ;9�,Q 09�KJ, E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 ,>I-J. /I/K. .6E/ 8 --. ,/K ,>. .6,+ 8 K6-KL ,>I-J. >I>/. .6/. 8 --. ,-Q ,+K .6E> 8,Q, 012345 EK >6>Q 0696�>KK 09�KJ,� 09�KJ,7 E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. ,IJ,. .6E, 8 /Q. -, +/ .6E, 8 E6..L -IKJ. ,I--+ .6E> 8 /Q. -+ QE .6E> 8JK 012345 >K /6>J 0696�>KK 0696�KJ,7� 9F=RB?<<=�7ABCDB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ G<?C�<H�:<CGAB9=B = ,EI/Q. EIJEQ .6E, 0 JE. ,>, ,E- .6E/ 0 ,6..L ,EI/Q. EI-J/ .6EE 0 JE. ,>+ ,// .6E> 0J- 012345 /K E6J, 0696�>KK 9F=RB?<<=�7ABCDB 09�>KKS�09�K. E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ G<?C�<H�:<CGAB9=B = E,I-+. -I/K, .6/> 8 ,I.-. /-/ //, .6/K 8 K6..L E,I-+. QI/+E .6>/ 0 ,I.-. >-J >EE .6>> 0-. 012345 >K .6QK 0696�>KK 09�>KK�S�09�K. ;9�K. E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. +IJEQ .6K, 0 +>. />- /-/ .6>> 0 >6..L ,JI+E. ,.I>Q+ .6JE 0 +>. >EE >K> .6K> 0+Q ,,.>,J 012345 /K .6J+ 0696�>J�U;7CH<9=�9<7=V MFRMN7C=�;G9BBG D;�>>, E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�:<DCG�=<97 = ,.I/J. JI//K .6J, = K/. E-+ EQ+ .6KJ = ,6..L ,.I/J. JIJK+ .6J> = K/. EQE /,/ .6KQ =Q+ 012345 /K .6>> 0696�>J.�U:79GFC�NDGMB9�OFCR�8<DNBA79=V GM<:7;�9<7= D;�E- E E D987C =FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�NBB;8D9R = ,/IQQ. KI-E+ .6>, 0 -,. EJ/ EK, .6/- 0 E6..L ,/IQQ. JI/E> .6>K 0 -,. EQ. E-- .6>, 0J ,,-.// 012345 >K ,6.E 0696�>JJ ;D:GB9�0<DCG@�NFCB�9<7= 9<NNFCR�709B;�9<7= > > D987C =FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = /KI+E. EEI/QK .6J/ 0 ,I+.. Q-- Q+E .6KK 0 ,6..L /KI+E. E/IK/- .6JJ 0 ,I+.. ,I.E- ,I./E .6K- 0K ,,-./> 012345 >K .6++ 0696�>JJ 9<NNFCR�709B;�9<7= D;�E- > > D987C =FAF=B= 0<DCG@ G<?C�<H�N7=@�N7OB = /KI+E. ,JIE-> .6>K 0 ,I+.. JQ/ J,> .6/Q 0 ,6..L /KI+E. ,-I,.> .6>+ 0 ,I+.. -E+ J>K .6>. 0> 012345 EK E6>K 0696�>JJ�S�N7OB�R9FHHFC�9<7= D;�E-S�D;�>>, R97@;�7F9P<9G�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ G<?C�<H�N7=@�N7OB = E,I-+. EI+/. .6,/ 8 ,I.-. ,+K ,./ .6,- 8 ,6..L E,I-+. EIQ-> .6,> 8 ,I.-. ,Q> ,.+ .6,+ 8> 7=T70BCG EK ,6J- 0696�>JJ�S�N7OB�R9FHHFC�9<7= R97@;�7F9P<9G�9<7= :79F<C�0<DCG@�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,/I/E. EI+/. .6E, 0 J+. ,+K ,./ .6E- 0 ,6..L ,/I/E. EIQ-> .6EE 0 J+. ,Q> ,.+ .6EQ 0,, ,,-./, 012345 >K ,6., 0696�>JJ7 ;D:GB9�0<DCG@�NFCB GF:8B9G<P�NC > > D987C =FAF=B= 0<DCG@ H9DFGN7C=�P79O = EQI+K. ,/I/-- .6>K 0 ,IK.. K,/ J,+ .6>, 0 ,6..L EQI+K. ,>I.KQ .6>- 0 ,IK.. K/Q JK. .6>/ 0,, ,,-./, 7=T70BCG >K ,6/+ 0696�>JJ7 GF:8B9G<P�NC 09�>J+�S�9<;B�7ABCDB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ H9DFGN7C=�P79O = ,EI/Q. ,/I/-- ,6.+ H JE. K,/ J,+ ,6.. = ,6..L ,EI/Q. ,>I.KQ ,6,/ H JE. K/Q JK. ,6.K H,-, 012345 /K .6J> 0696�>JJ7 09�>J+�S�9<;B�7ABCDB D;�E- > > D987C =FAF=B= 0<DCG@ H9DFGN7C=�P79O = EQI,J. JI>-> .6EE 0 ,I>-. E-, EJ> .6,+ 0 ,6..L EQI,J. JI+.> .6E/ 0 ,I>-. E+K E-- .6,Q 0,,- 012345 >. ,6Q> 0696�>JJ7�UPF00F<N7�9<7=V D;�E-� 09�>JJ8 E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ H9DFGN7C=�P79O = ,JI+E. JI/>- .6/+ 0 +>. />J ,+J .6>, 0 ,6..L ,JI+E. JIJ-, .6>. 0 +>. /J> ,QK .6>/ 0,,- 7=T70BCG >. ,6/K 0696�>JJ7�UPF00F<N7�9<7=V 09�>JJ8 0<DCG@�9<7=�GB9:FCF E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,EI/Q. JI/>- .6K, 0 JE. />J ,+J .6KJ 0 ,6..L ,EI/Q. JIJ-, .6K> 0 JE. /J> ,QK .6KQ 0,J- 012345 /K ,6-K 0696�>JJ8 B7RNB�CB;G�9<7= 09�>JJ7� E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,.I/J. >IK+K .6>> 0 K/. ,K- E>E .6>J 0 ,6..L ,.I/J. >I+,Q .6>- 0 K/. ,JK EK> .6>+ 0,. 012345 /K .6KK 0696�>J+ 09�>JJ7� PFCB�9F=RB�=7F9@�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ H9DFGN7C=�P79O = ,.I/J. /IJ/- .6/K 0 K/. ,EJ ,JE .6/, 0 /6..L ,.I/J. >IE,J .6>, 0 K/. ,>J ,++ .6/K 0,E 012345 /K ,6+. 0696�>J+ PFCB�9F=RB�=7F9@�9<7= R9FHHFC�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ H9DFGN7C=�P79O = ,/I/E. JI,JQ .6>J 0 J+. E-J EQ, .6>/ 0 /6-KL ,/I/E. -I>,J .6KJ = J+. //E /K. .6K, =,> 012345 >K ,6,/ 0696�>J+ R9FHHFC�9<7= ;9�>> E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,EI/Q. -IJK+ .6JE 0 JE. /KE //, .6K- 0 K6..L ,EI/Q. QI--> .6-Q 0 JE. >>Q >EE .6-E 0Q/ 012345 KK K6KQ 0696�>J7 ;9�>> ;9�>J E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. QIEJE ,6E/ = /Q. ,JQ KJ, ,6>> = >6EKL -IKJ. ,,I>.K .6>K 8 /Q. E.+ JQ, ,6-- BQ/ 012345 KK /6JK 0696�>J7�9B7NFRC:BCG ;9�>> ;9�>J . E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 W W W W W W W W W >6EKL -IKJ. W ,6.J = /Q. W W W 8,K 012345 KK .6Q> 0696�>-. ;D:GB9�0<DCG@�NFCB HN<9F=7�GD9CPFOB E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,/IKQ. +I+,J .6JK = -.. >KJ /EK .6JK = -6..L ,/IKQ. ,EI/JK .6Q, = -.. J>. >KJ .6Q, =E.> 012345 KK E6/Q 0696�>-. HN<9F=7�GD9CPFOB 87@�7ABCDB E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,EI+-. -I>K, .6K+ 0 J-. />E E-/ .6K, 0 E6-KL ,EI+-. +IK// .6JJ = J-. /QE /,/ .6KQ =E.> 7=T70BCG KK .6K> 0696�>-. 87@�7ABCDB 09�// E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,EI/Q. -I>K, .6J. 0 JE. />E E-/ .6KK 0 E6-KL ,EI/Q. +IK// .6JQ 0 JE. /QE /,/ .6J/ 0,-/ 012345 /K E6QQ 0696�>-/ 09�>> H<DCG7FC�N7OB�8<DNBA79= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,>I.J. -I.>E .6K. = -,. /./ E+- .6>/ 0 J6..L ,>I.J. QI>E> .6J- = -,. >.K /+> .6K- =/E 012345 >. ,6./ 0696�>-/ H<DCG7FC�N7OB�8<DNBA79= D;�>>, > > D987C =FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = /KI+E. ,/IJEQ .6/+ 0 ,I+.. -E, K>/ .6>. 0 /6..L /KI+E. ,KI+.. .6>> 0 ,I+.. +/J JEQ .6>J 0>, 012345 KK K6E, 0696�>-> ;9�// R9BBC�;?7:P�9<7= E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. >I>EE .6K+ 0 /Q. ,QJ ,./ .6K. 8 K6-KL -IKJ. KI+>+ .6-- 0 /Q. EKQ ,/J .6JJ 0,KK 012345 KK /6/K 0696�>-> R9BBC�;?7:P�9<7= D;�E- E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ 0 -IKJ. JI,+/ .6+E 0 /Q. ,>K E-, .6JQ 0 ,/6EKL -IKJ. ,,IK,+ ,6KE = /Q. E-. K.K ,6EQ =,/K 012345 >K K6QQ 0696�>-+ ;9�,Q T7:79N@�9<7= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�R9<ABN7C= = E,I-+. ,IJ>, .6.+ 8 ,I.-. JJ ,.K .6,. 8 K6EKL E,I-+. EI,,Q .6,. 8 ,I.-. +K ,/J .6,/ 8,+ 012345 KK /6,- 0696�>+ ;D:GB9�0<DCG@�NFCB 0NB79?7GB9�N7OB�9= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�NBB;8D9R = E,I-+. EI+>Q .6,/ 8 ,I.-. QE ,-/ .6,J 8 K6..L E,I-+. /IJ/J .6,- 8 ,I.-. ,,- EE, .6E, 8EQ, 012345 KK E6>, 0696�>+ 0NB79?7GB9�N7OB�9= 09�// E E 9D97N DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ 0FG@�<H�NBB;8D9R 0 -IKJ. EI-/. .6/J 8 /Q. QE ,K+ .6>, 8 ,6..L -IKJ. EI+JQ .6/+ 8 /Q. Q- ,JJ .6>/ 8,- 012345 >K .6>J 0696�>+ 09�// M7@?<<=�?<9:�H79:�9= E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,KIQ/. -I+,> .6>Q 0 -Q. /.> /JE .6>J 0 E6EKL ,KIQ/. +I-/> .6KK 0 -Q. />. >.K .6K, 0,K/ 012345 >K .6J+ 0696�>+ M7@?<<=�?<9:�H79:�9= D;�E- E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = ,JI+E. QI,E+ .6K> 0 +>. /Q- /-J .6>- 0 >6..L ,JI+E. ,,I,.J .6JJ 0 +>. >+/ >K- .6K+ 0,J 012345 >. >6+Q 0696�>+ D;�E- NF:B�7ABCDB E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ DCFC0<9P<97GB=�N7OB�0<DCG@ = E,I-+. QIJE> .6>> 0 ,I.-. >.Q /QJ .6/+ 0 ,6..L E,I-+. ,.I,,K .6>J 0 ,I.-. >/. >,J .6>. 0/> 012345 >. E6.> 0696�>+ NF:B�7ABCDB ;9�,Q� E E D987C DC=FAF=B= 0<DCG@ M<?B@WFCWGMBWMFNN; = E,I-+. +IK-E .6/Q 0 ,I.-. /E, >.> .6/+ 0 /6..L E,I-+. QIQ/- .6>J 0 ,I.-. /-E >J+ .6>> 0

TX32XY5�E.E.

ATTACHMENT B -  Lake and Sumter Counties CMPs

jzaballero
Rectangle

jzaballero
Rectangle

jzaballero
Rectangle



��������	
�������
�����
�������������� ������������ ����������� ���������� ������������������� ��������� ���� �� ������� !"#� ������� ! $� ��%���&������ ��'�����&�����'���� ������������������ (����������� ������������������� ���������'����'�����  !"#�����  !"#�������'&�  !"#���������� ��)���������������������'����'�����  !"#���)�������%&�%�'�����  !"#���)�������%&*%�'�����  !"#���)������'&�  !"#���)��������� ���*������� ���������'����'������� ! $�  ! $����� ! $�������'&�  ! $���������� ��)���������������������'����'������� ! $�  ! $���)�������%&�%�'�����  ! $���)�������%&*%�'�����  ! $���)������'&�  ! $���)���������+, -./012 34 5653 -676�38 -7�+95 7:;-<�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF E=G;�=H�:IE:E@J: > 59K8?4 +KL93 46M3 - 834 ?8M ?33 46M3 - 5644N 59K8?4 9K4+8 46M9 - 834 ?,L ?+9 46M+ -+, :>O:-D;E 34 M65L -676�38 7:;-<�7=:> -7�338: ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - LK+94 +KL93 46L9 - M,4 ?8M ?33 46LM - 5644N LK+94 9K4+8 4684 - M,4 ?,L ?+9 46L9 -?L+ -./012 M4 46L5 -676�+4�RI@;IDE�:CD;@DS -7�MM I7�+4 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T:I-=EED > 54KM94 5K33M 4653 - +M4 544 +L 465, - 36?+N 54KM94 5KLLL 465L - +M4 5?M L4 46?M -98 -./012 3+ 56L3 -676�+4 @I�?L ;�<:;-=-Q�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�TB;;D=J: > 59K8?4 LK,+M 463L - 834 358 ?LL 46+4 - 5644N 59K8?4 8KM+, 46+4 - 834 3M, ?,5 46+? -5+8 -./012 3+ ?63L -676�+4 ;�<:;-=-Q�7=:> -7�3++ ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > ?5KL84 9K+4, 46M4 A 5K4L4 598 3,M 4639 - 56L+N ?5KL84 LK4,, 46MM A 5K4L4 58M +M8 46+4 -9, -./012 3+ 56,? -676�+4 -7�3++� =7:;UD�-=@;EF�JB;D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 9K,MM 4635 - 834 59+ 955 46LM - L6?+N 59K8?4 ,K8M8 46+8 - 834 ?M3 89L 564M H+M -./012 M+ 5648 -676�+44:V�=J>�335 I7�5, >=7:�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�E:C:7DI > 8KM,4 3K+,M 46++ > 8L4 M++ W 4635 - 96L+N 8KM,4 9KM9L 46L9 > 8L4 3,? W 46+L >+M -./012 M+ 5648 -676�+44:V�=J>�335 >=7:�:CD;@D I7�5, ? ? @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�E:C:7DI > 8KM,4 3K+,M 46++ > 8L4 W 3+M 46+? > 96L+N 8KM,4 9KM9L 46L9 > 8L4 W 9?8 46L? >5?+ 55+483 -./012 3+ 56,3 -676�+44:V=J>�335V:JH7D>�IE >=7:�:CD;@D A:F�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�E:C:7DI > 59K8?4 ,K?53 46++ - 834 33, M8, 46+M - +6+4N 59K8?4 5?K43? 46L? - 834 +8L +48 46L4 -5?3 -./012 M+ 46L, -676�+44:V=J>�335 A:F�7=:>� -7�33-�V�D@>=7:�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 54KM94 8KM,4 4685 > +M4 M,3 M35 46L3 > ?6L+N 54KM94 ,K94, 46,M > +M4 3+5 M,5 468+ >5?M -./012 M+ 5649 -676�+44:V=J>�335 -7�33-�V�D@>=7:�>7BCD J:QDI<=7D�>7BCD ? ? @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 53KL94 5+K5M? 564M D L+4 +,8 9,, 46,M > 36?+N 53KL94 58K9MM 56?9 H L+4 LM9 895 565+ H?98 -./012 M+ 46L, -676�+44:V=J>�335 J:QDI<=7D�>7BCD +E<�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 54KM94 54K5L? 46,8 > +M4 389 3?+ 46,? > 56?+N 54KM94 54K8?3 5643 D +M4 +5L 3+? 46,8 >?98 :>O:-D;E ?+ 469M -676�+44:V�+E<�:CD;@D =J>�335 ;�<BU<J:;>�IE7DDE ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 54KM94 54K5L? 46,8 > +M4 389 3?+ 46,? > 56?+N 54KM94 54K8?3 5643 D +M4 +5L 3+? 46,8 >?9, :>O:-D;E M4 46?9 -676�+44:�R<BU<J:;>�IE7DDES +E<�:CD;@D I7�39 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 5MKM?4 ?KL33 46?5 - 984 5?5 554 4658 - 5644N 5MKM?4 ?K883 46?? - 984 5?L 559 465, -,4 55+443 -./012 M+ 46L+ -676�+44:V�=J>�335 I7�39 =7:;UD�-=@;EF�JB;D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 54KM94 3K,+L 4638 - +M4 ??9 ??8 463M - 5644N 54KM94 +K?54 46+4 > +M4 ?M8 ?34 463+ -++ -./012 3+ 569? -676�+95 I7�5, -7�338 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�E:C:7DI > 59K8?4 5MK9?5 4685 - 834 93? 389 46L9 - 3644N 59K8?4 59K+L? 46,, > 834 L85 +,5 46,M -+L -./012 +4 M6,M -676�+95 -7�338 -7�38 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF :IE:E@J:VE:C:7DI > ?5KL84 ,K4,M 463? - 5K4L4 3?, 33? 4635 - 5644N ?5KL84 ,K++L 4633 - 5K4L4 3+5 39+ 463M -94 -./012 34 469M -676�+95 -7�38 I=@E<�:IE:E@J:�-BEF�JBTBE ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF E=G;�=H�:IE:E@J: > 5?KM,4 54K9?M 4689 - 9?4 3+3 +5, 4683 - 36?+N 5?KM,4 5MK485 5649 H 9?4 ++, 9M, 564M H94 :>O:-D;E 34 ?63, -676�+95 I=@E<�:IE:E@J:�-BEF�JBTBE -7�3++ ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > ?5KL84 54K9?M 463, - 5K4L4 3+3 +5, 463, - 36?+N ?5KL84 5MK485 4694 - 5K4L4 ++, 9M, 4694 -95 -./012 M+ 56L3 -676�+95 -7�3++ <=GDF�-7=II�7=:> ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - ,K4M4 LK454 46L8 - 3L4 M+5 M4M 46L+ - 36+4N ,K4M4 8KLM9 46,L - 3L4 3ML ML8 46,M -9M -./012 34 56LL -676�+95 <=GDF�-7=II�7=:> E@7;PBQD�7=:>�V�-7�+95: ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - 5?K?94 8KM45 4698 - 934 3M5 M+5 469L - +644N 5?K?94 54K+,3 4689 - 934 ++4 338 4689 -M9 -./012 3+ 4639 -676�+95�V�-676�+95: E@7;PBQD�7=:>�V�-7�+95:� @I�?L ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5?KM,4 ,KM33 46L+ - 9?4 34+ 3?8 469, - 56+4N 5?KM,4 54K499 4685 - 9?4 3M9 395 46L3 -?L, -./012 M4 56L8 D:IE�:CDVJ:QD�TB;;D=J:�>7VT:B;�:CD @I�?L D:IE�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -JD7T=;EVTB;;D=J: > 53K494 5K85? 465M - L54 +L 54? 4653 - 5644N 53K494 5K,43 4653 - L54 94 54L 465+ -?L, :>O:-D;E M4 564+ 8E<�IEV=I-D=J:�IEV3E<�IEV-:77=J�IEVM7>�IEV=7:;UD�:CD D:IE�:CD;@D G�TB;;D=J:�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 54KM94 5K85? 465L - +M4 +L 54? 465, - 5644N 54KM94 5K,43 4658 - +M4 94 54L 46?4 -4 55+49+ I1X1Y W 463? -676�+95�RG�TB;;D=J:�:CD;@DS 8E<�IE7DDE -676�+95: ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 5?KM,4 8+4 464L - 9?4 3L +9 464, - 5644N 5?KM,4 8,M 464L - 9?4 3, +, 4654 -ML :>O:-D;E M+ 46?M -676�+95 -676�+95: I7�+4 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 53K494 MK555 46?? - L54 5?8 5+? 46?5 - M644N 53K494 MK94L 46?9 - L54 538 5L9 46?+ -5L9 -./012 ?+ 36M5 -676�+95 I7�+4 J=U�<=@ID�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 53K494 9KM93 463+ - L54 ?L3 M45 463? - M644N 53K494 LKML8 46+? > L54 M58 M3, 463, -54? -./012 ++ 56+9 -676�+95 J=U�<=@ID�7=:> HJ=7B>:�A=FI�7:;-<�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 MK59+ 465, - 834 5?8 5L, 46?5 - 5644N 59K8?4 MKM?9 46?4 - 834 5M+ 588 46?? -5M, -./012 ++ +68L -676�+95 HJ=7B>:�A=FI�7:;-<�7=:> I7�MM ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - LK+94 ?K535 46?8 A M,4 55? 88 46?, A L6L+N LK+94 MK554 4635 A M,4 59M 5?8 463? A9? -./012 ++ 5659 -676�+95: E@7;PBQD�7=:>�V�-7�+95 I-7@A�O:F�J; ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5?KM,4 3K885 46M, - 9?4 ?94 5,9 463? - 536L+N 5?KM,4 ,KL55 46L8 - 9?4 +5L M,4 468M -93 -./012 ++ 469, -676�+95: I-7@A�O:F�J; ;�<:;-=-Q�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > ?5KL84 +K3L4 46?+ A 5K4L4 5L, M44 46?8 A 5L6?+N ?5KL84 5?K5?5 46+9 - 5K4L4 M,L 99+ 469? -93 :>O:-D;E ++ 56ML -676�+95: ;�<:;-=-Q�7=:> -7�3++ ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > ?5KL84 +K3L4 46?+ A 5K4L4 5L, M44 46?8 A 5L6?+N ?5KL84 5?K5?5 46+9 - 5K4L4 M,L 99+ 469? -ML -./012 M+ 569, -676�+95 G�TB;;D=J:�:CD -676�+9+: ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5MKM?4 MK555 46?M - 984 5?8 5+? 46?? - M644N 5MKM?4 MK94L 46?L - 984 538 5L9 46?9 -?4L -./012 34 569L -676�+95: -7�+9+:� O:J:7TF�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 9K9?L 46M, - 834 MM4 ?+5 46M, - +6+4N 59K8?4 8K995 46+5 - 834 3M5 M?8 46+5 -99 -./012 34 5655 -676�+95�RJ:QD�TB;;D=J:�I<=7DIS O:J:7TF�7=:> @I�?L ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�TB;;D=J: > 59K8?4 54K45M 4694 - 834 M3+ 39, 46+9 - ?6?+N 59K8?4 55K5,5 469L - 834 M89 +?3 469? -M+ -./012 ++ L645 -676�+9+ @I�?L� QODJJIE7=T�J:;D ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF U7=CDJ:;>VT:I-=EED - 53KL94 ?K4ML 4653 A LL4 55L 9L 465+ A 54644N 53KL94 MK?85 46?? A LL4 588 548 46?3 A?49 -./012 34 469M -676�+9+�RCBJJ:�-BEF�7=:>S QODJJIE7=T�J:;D I7�+4 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�U7=CDJ:;> > 59K8?4 3K989 46?8 - 834 ?44 ?5M 46?+ - +6?+N 59K8?4 9K4+? 46M9 - 834 ?+8 ?L+ 46MM -4 55849M :>O:-D;E 3+ 56,9 -676�+9+ I7�+4 IJ=:;I�7B>UD ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T:I-=EED > 59K8?4 8L+ 464+ - 834 M9 3M 464+ - 96+4N 59K8?4 5K5,, 464L - 834 3, +, 464L -4 55849M I1X1Y 3+ +633 -676�+9+ IJ=:;I�7B>UD J:QD�D7BD�7=:> ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - LK+94 8L+ 465? A M,4 M9 3M 4655 A 96+4N LK+94 5K5,, 4659 A M,4 3, +, 465+ A5M9 -./012 34 ?6L8 -676�+9+: I7�+4 -7�+95: ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -JD7T=;EVU7=CDJ:;> > 59K8?4 ,K?LM 46++ - 834 M85 MML 463+ - 5644N 59K8?4 ,KL39 46+8 - 834 344 M+3 4638 -5ML -./012 ++ 3694 -676�+9+: I7�+4 -7�+9+A ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�U7=CDJ:;> > ?5KL84 ?KM?3 4655 A 5K4L4 95 5?3 465? A 5644N ?5KL84 ?K33M 4655 A 5K4L4 93 5M4 465? A5M8 -./012 3+ M699 -676�+9+A I7�MM -7�+95 ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - LK+94 5KL+3 46?M A M,4 8, 85 46?M A 5644N LK+94 5K83M 46?3 A M,4 ,3 8+ 46?3 A??L -./012 ?+ 46M4 -:;:J�IE7DDE @I�335 T:B;�IE7DDE ? ? @7A:; >BCB>D> -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U > 5MK,,4 MKL9+ 46?L - L54 58+ 5?9 46?9 - 5644N 5MK,,4 MK,+L 46?8 - L54 5,3 5M? 46?L -??8 -./012 ?+ 46M5 -:;:J�IE7DDE T:B;�IE7DDE I7�33 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U > 5MKM?4 MK59, 46?3 - 984 5M? 55L 465, - 5644N 5MKM?4 MKMM5 46?+ - 984 5M, 5?M 46?4 -5L8 -./012 M+ 5684 -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> @I�?L =:QJDF�ID:CD7�>7BCD ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 53K494 5?K888 46,? > L54 9M4 338 468, > 5644N 53K494 5MK+3+ 46,9 > L54 99? 3L5 46,M >59, -./012 M4 463L -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> =:QJDF�ID:CD7�>7BCD I7�+4 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > ?,K594 5+K+85 46+M > 5K3L4 +LL 953 463? - 5644N ?,K594 59KML9 46+9 > 5K3L4 949 93+ 4633 -5,L -./012 34 46?8 -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> I7�+4 <==QI�IE7DDE 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > M+K8?4 5,K+58 46+3 - 5K844 +85 ,3M 46+? - ?6?+N M+K8?4 ?5K85+ 4695 - 5K844 93, 5K4+3 46+, -?84 -./012 M4 5659 -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> <==QI�IE7DDE O=<;I�J:QD�7=:> 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > M4KL84 58K3,8 4694 > 5K++4 844 +,+ 46+? > 56L+N M4KL84 ?4K5L3 4699 > 5K++4 8L? 93, 46+9 >?8M -./012 34 4694 -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> O=<;I�J:QD�7=:> @I�?L 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > MLK854 5+K?9L 4634 - 5K,44 LML 393 46M, - 56?+N MLK854 59K?3+ 463M - 5K,44 L83 3,3 4635 -598 :>O:-D;E M+ 46,+ >:CB>�G:JQD7�>7BCD =J>�@I�335�V�-7�+44: -7�5,: ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�E:C:7DI > 53K494 8K??4 46+8 > L54 M9L ?,, 46+? > ?6L+N 53K494 ,K353 469L > L54 3?4 M3? 46+, >598 -./012 M+ 4633 >:CB>�G:JQD7�>7BCD -7�5,: @I�335 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 53K494 8K??4 46+8 > L54 M9L ?,, 46+? > ?6L+N 53K494 ,K353 469L > L54 3?4 M3? 46+, >5+9 -./012 M+ 46+M >:CB>�G:JQD7�>7BCD @I�335 T=@;E�<=TD7�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 53K494 +K9,3 4634 - L54 ?5? ?9M 46ML - ?6+4N 53K494 9K33? 4639 - L54 ?34 ?,8 463? -5+L -./012 ?4 46L3 >:CB>�G:JQD7�>7BCD T=@;E�<=TD7�7=:> HJB;QI�:CDVQ@7E�:CD ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 +K++M 46+3 > +M4 MM5 58+ 469? > ?644N 54KM94 9K5M5 46+, > +M4 M9+ ?43 469, >?M3 55L453 -./012 M+ ?6?, >D:>�7BCD7�7=:> GDIE�ED7TB;B� I7�5, ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�E:C:7DI > ?5KL84 LK4?4 46M? A 5K4L4 ?38 M5+ 46?, A 5644N ?5KL84 LKML8 46M3 A 5K4L4 ?95 MM5 46M5 A89 -./012 M+ 56?+ >=;;DJJF�IE7DDE @I�335 55E<�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; >BCB>D> -BEF�=H�TE6�>=7: -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 53KL94 55K??4 46L9 > L+4 +53 3++ 469, > M6L+N 53KL94 5MK388 46,5 > L+4 958 +3L 468? >89 :>O:-D;E M+ 46M8 >=;;DJJF�IE7DDE 55E<�:CD;@D +E<�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�TE6�>=7: -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 54KM94 55K??4 5648 H +M4 +53 3++ 46,L > M6L+N 54KM94 5MK388 56M4 H +M4 958 +3L 565L H+8 -./012 ++ 4693 >@>:�7=:> -7�338:� =7:;UD�-=@;EF�JB;D ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - ,K4M4 9K59M 4698 - 3L4 ?+9 M5L 469L - L644N ,K4M4 8K933 46,9 - 3L4 M+, 33+ 46,+ -55? -./012 34 563M D:UJDI�;DIE�7=:> @I�?L -7�399A ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5?KM,4 MKLM9 46M4 - 9?4 ?44 5M? 46M? - 36?+N 5?KM,4 3K944 46ML - 9?4 ?39 59M 4634 -?L8 -./012 M4 46LM D:IE�:CD;@D -7�+95 I7�+4 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 54KM94 +K835 46+9 > +M4 ?L+ ?9L 46+? > M644N 54KM94 9KLL5 469+ > +M4 M5, M54 4694 >8L :>O:-D;E ?+ 468+ D:IE�-7==QD>�J:QD�7=:> J:QDCBDG�>7BCD A7=:>CBDG�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 +K5,? 46+4 > +M4 ?L+ 5,, 46+? > L644N 54KM94 LK?8? 46L4 > +M4 M89 ?L, 46LM >8L -./012 ?+ 46L8 D:IE�-7==QD>�J:QD�7=:> A7=:>CBDG�:CD;@D @I�335 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 +K5,? 46+4 > +M4 ?L+ 5,, 46+? > L644N 54KM94 LK?8? 46L4 > +M4 M89 ?L, 46LM >?8 -./012 M+ 46LL DTD7:J>:�:CD;@D DTD7:J>:�BIJ:;>�7=:> -7�33 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5MKM?4 MK9LM 46?8 - 984 ?4+ 5?M 46M4 - ?6+4N 5MKM?4 3K5+9 46M5 - 984 ?M? 5M, 46M3 -?9 -./012 34 36?9 DTPB7D�-<@7-<�7=:> -7�+9+ :;>D7I=;�7=:> ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�U7=CDJ:;> - LK+94 5K33? 465, A M,4 33 54+ 46?L A M644N LK+94 5K9L? 46?? A M,4 +5 5?? 46M5 A5?9 :>O:-D;E 34 46L9 DIEDI�7=:> -7�33:� J:QD�JB;-=J;�J:;D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5+K,M4 MK3+9 46?? - L,4 ?M3 5+8 46M4 - ?6+4N 5+K,M4 MK,54 46?+ - L,4 ?9+ 5L, 46M3 -5?9 -./012 34 463, DIEDI�7=:> J:QD�JB;-=J;�J:;D I7�33 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 MK3+9 46?5 - 834 ?M3 5+8 46?8 - ?6+4N 59K8?4 MK,54 46?M - 834 ?9+ 5L, 46M? -?94 -./012 M+ 46+? D@>=7:�7=:> =J>�TE�>=7:�7=:> @I�335 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 ?K,,8 46?, - +M4 535 535 46?L - 5644N 54KM94 MK5+5 46M4 - +M4 538 538 46?8 -?8? -./012 M+ 46LM DZ-:JJBA@7�7=:> <==QI�IE7DDE -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> ? ? @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 53KL94 3K9+5 46M? - L+4 ?4M 59L 46?L - 86+4N 53KL94 9K,,3 463L - L+4 M4+ ?+5 4635 -?58 -./012 M+ 469M HBI<�-:TP�7=:> -7�3+?� -7�33 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 54KM94 5K+4+ 465+ - +M4 8? 93 465+ - 56?+N 54KM94 5K945 465+ - +M4 8L 98 4659 -?89 -./012 34 569, U7:IIF�J:QD�7=:>VH=IU:ED�7=:> -7�+4�RG:I<B;UE=;�IE7DDES <:;-=-Q�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 3K495 46?3 - 834 58? ??, 46?L - ,6L+N 59K8?4 9K399 46M8 - 834 ?,4 M9+ 463M -?+5 -./012 M4 46M, U=JHJB;QI�:CD;@D Q@7E�IE7DDE I7�5,�V�A:F�IE7DDE ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 ,34 464, - +M4 3M 38 464, - ?6?+N 54KM94 5K4+5 4654 - +M4 38 +3 4654 -4 ;=�-=@;E W 46M8 U=JHJB;QI�:CD;@D I7�5,�V�A:F�IE7DDE T:7F�IE7DDE ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 5?KM,4 W W W 9?4 W W W W 5?KM,4 W W W 9?4 W W W A?L -./012 3+ 5689 U==ID�P7:B7BD�7=:> DTD7:J>:�:CD;@D -7�3+? ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5?KM,4 ?KL9M 46?? - 9?4 593 54+ 46?9 - 36?+N 5?KM,4 MK34? 46?L - 9?4 ?4? 5?, 46MM -54, -./012 M+ 56?M U7:;>�<BU<G:F -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> I7�+4 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 53K494 9K33M 4639 - L54 ?L5 ?+4 46M8 - 5644N 53K494 9KLL? 4638 - L54 ?8+ ?9M 4634 -?,4 -./012 ?+ 46?9 I6�U7:;>�<BU<G:F I7�+4 <==QI�IE7DDE 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > ?,K594 9K?4M 46?5 - 5K3L4 ?L4 ?55 4658 - 5644N ?,K594 9K+5, 46?? - 5K3L4 ?83 ??? 465, -5,+ -./012 34 5699 -BE7@I�U7=CD�7=:> @I�?L U7:IIF�J:QD�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�TB;;D=J: > 5?KM,4 5K+83 465M - 9?4 85 +9 465M - 546+4N 5?KM,4 ?K954 46?5 - 9?4 5MM ,? 46?5 -8 55L44L :>O:-D;E 3+ 56L9 U7:FI�:B7P=7E�7=:> T:7B=;�-=@;EF�7=:> -7�399� ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5?KM,4 ?K3?+ 46?4 - 9?4 5+9 ,L 46?+ - M6?+N 5?KM,4 ?K839 46?M - 9?4 58M 553 46M4 -8 55L44L -./012 3+ 56?+ U7:FI�:B7P=7E�7=:> -7�399� U7BHHB;�CBDG�>7BCD ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5?KM,4 ?K3?+ 46?4 - 9?4 5+9 ,L 46?+ - M6?+N 5?KM,4 ?K839 46?M - 9?4 58M 553 46M4 -?5+ 55L44L -./012 3+ 56L+ I�U7:FI�:B7P=7E�7=:> U7BHHB;�CBDG�>7BCD D:UJDI�;DIE�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5?KM,4 ?K??+ 4658 - 9?4 L, 5?L 46?4 - +6+4N 5?KM,4 ?K,48 46?M - 9?4 54M 599 46?L -?59 -./012 3+ 563M I�U7:FI�:B7P=7E�7=:> D:UJDI�;DIE�7=:> @I�?L�V�@I�35? ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF H7@BEJ:;>�P:7Q > 5?KM,4 L89 4649 - 9?4 +5 ?9 4648 - ?6L+N 5?KM,4 ,44 464L - 9?4 +8 M4 464, -?44 55L448 -./012 M+ 468+ U7BHHB;�:CD;@D @I�?L�V�@I�355 -7�?+ ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF E=G;�=H�J:>F�J:QD > 5MKM?4 ,K58? 469, > 984 ?L+ +?+ 46LL > 5644N 5MKM?4 ,K9+4 46L? > 984 ?8, ++? 4685 >M -./012 M+ 565, U7BHHB;�:CD;@D -7�?+ @;-JD�>=;:J>I�J:;D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF E=G;�=H�J:>F�J:QD > 54KM94 ?K9+3 46?9 - +M4 553 55+ 46?? - M644N 54KM94 MK4LL 46M4 - +M4 5M? 5MM 46?+ -M :>O:-D;E M+ 5699 U7BHHB;�:CD;@D @;-JD�>=;:J>I�J:;D U7:FI�:B7P=7E�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 54KM94 ?K9+3 46?9 - +M4 553 55+ 46?? - M644N 54KM94 MK4LL 46M4 - +M4 5M? 5MM 46?+ -??3 -./012 ?+ 46+5 U7BHHB;�7=:> @I�?L JDD�IE7DDE ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U > 5MKM?4 ?K495 465+ - 984 LL ,9 4653 - 5644N 5MKM?4 ?K599 4659 - 984 85 545 465+ -L -./012 3+ 568+ U7BHHB;�CBDG�>7BCD @I�?L U7:FI�:B7P=7E�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF E=G;�=H�J:>F�J:QD > 5?KM,4 MK+L, 46?, - 9?4 ?58 554 46M+ - 5644N 5?KM,4 MKL9? 46M4 - 9?4 ??, 559 46ML -, -./012 3+ 5693 U7BHHB;�CBDG�>7BCD U7:FI�:B7P=7E�7=:> I@JD;�7=:> ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - ,K4M4 5KL5+ 465, - 3L4 543 9, 46?? - 5644N ,K4M4 5K84? 46?4 - 3L4 54, LM 46?M -?+L -./012 M4 46M9 U7=CD�IE7DDE I7�5,�RA:>UD7�:CD;@DS J:QDCBDG�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 5K3L+ 4653 - +M4 ?M 543 46?4 - 5644N 54KM94 5K++4 465+ - +M4 ?3 54, 46?5 -?+9 -./012 M4 46ML U7=CD�IE7DDE J:QDCBDG�:CD;@D U=JHJB;QI�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 ?K+95 46?+ - +M4 5+8 L4 46M4 - 5644N 54KM94 ?K9,? 46?9 - +M4 599 L3 46M5 -?++ 55L45L -./012 ?+ 46+4 U7=CD�IE7DDE U=JHJB;QI�:CD;@D =J>�TE�>=7:�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 MKLMM 46M9 - +M4 5M+ ?35 463+ - 56+4N 54KM94 3K4?? 46M, - +M4 53+ ?94 463, -?83 -./012 M+ ?653 <:TT=-Q�7B>UD� J:QD�I<=7D�>7BCD� @I�?L 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > +,K434 53K,+5 46?+ A ?K,?4 855 3,5 46?8 A 56+4N +,K434 59K549 46?L A ?K,?4 8L3 +?, 46M4 AM5? -./012 3+ 56L4 ;6�<:;-=-Q�7=:> -676�+95: I7�,5�RHJ=7B>:�E@7;PBQDS ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 5+K,M4 +K,5L 46ML - L,4 ?4M ML? 463L - 5644N 5+K,M4 9K?5, 46M, - L,4 ?5M M,5 463, -M5M -./012 3+ 56,L ;6�<:;-=-Q�7=:> I7�,5�RHJ=7B>:�E@7;PBQDS =J>�<GF�+4�RGS 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > M+K8?4 ,K+54 46?L - 5K844 ??8 L?, 4635 - 54644N M+K8?4 5+KM59 463M - 5K844 M9L 5K5L3 469+ -M5M :>O:-D;E 3+ 46?8 ;6�<:;-=-Q�7=:> =J>�<GF�+4�RDS =J>�<GF�+4�RDS 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > M+K8?4 ,K+54 46?L - 5K844 ??8 L?, 4635 - 54644N M+K8?4 5+KM59 463M - 5K844 M9L 5K5L3 469+ -?4, -./012 M+ 46?, ;6�<:;-=-Q�7=:> =J>�<GF�+4�RDS ;�7B>UD�A=@JDC:7> 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > M4KL84 5+K9M3 46+5 > 5K++4 9+8 L+L 463, > +644N M4KL84 5,K,+M 469+ > 5K++4 834 ,99 469? >5L, -./012 3+ 56+4 ;6�<:;-=-Q�7=:> ;�7B>UD�A=@JDC:7> I7�+4 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > MLK854 5LK5L5 463+ - 5K,44 9LM L?? 46M8 - 56+4N MLK854 58K3,8 463, - 5K,44 L?+ LL8 4635 -59+ -./012 3+ 46?+ I6�<:;-=-Q�7=:> I7�+4� <==QI�IE7DDE 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > M+K8?4 ?4KL8? 46+8 - 5K844 L43 ,9? 46+M - ?644N M+K8?4 ??K,3+ 4693 - 5K844 LLL 5K49? 46+, -59+ :>O:-D;E 3+ 56?M I6�<:;-=-Q�7=:> <==QI�IE7DDE O=<;I�J:QD�7=:> ? ? @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5LK994 ?4KL8? 5658 H 884 L43 ,9? 564, H ?644N 5LK994 ??K,3+ 56M4 H 884 LLL 5K49? 56?5 H584 -./012 3+ 56L+ I6�<:;-=-Q�7=:> O=<;I�J:QD�7=:> <:7EG==>�T:7I<�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 59K8?4 55K4+9 4699 - 834 3M, 3,, 46+, - 96L+N 59K8?4 5+KM?9 46,5 - 834 94, 9,? 468? -539 -./012 34 46L4 <:7EG==>�T:7I<�7=:> @I�?L <:;-=-Q�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 5+K,M4 59K+55 5643 H L,4 9?9 L3L 46,+ - 36L+N 5+K,M4 ?4K8?M 56M5 H L,4 L8, ,3? 565, H:CU�R539K5+4S :CD7:UD 34 5635 <:7EG==>�T:7I<�7=:> <:;-=-Q�7=:> ;6�,4�>DU7DD�AD;> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 5MK8++ 468? - 834 L4+ +54 4683 - ;V: 59K8?4 59K,43 5644 H 834 8+4 9?, 5645 H5+4 -./012 34 ?63L <:7EG==>�T:7I<�7=:> ;6�,4�>DU7DD�AD;> =7:;UD�-=@;EF�JB;D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > ?5KL84 55K?44 46+5 - 5K4L4 L8+ ?LM 46LM > M644N ?5KL84 5?K,83 4694 - 5K4L4 ,54 M59 468+ >?93 -./012 M4 46L+ <:IDJE=;�IE7DDE I7�33 J:QDCBDG�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 5K939 4659 - +M4 LL ,4 465L - 5644N 54KM94 5KLM4 465L - +M4 85 ,+ 4658 -?9, -./012 ?+ 5645 <BU<J:;>�IE7DDE JBTBE�:CD;@D� +E<�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�T=@;E�>=7: > 54KM94 ?KL33 46?9 - +M4 5?5 554 46?M - 5644N 54KM94 ?K883 46?8 - +M4 5?L 559 46?3 -59M -./012 M4 46M+ <==QI�IE7DDE J:QDI<=7D�>7BCD @I�?L ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 54KM94 LK953 46LM > +M4 ML? ?84 46L4 > 36L+N 54KM94 ,K94? 46,M > +M4 39, M+M 4688 >?85 -./012 34 4683 <==QI�IE7DDE @I�?L =:QJDF�ID:CD7�>7BCD 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > M+K8?4 54K45+ 46?8 - 5K844 ML+ 3M4 46?3 - ?6L+N M+K8?4 55K3L4 46M? - 5K844 3?, 3,? 46?L -?8, -./012 M+ 46?L <==QI�IE7DDE =:QJDF�ID:CD7�>7BCD -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > ?,K594 5MK8+8 4638 > 5K3L4 9L4 3M3 4639 > +6+4N ?,K594 58K55? 469? > 5K3L4 8L9 +9L 4694 >58+ -./012 M+ 564+ <==QI�IE7DDE -BE7@I�E=GD7�A=@JDC:7> <:;-=-Q�7=:> 3 3 @7A:; >BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > ?,K594 54KL58 46ML - 5K3L4 +49 M?3 46M3 - 5644N ?,K594 55K?9+ 46M, - 5K3L4 +M? M35 46M9 -583 55L4?5 -./012 M+ 46+, <@HHIEDEJD7�>7BCD >:CB>�G:JQD7�>7BCD Q@7E�IE7DDE ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 5K59, 4655 - +M4 L+ +4 4653 - +6?+N 54KM94 5K+54 465+ - +M4 ,L 9+ 4658 -53M -./012 M+ 46M+ O:J:7TF�7=:> -7�3L8 -7�+95:� ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 54KM94 +K494 463, - +M4 599 ?+, 463, - M644N 54KM94 +K899 46+L > +M4 5,? M44 46+L >5L4 -./012 M+ 56+L O=<;I�J:QD�7=:> @I�?L <:;-=-Q�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF -BEF�=H�-JD7T=;E > 53K494 9K594 4633 - L54 ?3L ?+8 46M9 - 5644N 53K494 9K3L3 4639 - L54 ?94 ?L5 46M8 -?3, -./012 M+ 46?+ Q@7E�IE7DDE G�J:QDCBDG�:CD;@D >:CB>�G:JQD7�>7BCD ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 54KM94 8KL54 4683 > +M4 +?+ ?84 46,, > M644N 54KM94 54K4,L 46,L > +M4 94, M?+ 565+ H?38 -./012 M+ 46+4 Q@7E�IE7DDE >:CB>�G:JQD7�>7BCD TE�<=TD7�7=:>�V�G�:7>B-D�:CD;@D ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 53K494 3KMM3 46M5 - L54 5L? ?ML 46MM - ?6+4N 53K494 3K,43 46M+ - L54 5,+ ?98 46M8 -?3L -./012 M+ 463? Q@7E�IE7DDE TE�<=TD7�7=:>�V�G�:7>B-D�:CD;@D @I�335 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�D@IEBI -BEF�=H�D@IEBI > 53K494 +K+5? 46M, - L54 ?+5 ?L4 46M8 - 5644N 53K494 +KL,M 4635 - L54 ?93 ?83 4634 -?5M -./012 ?+ 463+ G�J:>F�J:QD�A=@JDC:7> GDIE�ED7TB;B @I�?LV@I335 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> E=G;�=H�J:>F�J:QD E=G;�=H�J:>F�J:QD > 54KM94 5K?,8 465M - +M4 95 M9 465? - 5644N 54KM94 5KM93 465M - +M4 93 M8 465? -?53 -./012 ?+ 46,9 D�J:>F�J:QD�A=@JDC:7> @I�?LV@I335 AD7-<HBDJ>�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF E=G;�=H�J:>F�J:QD > 54KM94 +9? 464+ - +M4 M4 ?3 4649 - 36L+N 54KM94 L4, 464L - +M4 M8 M4 464L -?39 -./012 M+ 46+9 H:B7CBDG�:CD;@D =J>�335V�-7�+44: J:QDI<=7D�>7BCD ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 54KM94 984 464L - +M4 35 ?M 4648 - 5644N 54KM94 L5+ 464L - +M4 3M ?3 4648 -?4? ;=�-=@;E 34 4693 J:QD�>7BCD I7�33 -=@;E7F�7=:> ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - ,K4M4 W W W 3L4 W W W A ,K4M4 W W W 3L4 W W W A58L -./012 M+ 46+4 J:QD�DJJ:�7=:> I@TED7�-=@;EF�JB;D TB-7=�7:-DE7:-Q�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 54KM94 5K,5? 4658 - +M4 5?+ 9+ 46?3 - 54644N 54KM94 MK4L, 46M4 - +M4 ?45 54+ 46M8 -589 :>O:-D;E M+ 46+5 J:QD�DJJ:�7=:> TB-7=�7:-DE7:-Q�7=:> 7=JJB;U�:-7DI�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 54KM94 5K,3, 465, - +M4 MM9 345 46L9 > 5644N 54KM94 ?K438 46?4 - +M4 M+M 3?5 46L, >589 -./012 3+ 56,5 J:QD�DJJ:�7=:> 7=JJB;U�:-7DI�7=:> @I�?L ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 5K,3, 465? - 834 54L 9, 465M - 5644N 59K8?4 ?K438 465? - 834 55? LM 465M -34 -./012 M+ +645 J:QD�D7BD�7=:> -7�+9+ I7�MM ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - LK+94 9MM 4648 A M,4 ?9 34 4654 A 5644N LK+94 99+ 464, A M,4 ?L 3? 4655 A?3? -./012 M+ 56+, J:QD�D@IEBI�>7BCD @I�335 -J:F�A=@JDC:7> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF D@IEBIVE:C:7DI > 53K494 9K8?5 463, - L54 M?M M53 463+ - +6?+N 53K494 8K854 469M > L54 35L 349 46+, >53+ -./012 34 ?6+L J:QD�J=@BI:�7=:> J:QDI<=7D�>7BCD CBIE:�>DJ�J:U=�A=@JDC:7> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > ?5KL84 MKL5, 465L A 5K4L4 5L4 595 4659 A 56L+N ?5KL84 3K4+9 465, A 5K4L4 58+ 5L9 465L A5+5 -./012 M+ 565M J:QD�J=@BI:�7=:> CBIE:�>DJ�J:U=�A=@JDC:7> @I�?L ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 53K494 MK+8M 46?+ - L54 89 ?49 46?, - 5644N 53K494 MKL99 46?L - L54 ,4 ?5L 46M5 -5,, -./012 ?+ 5654 J:QD�T:-Q�>7BCD -7�3? :;=E<D7�:;;:�7=:> ? ? 7@7:J @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF - ,K4M4 5K+5+ 465L - 3L4 35 ,9 46?4 - 5644N ,K4M4 5K+,? 4658 - 3L4 3M 545 46?5 -??, -./012 ?+ 46?4 J:QD�IE7DDE @I�335 T:B;�IE7DDE ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U > 54KM94 MK4L3 46M4 - +M4 549 5?, 46?3 - ?6+4N 54KM94 MK3L8 46M3 - +M4 5?4 539 46?8 -?M4 -./012 ?+ 46M5 J:QD�IE7DDE T:B;�IE7DDE I7�33 ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U -BEF�=H�JDDIA@7U > 54KM94 MK?M+ 46M5 - +M4 55? 5?M 46?M - 5644N 54KM94 MK344 46MM - +M4 558 5?, 46?3 -M, -./012 3+ 56++ J:QDI<=7D�>7BCD�R-JD7S -7�+95 =IG:JE�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 ?KL+L 4659 - 834 5?5 5M? 4659 - 96+4N 59K8?4 MKLLL 46?? - 834 599 585 46?? -5LL -./012 3+ 569? J:QDI<=7D�>7BCD�R-JD7S =IG:JE�7=:> <:7>D7�7=:> ? ? @7A:; @;>BCB>D> -=@;EF @;B;-=7P=7:ED>�J:QD�-=@;EF > 59K8?4 54K,+3 469+ - 834 954 M99 46LM - 36+4N 59K8?4 5MK9+5 4685 - 834 L94 3+9 46,4 -

OX0/X[2�?4?4

ATTACHMENT B -  Lake and Sumter Counties CMPs

jzaballero
Rectangle



��������	
�������
�����
�������������� ������������ ����������� ���������� ������������������� ��������� ���� �� ������� !"#� ������� ! $� ��%���&������ ��'�����&�����'���� ������������������ (����������� ������������������� ���������'����'�����  !"#�����  !"#�������'&�  !"#���������� ��)���������������������'����'�����  !"#���)�������%&�%�'�����  !"#���)�������%&*%�'�����  !"#���)������'&�  !"#���)��������� ���*������� ���������'����'������� ! $�  ! $����� ! $�������'&�  ! $���������� ��)���������������������'����'������� ! $�  ! $���)�������%&�%�'�����  ! $���)�������%&*%�'�����  ! $���)������'&�  ! $���)���������+, -./012 34 4567 89:;<=>?;�@?AB;�C-8;?D =9?@;?�?>9@ 89:;�8>EA<9�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L6M,F4 L6MLNF 45O6 @ ,34 36N ,6F L54+ P L544Q L6M,F4 L6MO76 L54L P ,34 3,O O46 L54, PF,N -./012 +N 457N 89:;<=>?;�@?AB;�C-8;?D 89:;�8>EA<9�?>9@ 9H@;?<>H�=A88�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L+M+F4 7MONN 4564 @ 6,4 33, FN4 4566 @ F57NQ L+M+F4 OMLLL 456, @ 6,4 NL+ F,6 457N @3O -./012 +N L56N 89:;<=>?;�@?AB;�C;E<IA<D -89J�G>E8;B9?@ <>EI=�G9J�<I?;;I�R�<?�LO�<G F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L4M+64 NM,73 45N7 @ N+4 +L, FFN 4564 @ F5N4Q L4M+64 6M636 4563 @ N+4 +64 FNN 456, @FN4 -./012 +N 453+ S�89:;BA;S�9B;HE; :E?I�<I?;;I <?�LO F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L4M+64 7M74L 4573 @ N+4 36L F6N 45,7 @ F5N4Q L4M+64 ,M7L+ 45,3 @ N+4 NFF +44 45O, @FNO -./012 +4 456N ;�89:;BA;S�9B;HE; <?�LO� T9<UAH;�<I?;;I�R�-?>>:;@�89:;�-> F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L4M+64 FM6,O 45F6 - N+4 L7N LF3 45++ - L544Q L4M+64 FM,F6 45F7 - N+4 L,3 L+4 45+N -FNO 9@T9-;HI +4 45+3 ;�89:;BA;S�9B;HE; T9<UAH;�<I?;;I�R�-?>>:;@�89:;�-> =9<;8I>H�<I?;;I F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L4M+64 FM6,O 45F6 - N+4 L7N LF3 45++ - L544Q L4M+64 FM,F6 45F7 - N+4 L,3 L+4 45+N -L3O -./012 +N 456F 89H;�K9?:�-EI>PP <?�LO -?�N6L F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< @ L+M+F4 FMLO+ 45L6 - 6,4 LF, F4F 45+4 - 35FNQ L+M+F4 FM744 45F4 - 6,4 LN, F3O 45+7 -FFN -./012 FN 4573 8;;�<I?;;I V?APPAH�?>9@ E<�33L F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L4M+64 FMF33 45FF - N+4 LF+ O, 45F+ - L544Q L4M+64 FM+N, 45F+ - N+4 LFO L4+ 45F3 -FF6 -./012 FN 45N4 8;;�<I?;;I E<�33L U9AH�<I?;;I F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L4M+64 FMN++ 45F3 - N+4 LLO LF6 45F3 - L544Q L4M+64 FM66F 45F6 - N+4 LFN L+F 45FN -LO+ -./012 34 45+N SA8<>H�89:;�K9?:S9J E<�F7 8AGGJ�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ LNMO+4 FM3FO 45LN - 7O4 7L L+4 45L6 - 357NQ LNMO+4 +M46+ 45LO - 7O4 O4 L63 45FL -F74 LL744N -./012 +N 45OO 8AUAI�9B;HE; @>HH;88J�<I?;;I E<�33L F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�U>EHI�@>?9 @ L4M+64 +M4,, 45+4 - N+4 L+O L3F 45F7 - N57NQ L4M+64 3M4,3 45+O - N+4 L,3 L,, 45+N -FF+ -./012 FN 457L 8>H;�>9:�@?AB; U9AH�<I?;;I <?�33 F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L4M+64 +MFF7 45+L - N+4 L66 L,O 45+6 - L544Q L4M+64 +M+OF 45++ - N+4 L73 LOO 45+, -L33 -./012 +N 45,7 8>V�=>E<;�?>9@ -?�N6L 89:;<=>?;�@?AB; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L4M+64 +MF,N 45+F - N+4 L,L L+N 45+3 - +544Q L4M+64 +M,4, 45+7 - N+4 FL4 LN7 4534 -F+7 -./012 FN 4573 ;�U9AH�<I?;;I <?�LO -?�3NFR�<I�-89A?�9G?9U<�<I?;;I F F E?G9H @ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< @ L+MOO4 7MF3O 45NF @ 7L4 +7O F6, 45N+ @ L544Q L+MOO4 7M6LO 45N3 @ 7L4 +O, F,F 45N6 @L44 9@T9-;HI 3N 4576 U9AH�<I?;;I�C8;;<GE?VD -?�36, I=>U9<�9B;HE; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L6M,F4 L4M677 456+ - ,34 3N, N4L 4564 - L544Q L6M,F4 LLMFFF 4567 - ,34 3,L NF7 456+ -L44 -./012 +N L54+ U9AH�<I?;;I�C8;;<GE?VD I=>U9<�9B;HE; E<�F7 F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L4M+64 L4M677 L54+ ; N+4 3N, N4L 45ON @ L544Q L4M+64 LLMFFF L54, P N+4 3,L NF7 45OO @OO -./012 FN 453N U9AH�<I?;;I�C8;;<GE?VD E<�F7� 8;;�<I?;;I F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L4M+64 OMO6N 45O6 @ N+4 +7O N4L 45ON @ +544Q L4M+64 LLMNNF L5LF P N+4 3+O N,L L5L4 POO 9@T9-;HI FN 45+O U9AH�<I?;;I�C8;;<GE?VD 8;;�<I?;;I -9H98�<I?;;I F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L4M+64 OMO6N 45O6 @ N+4 +7O N4L 45ON @ +544Q L4M+64 LLMNNF L5LF P N+4 3+O N,L L5L4 PF+L -./012 FN 453L U9AH�<I?;;I�C8;;<GE?VD -9H98�<I?;;I 89:;�<I?;;I F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L4M+64 3MO3+ 453, - N+4 FL4 F+F 4533 - 65FNQ L4M+64 6M6O+ 456N @ N+4 F,3 +L3 45NO @F+F -./012 +N 456F U9AH�<I?;;I�C8;;<GE?VD 89:;�<I?;;I @AWA;�9B;HE;�R�<?�33 F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L+M+F4 3M4FL 45+4 - 6,4 L3, FN7 45+, - ,544Q L+M+F4 NMO4, 4533 - 6,4 FL7 +7, 45N6 @LNF -./012 +N 45+F U9AH�<I?;;I�C8;;<GE?VD @AWA;�9B;HE;�R�<?�33 HA-=>8<�@?AB;�R�<EHHJ<A@;�@?AB; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L4M+64 3MON7 453, - N+4 3L6 L47 457, @ N544Q L4M+64 6M+F7 456L @ N+4 N+L L+7 L544 ;F -./012 3N F5NF U9?A>H�->EHIJ�?>9@ -?�FN V?9J<�9A?K>?I�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ FLM7,4 FMF44 45L4 G LM474 LL4 OO 45L4 G L544Q FLM7,4 FM+LF 45LL G LM474 LL6 L43 45LL GF 9@T9-;HI 3N +54L U9?A>H�->EHIJ�?>9@ V?9J<�9A?K>?I�?>9@ 89:;�V?APPAH�?>9@ F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - 7MN64 FMF44 45FO G +O4 LL4 OO 45F, G L544Q 7MN64 FM+LF 45+L G +O4 LL6 L43 45+4 GF73 -./012 +4 +5F+ U9<->II;�;UKA?;�?>9@ <?�N4� ;UKA?;�-=E?-=�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�U9<->II; -AIJ�>P�U9<->II; @ FLM7,4 ,44 4543 G LM474 +6 33 4543 G L544Q FLM7,4 ,3L 4543 G LM474 +, 36 4543 GFLF -./012 FN 453F UX8;H@>H�<I?;;I -89J�9B;HE; E<�F7RE<33L F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ I>SH�>P�89@J�89:; I>SH�>P�89@J�89:; @ L4M+64 LM+F3 45L+ - N+4 64 3N 45LL - +544Q L4M+64 LMN+N 45LN - N+4 74 NF 45L+ -L,, -./012 +N L573 UA-?>�?9-;I?9-:�?>9@ 89:;�;889�?>9@ -?�3669 F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L4M+64 OM34L 45OL @ N+4 +6F 364 45,7 @ 757NQ L4M+64 L+M6N3 L5+F P N+4 NF6 66, L5F6 PLFF -./012 FN L5L4 U>?HAHV<A@;�@?AB;�CU>EHI�@>?9D E<�33L -?�N449 F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L4M+64 LM3O, 45L3 - N+4 73 N, 45L3 - L5N4Q L4M+64 LM6L3 45L6 - N+4 ,4 6F 45LN -F3+ -./012 34 4573 UI�=>U;?�?>9@ -?�LO9 E<�33L F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< @ LNMO+4 F3O 454F - 7O4 +F N 4543 - L544Q LNMO+4 F6F 454F - 7O4 +3 N 4543 -F33 -./012 34 456, UI�=>U;?�?>9@ E<�33L� @9BA@�S98:;?�@?AB; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ LFM+O4 FMLNN 45L7 - 6F4 LNN 67 45FN - 65N4Q LFM+O4 FMON+ 45F3 - 6F4 FLF OF 45+3 -F3N -./012 +N 45NL UI�=>U;?�?>9@ @9BA@�S98:;?�@?AB; :E?I�<I?;;I F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L4M+64 +M77L 45+6 - N+4 F+4 L6+ 453+ - L544Q L4M+64 +MO6+ 45+, - N+4 F3F L7L 4536 -4 LL4N4N <1Y1Z 34 45F+ >8@�33L�C-?�N449D E<�33L <?�LO 3 3 E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< @ +NM,F4 LNMFN4 453+ - LM,44 N+O ,F3 4536 - L544Q +NM,F4 L6M4F, 453N - LM,44 N66 ,66 453, -NF -./012 FN 45+3 >8@�;E<IA<�?>9@ U>?HAHV<A@;�@?AB; ;�-?>>:;@�89:;�@?AB; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L4M+64 7,F 454, - N+4 N, LN 45LL - L544Q L4M+64 ,FF 454, - N+4 6L L6 45LF -,, -./012 FN 45OO >8@�;E<IA<�?>9@ ;�-?>>:;@�89:;�@?AB; @>HH;88J�<I?;;I F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�U>EHI�@>?9 @ L4M+64 LM+6F 45L+ - N+4 ,6 N3 45L6 - 35FNQ L4M+64 LM677 45L6 - N+4 L46 66 45F4 -LFL -./012 FN 456N >8@�U>EHI�@>?9�?>9@ <?�LO ;E@>?9�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L4M+64 NM4+4 453O - N+4 FN7 F6N 45N4 @ L544Q L4M+64 NMF,7 45NL @ N+4 F74 F7O 45N+ @LFL 9@T9-;HI FN 45,O >8@�U>EHI�@>?9�?>9@ ;E@>?9�?>9@ E<�33L F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L4M+64 NM4+4 453O - N+4 FN7 F6N 45N4 @ L544Q L4M+64 NMF,7 45NL @ N+4 F74 F7O 45N+ @LO3 LLNLN4 -./012 34 L54L >?9HV;�9B;HE; <?�LO =9<<;8I>H�<I?;;I 3 3 E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ FNM,74 LFMO,6 45N4 - LM+44 NL, 6FL 453, - F544Q FNM,74 L3M++, 45NN - LM+44 N7F 6,6 45N+ -LO, LLNLN4 -./012 NN 45O, >?9HV;�9B;HE; =9<<;8I>H�<I?;;I 9G?9U<�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L6M,F4 L3ML,3 45,3 - ,34 N,L 676 45,4 - L5N4Q L6M,F4 LNMF,4 45OL - ,34 6F6 7F, 45,7 -FL4 -./012 3N L5O7 ><S98I�?>9@ 89:;<=>?;�@?AB; ;@V;S9I;?�@?AB; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L6M,F4 3M43O 45F3 - ,34 LFN F+F 45F, - L544Q L6M,F4 3MFN6 45FN - ,34 L+L F33 45FO -F76 -./012 34 45F4 K98U;II>�@?AB; <EH<;I�9B;HE; -?�++ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�U9<->II; -AIJ�>P�U9<->II; @ LFM+O4 ,34 4547 - 6F4 3F 6O 45LL - L45N4Q LFM+O4 LM+,3 45LL - 6F4 6O LL3 45L, -F6L -./012 FN 45+, K?;<->II�<I?;;I G9I;<�9B;HE; <?�33 F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L4M+64 N6F 454N - N+4 F4 +3 4546 - F5FNQ L4M+64 6F, 4546 - N+4 FF +, 4547 -L73 -./012 3N F5FO ?9@A>�?>9@ -?�33 U>?HAHV<A@;�@?AB; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L6M,F4 +M3,3 45FL - ,34 FNF F6N 45+F - +57NQ L6M,F4 3ML,, 45FN - ,34 +4+ +LO 45+, -L4L -./012 3N 45ON ?9@A>�?>9@ U>?HAHV<A@;�@?AB; E<�33L F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L6M,F4 7M6N4 453N - ,34 +6+ F6F 453+ - F5N4Q L6M,F4 ,M6NN 45NL - ,34 3LL FO6 453O -L64 -./012 +N 457, ?>88AHV�9-?;<�?>9@ E<�F7�R�E<�33L >9:�<I?;;I F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ I>SH�>P�89@J�89:; @ L3M464 L7M+3O L5F+ P 7L4 7L4 7+O L543 ; L544Q L3M464 L,MF+3 L5+4 P 7L4 736 777 L54O PL66 LL74LL -./012 +N 45N4 ?>88AHV�9-?;<�?>9@ >9:�<I?;;I -?�366 F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ I>SH�>P�89@J�89:; @ L+M+F4 L6M,NL L5F7 P 6,4 77O 6N6 L5LN P L544Q L+M+F4 L7M7LL L5++ P 6,4 ,LO 6,O L5F4 PF4L -./012 3N F544 ?>88AHV�9-?;<�?>9@ -?�366 89:;�;889�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ FLM7,4 7MOFO 45+6 - LM474 +F4 +,3 45+6 - 75N4Q FLM7,4 LLM+,+ 45NF - LM474 3NO NNL 45NL -F4+ -./012 3N L544 ?>EH@�89:;�?>9@ S>8P�G?9H-=�?>9@ <?�36� F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�U>EHI�@>?9 @ L6M,F4 7M36, 4533 - ,34 F,4 3FO 45NL - O57NQ L6M,F4 LLM,OL 457L - ,34 336 6,+ 45,L -L+4 -./012 3N L54F ?>EH@�89:;�?>9@ <?�36 >?9HV;�->EHIJ�8AH; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L6M,F4 NM+,, 45+F - ,34 F6, F7N 45++ - N5FNQ L6M,F4 6MONO 453L - ,34 +36 +NN 453F -L37 -./012 34 35LN ?>J98�I?9A8<�?>9@ <;9V?9K;�9B;HE; <?�33 F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L3M764 LM673 45LL G 774 LF3 N4 45L6 G +5N4Q L3M764 LMO,, 45L+ G 774 L37 NO 45LO GFLL -./012 FN 45N4 <=9J�G>E8;B9?@ I9??<>H�G>E8;B9?@ V?APPAH�9B;HE; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ I>SH�>P�89@J�89:; @ L4M+64 FMNN4 45FN - N+4 LL6 L46 45FF - L544Q L4M+64 FM6,4 45F6 - N+4 LFF LLL 45F+ -F4N -./012 NN +5L3 <=A?8;J�<=>?;<�?>9@ -?�33, @;;?�A<89H@�?>9@ F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L3M764 FM3L4 45L6 G 774 LF, ,7 45L7 G L544Q L3M764 FMN++ 45L7 G 774 L+N OL 45L, GL7N LL74FF -./012 +N L5LL <8;;KJ�=>88>S�?>9@ E<�33L <EHHJ<A@;�@?AB; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ ->EHIJ -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ L3M464 +M,LO 45F7 - 7L4 L33 L7O 45FN - N544Q L3M464 3M,73 45+N - 7L4 L,3 FF, 45+F -LLL -./012 NN +56L <?�LO U9?A>H�->EHIJ�8AH; -?�33N9 F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 FML+L 45FN G 3+4 OL 7O 45FL G L544Q ,M344 FMF34 45F7 G 3+4 O6 ,+ 45FF G4 LL4+6N <1Y1Z NN N5N4 <?�LO -?�33N9 -?�33N F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 3M+44 45NL G 3+4 LOO LN+ 4536 G N57NQ ,M344 NM6,7 456, - 3+4 F6+ F4F 456L -4 LL4FO7 <1Y1Z NN N5FL <?�LO -?�33N -?�3F F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 6MO44 45,F - 3+4 +L7 FLO 4573 - N57NQ ,M344 OMLFN L54O @ 3+4 3LO FO4 45O7 -4 LLN4+6 9@T9-;HI 34 45O4 <?�LO -?�3F G9:;?�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L,MNO4 LFM+44 4566 - OF4 6F4 NF+ 4567 - L544Q L,MNO4 LFMOF7 4574 - OF4 6NF NN4 457L -4 LLN4+6 9@T9-;HI NN L5LO <?�LO G9:;?�?>9@ -?�3N4�CEU9IA889�G>E8;B9?@D F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�EU9IA889 @ L,MNO4 LFM+44 4566 - OF4 6F4 NF+ 4567 - L544Q L,MNO4 LFMOF7 4574 - OF4 6NF NN4 457L -4 LLN4+6 <1Y1Z +N 45NL <?�LO -?�3N4�CEU9IA889�G>E8;B9?@D -?�3N4�C>-989�<I?;;ID F F E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�EU9IA889 @ L6M+F4 LFM+44 457N @ ,+4 6F4 NF+ 457N @ L544Q L6M+F4 LFMOF7 457O @ ,+4 6NF NN4 457O @4 LLN4+N <1Y1Z 34 L5+, <?�LO -?�3N4�C>-989�<I?;;ID -?�3N49 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�EU9IA889 @ +OM,44 L,MLN4 4536 - FM444 ONF 6N7 453, - F57NQ +OM,44 F4M7,7 45NF - FM444 LM4O4 7NF 45NN -4 LL444, <1Y1Z NN F5FF <?�LO -?�3N49 -?�LO9 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; ;E<IA<REU9IA889 @ 6NM644 L,M7N4 45FO G +MF34 ON7 743 45+4 G L544Q 6NM644 LOM746 45+4 G +MF34 LM446 734 45+L G4 LL444, 9@T9-;HI NN 45N, <?�LO -?�LO9 -?�33 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ 3LM7O4 L,M7N4 453N - FML44 ON7 743 4536 - L544Q 3LM7O4 LOM746 4537 - FML44 LM446 734 453, -4 LLL4L7 <1Y1Z 3N 457N <?�LO -?�33 -?�3NF 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ 3LM7O4 LNM644 45+7 - FML44 ,4, NLO 45+, - L544Q 3LM7O4 L6M+O6 45+O - FML44 ,3O N3N 4534 -4 LLNL76 <1Y1Z +N 45,7 <?�LO�CHD >?9HV;�9B;HE; -?�3NF 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ LOM334 L6M7N4 45,6 @ LMO64 LM63L [ 45,3 @ 3544Q LOM334 F4M+7O L54N P LMO64 LMOO7 [ L54F ;4 LL4F4, 9@T9-;HI 34 45,F <?�LO�C<D -?�3NF >?9HV;�9B;HE; 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ F+M,,4 L+MFN4 45NN - FM344 [ LM444 453F - L544Q F+M,,4 L+MOF6 45N, - FM344 [ LM4NL 4533 -4 LLNL76 9@T9-;HI +N 456, <?�LO�CHD <I;B;H<�9B; >?9HV;�9B;HE; 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ LOM334 L6M7N4 45,6 @ LMO64 LM63L [ 45,3 @ 3544Q LOM334 F4M+7O L54N P LMO64 LMOO7 [ L54F ;4 LL4F4, <1Y1Z +N 456F <?�LO�C<D >?9HV;�9B;HE; <I;B;H<�9B; 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ LOM334 L+MFN4 456, @ LMO64 [ LM444 45NL @ L544Q LOM334 L+MOF6 457F @ LMO64 [ LM4NL 45N3 @4 LLN4L+ <1Y1Z +N 45N4 <?�LO <I;B;H<�9B; V>8P�8AH:<�9B;HE; 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ +3M4F4 ++M7N4 45OO @ LM7L4 LMN+6 LMLLF 45O4 @ 6544Q +3M4F4 3NML6N L5++ P LM7L4 FM4N6 LM3,, L5F4 P4 LL43FL <1Y1Z 34 45OF <?�LO V>8P�8AH:<�9B;HE; E<�33L 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ 3LM7O4 F+M7N4 45N7 - FML44 LM4,+ OLN 45NF - N544Q 3LM7O4 +4M+LF 457+ - FML44 LM+,F LML6, 4566 -4 LLNLFN <1Y1Z +N 45F3 <?�LO�C@EH-9H�@?AB;D E<�33L� -?�N449R�89:;�<=>?;�G>E8;B9?@ 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< @ +FM344 L,M444 45N6 @ LM6+4 6L6 67O 453F - F5FNQ +FM344 F4MLL, 456F @ LM6+4 6,, 7NO 4537 @4 LLNLFN 9@T9-;HI +N 45+7 <?�LO -?�N449R�89:;�<=>?;�G>E8;B9?@ -?�3NF�CU9AH�<I?;;ID 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< @ +FM344 L,M444 45N6 @ LM6+4 6L6 67O 453F - F5FNQ +FM344 F4MLL, 456F @ LM6+4 6,, 7NO 4537 @4 LL443O <1Y1Z 3N L5+, <?�LO -?�3NF�CU9AH�<I?;;ID -?�N6L 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< @ 3LM7O4 +FM7N4 457, - FML44 LMN37 LM3,F 4573 - +544Q 3LM7O4 +7MO66 45OL - FML44 LM7O+ LM7L, 45,N -4 LL443O 9@T9-;HI 3N 45O4 <?�LO -?�N6L 89H;�K9?:�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�I9B9?;< @ L,MNO4 +FM7N4 L576 P OF4 LMN37 LM3,F L56, P +544Q L,MNO4 +7MO66 F543 P OF4 LM7O+ LM7L, L5ON P4 LL43O3 <1Y1Z NN +5,7 <?�LO 89H;�K9?:�?>9@ -?�3, F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; =>S;J[AH[I=;[=A88<RI9B9?;< @ L,MNO4 LNM744 45,3 - OF4 6L3 7F7 457O - 3544Q L,MNO4 LOML4L L54+ P OF4 737 ,,N 45O6 @4 LL43ON <1Y1Z 34 45,3 <?�LO -?�3, -;HI?98�9B;HE; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; =>S;J[AH[I=;[=A88< @ L3ML64 OM+N4 4566 - 744 +6O +OO 45N7 - L5FNQ L3ML64 OMO3O 4574 - 744 +O+ 3FN 456L -4 LL43ON 9@T9-;HI +N +54O <?�LO -;HI?98�9B;HE; -?�3NN F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; =>S;J[AH[I=;[=A88< @ F3MF44 OM+N4 45+O - LMLO4 +6O +OO 45+3 G L5FNQ F3MF44 OMO3O 453L - LMLO4 +O+ 3FN 45+6 -4 LL4FNN <1Y1Z NN F57F <?�LO -?�3NN E<�F7�R�<?�FN F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ - ,M344 L+MN44 L56L @ 3+4 NFF 6L, L533 @ 757NQ ,M344 LOM647 F5++ ; 3+4 7N, ,O, F54O ;4 LL4+76 <1Y1Z NN 357+ <?�LO E<�F7�R�<?�FN -?�37, F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ - ,M344 L4M4N4 L5F4 @ 3+4 +6+ 37N L5L4 @ +57NQ ,M344 LFM4,L L533 @ 3+4 3+6 N7L L5++ @4 LL4+76 9@T9-;HI NN L5FF <?�LO -?�37, 89:;�-9I=;?AH;�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ L7M744 L4M4N4 45N7 - ,,4 +6+ 37N 45N3 - +57NQ L7M744 LFM4,L 456, - ,,4 3+6 N7L 456N -4 LL44O7 <1Y1Z 3N 4574 <?�LO 89:;�-9I=;?AH;�?>9@ <?�N4R�<?�++ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ L7M744 LLMON4 456, - ,,4 34+ N7+ 456N - F5N4Q L7M744 L+MNF4 4576 - ,,4 3N6 63, 4573 -4 LLN47F <1Y1Z 34 45NF <?�++ <?�N4R�<?�++ 9H@;?<>H�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ L,MNO4 L+M,N4 457N - OF4 37F NNF 4564 - 657NQ L,MNO4 LOMLOO L54+ P OF4 6N3 76N 45,+ -4 LL43O7 <1Y1Z 64 +5L6 <?�++ 9H@;?<>H�?>9@ -?�N6NG F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ - ,M344 L4M644 L5F6 @ 3+4 N4N 3F6 L5L7 @ N544Q ,M344 L+MNFO L56L @ 3+4 63N N33 L5N4 @4 LLL44F <1Y1Z 64 6576 <?�++ -?�N6NG -?�N6L F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 ,M644 L54F @ 3+4 +L7 FON 4573 - 75N4Q ,M344 LFM+36 L537 @ 3+4 3NN 3F3 L546 @L4+ -./012 64 F5++ <?�++ -?�N6L -?�373 F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 ,ML,N 45O7 - 3+4 +F+ F36 457N - 75N4Q ,M344 LLM7NL L534 @ 3+4 363 +N+ L54, @L34 -./012 64 L543 <?�++ -?�373 K>8:�->EHIJ�8AH; F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L4M+F4 6MF+3 4564 - N34 F3L LOO 453N - L+5N4Q L4M+F4 LLM73F L5L3 P N34 3N3 +7N 45,3 -LL4 -./012 3N 357L <?�34 U9?A>H�->EHIJ�8AH; -?�33N9 F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 3MON6 45NO - 3+4 LO4 LO, 4536 G 35FNQ ,M344 6ML4+ 457+ - 3+4 F+3 F33 45N7 -4 LL4N4+ <1Y1Z NN L56L <?�34 -?�33N9 ?AB;?�?>9@ F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L4M+F4 3M3N4 453+ - N34 F6+ FFF 453O - L544Q L4M+F4 3M677 453N - N34 F76 F++ 45NL -4 LL44N4 <1Y1Z 3N L53+ <?�34 ?AB;?�?>9@ B>8E<A9�->EHIJ�8AH; F F ?E?98 @ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L3MFF4 7M7N4 45NN - 734 +N3 +36 453, - L544Q L3MFF4 ,ML3N 45N7 - 734 +7F +63 45N4 -4 LL43O6 <1Y1Z NN F5+, <?�33 <EUI;?�->EHIJ�8AH; -?�36, 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ +OM,44 FFM+44 45N6 - FM444 ,LO ,33 453F - F5N4Q +OM,44 FNMF+4 456+ - FM444 OF7 ONN 453, -4 LL43,7 <1Y1Z 3N L5N3 <?�33 -?�36, <�8>H;�>9:�@?AB; 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ +OM,44 L6MFN4 453L - FM444 6FN 644 45+L - L57NQ +OM,44 L7M7F+ 453N - FM444 6,F 6N3 45+3 -4 LLNL37 <1Y1Z +N 4576 <?�33 <�8>H;�>9:�@?AB; E<�F7 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ +FM344 F+M+44 457F @ LM6+4 ,4+ O37 45N, @ 3544Q +FM344 F,M+3, 45,7 @ LM6+4 O77 LMLNF 457L @4 LLNL7O <1Y1Z +N 45N7 <?�33��C@AWA;�9B;HE;D E<�F7 <�OI=�<I?;;I 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ +FM344 FNM444 4577 @ LM6+4 OL3 OO3 456L @ L544Q +FM344 F6MF7N 45,L @ LM6+4 O6L LM43N 4563 @4 LLNL3+ 9@T9-;HI +N 45+3 <?�33��C@AWA;�9B;HE;D <�OI=�<I?;;I -9H98�<I?;;I 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ +FM344 F+MFN4 457F @ LM6+4 O,L ,63 4564 @ L544Q +FM344 F3M3+6 457N @ LM6+4 LM4+L O4, 456+ @4 LLNL3+ <1Y1Z 34 453L <?�33��C@AWA;�9B;HE;D -9H98�<I?;;I <�89:;�<I?;;I 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ +OM,44 F+MFN4 45N, - FM444 O,L ,63 453O - L544Q +OM,44 F3M3+6 456L - FM444 LM4+L O4, 45NF -4 LLNL3F <1Y1Z 34 457O <?�33��C@AWA;�9B;HE;D <�89:;�<I?;;I ;�U9AH�<I?;;I 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ +OM,44 FLM,44 45NN - FM444 OO7 7LO 45N4 - F57NQ +OM,44 F3MO67 456+ - FM444 LML3F ,F+ 45N7 -4 LLNL,+ <1Y1Z 34 45LL <?�33��C@AWA;�9B;HE;D ;�U9AH�<I?;;I E<�33L 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�8;;<GE?V @ 3LM7O4 FLM644 45NF - FML44 [ [ [ G +544Q 3LM7O4 FNM434 4564 - FML44 [ [ [ G4 LL444N <1Y1Z 3N 453N <?�33�C>8@�-5?5�33GD E<�33L S9J-?><<�9B;HE; F F E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�U>EHI�@>?9 @ LOMNL4 F+M7N4 L5FF P O74 LM+F+ ,+6 L5+6 P L544Q LOMNL4 F3MO6L L5F, P O74 LM+O4 ,7O L53+ P4 LL4446 <1Y1Z 3N L56N <?�33�C>8@�-5?5�33GD S9J-?><<�9B;HE; >?9HV;�9B;HE; F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; ;E<IA<RU>EHI�@>?9 @ L,MNO4 L7M7N4 45ON @ OF4 OL, 6N3 L544 @ L544Q L,MNO4 L,M6NN L544 P OF4 O6N 6,7 L54N P4 LL4N44 9@T9-;HI NN F5F7 <?�33 9G?9U<�?>9@ I=?A88�=A88�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�;E<IA< @ L,MNO4 LNMLN4 45,L - OF4 N6, N74 456F - 35FNQ L,MNO4 L,M6NN L544 P OF4 6OO 74F 4576 -4 LL4N44 9@T9-;HI NN L5L3 <?�33 I=?A88�=A88�?>9@ -?�3+O F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�U>EHI�@>?9 @ L7M744 LNMLN4 45,6 - ,,4 N6, N74 456N - 35FNQ L7M744 L,M6NN L54N P ,,4 6OO 74F 45,4 -4 LL4N44 <1Y1Z NN +54+ <?�33 -?�3+O -?�3+7 F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L6M344 LNMLN4 45OF - ,N4 N6, N74 4567 - 35FNQ L6M344 L,M6NN L5L3 @ ,N4 6OO 74F 45,+ -4 LL4N44 9@T9-;HI NN L5LN <?�33 -?�3+7 -?�369 F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L+MNN4 LNMLN4 L5LF P 744 N6, N74 45,L - 35FNQ L+MNN4 L,M6NN L5+, P 744 6OO 74F L544 @4 LL44L4 9@T9-;HI NN +53+ <?�33 -?�369 -?�339 F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 ,M3N4 L54L @ 3+4 347 34O 45ON - +544Q ,M344 OM7O6 L5L7 @ 3+4 37F 373 L5L4 @4 LL44L4 9@T9-;HI NN N5+3 <?�33 -?�339 >B;?8>>:�@?AB; F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 ,M3N4 L54L @ 3+4 347 34O 45ON - +544Q ,M344 OM7O6 L5L7 @ 3+4 37F 373 L5L4 @4 LL44L4 <1Y1Z NN N563 <?�33 >B;?8>>:�@?AB; -?�3F F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L6M344 ,M3N4 45NF G ,N4 347 34O 453, G +544Q L6M344 OM7O6 4564 - ,N4 37F 373 45N6 -4 LL44L4 9@T9-;HI NN 45F6 <?�33 -?�3F B>8E<A9�->EHIJ�8AH; F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L+MNN4 ,M3N4 456F - 744 347 34O 45N, - +544Q L+MNN4 OM7O6 457F - 744 37F 373 456, -4 4 [ L5,4 <?�36R3F,�CS;:AB9�K:SJD >?9HV;�-R8 -?�369�C?;98AVH;@D 4 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ 6NM644 [ [ [ +MF34 [ [ [ G4 4 [ N5N3 <?�36R3F,�CS;:AB9�K:SJD -?�369�C?;98AVH;@D <;UAH>8;�-R8 4 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ 6NM644 [ [ [ +MF34 [ [ [ G4 LL4N4L 9@T9-;HI 3N L54, <?�36 E<�33L BA<I9�BA;S 6 6 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�U>EHI�@>?9 @ 6FMO44 LLMN44 45L, - +ML74 3,3 NF6 45L7 - 3544Q 6FMO44 L+MOOF 45FF - +ML74 N,O 634 45F4 -4 LL4N4L <1Y1Z NN 45O3 <?�36 BA<I9�BA;S ?>EH@�89:;�?>9@ 6 6 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�U>EHI�@>?9 @ 6FMO44 LLMN44 45L, - +ML74 3,3 NF6 45L7 - 3544Q 6FMO44 L+MOOF 45FF - +ML74 N,O 634 45F4 -4 LL444L 9@T9-;HI NN F5LL <?�36 ?>EH@�89:;�?>9@ -?�3+7�<>EI= F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�U>EHI�@>?9 @ F3MF44 L3MF44 45NO - LMLO4 N44 644 45N4 - L544Q F3MF44 L3MOF3 456F - LMLO4 NF6 6+L 45N+ -4 LL444L <1Y1Z 3N 45NL <?�36 -?�3+7�<>EI= -?�3+7�H>?I= F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L7M744 L3MF44 45,4 - ,,4 N44 644 456, - L544Q L7M744 L3MOF3 45,3 - ,,4 NF6 6+L 457F -4 LLL4LO <1Y1Z 3N L5LL <?�36 -?�3+7�H>?I= -?�3+N F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ L7M744 L6M,N4 45ON @ ,,4 64O 7LF 45,L - 3544Q L7M744 F4MN4L L5L6 P ,,4 73L ,66 45O, @4 LLL4LO 9@T9-;HI 3N 45,7 <?�36 -?�3+N -?�369�C?;98AVH;@D 4 F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ L544Q L7M744 [ L544 P ,,4 [ [ [ G4 LLL4LO 9@T9-;HI NN 356, <?�36 -?�3+N -?�369 F 4 ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - L6M344 L6M,N4 L54+ @ ,N4 64O 7LF 45,3 - L544Q [ L7M7L4 [ [ [ 634 73, [ [L+L -./012 3N F56L <?�36 -?�369 <;UAH>8;�->EHIJ�8AH; F F ?E?98 EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ - ,M344 F3M,36 F5O6 ; 3+4 O,L LM4,, F5N+ ; L544Q ,M344 F6MLL+ +5LL ; 3+4 LM4+L LML3+ F566 ;4 LL4+LO <1Y1Z NN +563 <?�N4 <EUI;?�->EHIJ�8AH;� -?�N6N�R�G9J�89:;�?>9@ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ F3MF44 L+M,44 45N7 - LMLO4 N47 677 45N7 - L5FNQ F3MF44 L3M6,3 456L - LMLO4 N+O 7F4 456L -4 LL4+LO 9@T9-;HI +N 4577 <?�N4 -?�N6N�R�G9J�89:;�?>9@ -?�++ F F E?G9H EH@ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�U9<->II; @ L3M,44 L+M,44 45O+ @ 7N4 N47 677 45O4 @ L5FNQ L3M,44 L3M6,3 45OO @ 7N4 N+O 7F4 45O6 @4 LL4F3L <1Y1Z 3N 45O6 <?�N4 -?�++ V?>B;89H@�P9?U<�?>9@ 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�U9<->II; @ +OM,44 FNM444 456+ - FM444 ,3N LML7O 45NO - +5FNQ +OM,44 FOM++N 4573 - FM444 OOF LM+,+ 456O -4 LL4F3L 9@T9-;HI 3N 456+ <?�N4 V?>B;89H@�P9?U<�?>9@ <?�N4�>H;�S9J�K9A?< 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ 3LM7O4 FNM444 4564 - FML44 ,3N LML7O 45N6 - +5FNQ 3LM7O4 FOM++N 4574 - FML44 OOF LM+,+ 4566 -4 LLNL,F <1Y1Z +N 4533 <?�N4�C;D <?�N4�>H;�S9J�K9A?< <?�LO 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ LOM334 L3M7N4 4576 @ LMO64 LML7+ [ 4564 @ L544Q LOM334 LNMN4F 45,4 @ LMO64 LMF++ [ 456+ @4 LLN477 <1Y1Z +N 4533 <?�N4�CSD <?�LO <?�N4�>H;�S9J�K9A?< 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ LOM334 LNMN44 45,4 @ LMO64 [ LM+N4 456O @ +544Q LOM334 L7MO6O 45OF @ LMO64 [ LMN6N 45,4 @4 LLNL,L <1Y1Z +N 45++ <?�N4�C;D <?�LO <?�++�<>EI= 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ LOM334 L6MN44 45,N @ LMO64 LML46 [ 45N6 @ L544Q LOM334 L7M+3F 45,O @ LMO64 LML6F [ 45NO @4 LLN476 <1Y1Z +N 45+3 <?�N4�CSD <?�++�<>EI= <?�LO 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ LOM334 LNMN44 45,4 @ LMO64 [ LM+4N 4567 @ L57NQ LOM334 L6MO4N 45,7 @ LMO64 [ LM3F+ 457+ @4 LLNL+3 <1Y1Z NN L5N+ <?�N4 <?�++�<>EI=� -?�N6N9�H>?I= 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ 3LM7O4 F6MN44 456+ - FML44 LM4OF LMFO+ 456F - L544Q 3LM7O4 F7M,NF 4567 - FML44 LML3, LM+NO 456N -4 LL4+O6 <1Y1Z NN +5LN <?�N4 -?�N6N9�H>?I= -?�N6L 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�V?>B;89H@ @ 3LM7O4 +LM444 4573 - FML44 O,L LM3+3 456, - +5FNQ 3LM7O4 +6M+76 45,7 - FML44 LMLNL LM6,+ 45,4 -4 LLN4N7 <1Y1Z 34 L5LO <?�N4 -?�N6L ;9<I�9B;HE; 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�-8;?U>HI @ +OM,44 +6MN44 45OF - FM444 LM4NO LMN+, 4577 - L5N4Q +OM,44 +OM+FL 45OO @ FM444 LML3L LM6N7 45,+ -4 LLN4N4 <1Y1Z 34 45OF <?�N4 ;9<I�9B;HE; E<�F7 3 3 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; -AIJ�>P�-8;?U>HI @ 3LM7O4 37MN44 L5L3 P FML44 LMNF7 LMONN 45O+ - F57NQ 3LM7O4 N3M344 L5+4 P FML44 LM73O FMF+O L547 P4 LL4+O4 <1Y1Z NN F5L3 <?�N4 E<�F7 =9H->-:�?>9@ 6 6 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ 6FMO44 37MFN4 457N - +ML74 LMO7O FM+3L 4573 - L544Q 6FMO44 3OM664 457O - +ML74 FM4,4 FM364 457, -4 LL4+O4 9@T9-;HI NN L53O <?�N4 =9H->-:�?>9@ -?�3NN 6 6 E?G9H @ABA@;@ <I9I; EHAH->?K>?9I;@�89:;�->EHIJ @ 6FMO44 37MFN4 457N - +ML74 LMO7O FM+3L 4573 - L544Q 6FMO44 3OM664 457O - +ML74 FM4,4 FM364 457, -

TY0/Y\2�F4F4

ATTACHMENT B -  Lake and Sumter Counties CMPs

jzaballero
Rectangle

jzaballero
Rectangle



��������	
�������
�����
�������������� ������������ ����������� ���������� ������������������� ��������� ���� �� ������� !"#� ������� ! $� ��%���&������ ��'�����&�����'���� ������������������ (����������� ������������������� ���������'����'�����  !"#�����  !"#�������'&�  !"#���������� ��)���������������������'����'�����  !"#���)�������%&�%�'�����  !"#���)�������%&*%�'�����  !"#���)������'&�  !"#���)��������� ���*������� ���������'����'������� ! $�  ! $����� ! $�������'&�  ! $���������� ��)���������������������'����'������� ! $�  ! $���)�������%&�%�'�����  ! $���)�������%&*%�'�����  ! $���)������'&�  ! $���)���������+ ,-+-,. /0102 -+ 34-5 /6�-+ 76�8-- 96:;<=�79>;?@�AB;= C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E C.IJ++ -,I,-+ +4J. 7 5I3,+ 3I-.- 5I+K8 +4J, 7 34++L C.IJ++ C+ICJC +4JC 7 5I3,+ 3IC+5 5I.83 34+. M+ J,..++ /0102 ,+ 345K /6�J3�NMA96BE:�?>6;GBH=O />P?=6�79>;?@�AB;= 76�8,+ 8 8 >6D:; M6==Q:@ /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ D 8-IK++ -.IJ-+ 343C 7 .I.C+ .I,+. 3IJK3 34.+ 7 -4.-L 8-IK++ CKI5K, 348J E .I.C+ 5I8J+ .I--J 34-8 E+ J,.3C+ /0102 ,+ ,4-+ /6�J3�NMA96BE:�?>6;GBH=O 76�8,+ >/�.,R/6�.- 8 8 >6D:; M6==Q:@ /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ D 8-IK++ -8I--+ 343J 7 .I.C+ .I8CK .I+CK 34+J 7 -4-+L 8-IK++ ,3I.J- 34-C E .I.C+ 5I..C .I,+5 3485 E+ J,.++C /0102 ,+ 54,. /6�J3�NMA96BE:�?>6;GBH=O >/�.,R/6�.- >/�.,R/6�.-R/6�3J�B;?=67S:;<= 8 8 >6D:; M6==Q:@ /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ D 8-IK++ 8KI.-+ 34+- 7 .I.C+ .I88- 3I,J. 34+K 7 -4,-L 8-IK++ C5IK3. 345J E .I.C+ 5I.58 .I5,+ 3485 E+ J,.++- /0102 ,+ 3+4K. /6�J3�NMA96BE:�?>6;GBH=O >/�.,R/6�.-R/6�3J�B;?=67S:;<= 96:;<=�79>;?@�AB;= 8 8 >6D:; M6==Q:@ /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ 7 C3I-++ CJI.++ 3435 E 5I+.+ .IC+C 5I3+J 34+5 E ,4.-L C3I-++ JKI3JC 34C+ M 5I+.+ 5ICJK 8I83. 348C M.K, 7TUV0W 5+ +4K8 /?=F=/�69:E >/�., 7B?6>/�?9Q=6�D9>A=F:6E . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�7A=6P9;? E 38I+C+ CI,-C +48K 7 ,3+ 5-8 .,3 +4-+ E 34,-L 38I+C+ ,I5CK +4-. E ,3+ 5KC .JC +4-8 E35 7TUV0W .+ 348C />;;@/BE=�E6BF= P:B;�/?6==?RE6�;B7S9A/�E6BF= /A==G@�S9AA9Q�69:E . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 38I+C+ 5IJ8- +4.K 7 ,3+ 38K .,+ +45K 7 -4.-L 38I+C+ -I+J- +45C 7 ,3+ 3J3 58J +48J 755 33,+3. 7TUV0W 5- 5453 />;;@/BE=�E6BF= /A==G@�S9AA9Q�69:E D6BE<=Q:?=6�79>6? . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E .3I,K+ .I-., +43. D 3I+,+ J. .+K +43J D C4-+L .3I,K+ 5I8C. +43C D 3I+,+ 3.C .K- +4., D.55 33,+35 7TUV0W 5- 3438 />;;@/BE=�E6BF= D6BE<=Q:?=6�79>6? />;;@/BE=�E6BF= . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E 3+I5C+ 3I-8. +43- 7 -5+ C. J- +43K 7 34.-L 3+I5C+ 3IC83 +43C 7 -5+ CC 3+3 +43J 73J+ 7TUV0W 5- +4,J ?S9P:/�:F=;>= 76�8C+ 76�88: . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 3+I5C+ KI+J3 +4,K E -5+ 5C+ 5C- +4CJ E 34++L 3+I5C+ KI-+8 +4K. E -5+ 5,K 5K8 +4,. E... 7TUV0W 5- 34+, ?S9P:/�:F=;>= <6BMMB;�69:E�N76�88:O P:B;�/?6==? . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 3+I5C+ ,ICJC +4,8 E -5+ 5C. 535 +4CK E .4,-L 3+I5C+ KIK38 +4K- E -5+ 83- 5-K +4,K E.+K 7TUV0W 5+ +45. ?>6H=@�M:6P�69:E 9AE�SQ@�-+ D6BPPB;<�A:H=�69:E . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�PB;;=9A: E 3+I5C+ .+J +4+. 7 -5+ 3+ 3. +4+. 7 34++L 3+I5C+ ..+ +4+. 7 -5+ 33 35 +4+. 7.5 ;9�79>;? 5- 843J ?>/7:;99<:�69:E />P?=6�79>;?@�AB;= =<<�69:E . . 6>6:A >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ 7 ,I-C+ X X X 5J+ X X X D ,I-C+ X X X 5J+ X X X D.,5 7TUV0W 8+ +4-8 ?>/7:;99<:�69:E =<<�69:E /6�-+ . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�P:/79??= 7 3-IJC+ .ICC. +43, 7 ,J+ 3+8 3-K +4.+ 7 34++L 3-IJC+ .I,JK +43K 7 ,J+ 3+J 3CC +4.3 7.,, 7TUV0W 8+ +453 >;E=6G://�69:E 76�55 :P=6B7:;�A=<B9;�69:E . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�P:/79??= E 3CIK.+ 3I+C8 +4+C 7 K8+ C. C. +4+, 7 34++L 3CIK.+ 3I33K +4+, 7 K8+ C- C- +4+K 7+ 33+8,+ /0102 -- 34+3 >/�3J. >/�., 96:;<=�79>;?@�AB;= C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E C.IJ++ 8JI+++ +4,K 7 5I3,+ 3I-+8 .I8+3 +4,C 7 34++L C.IJ++ -3I8JJ +4K. 7 5I3,+ 3I-K3 .I-.5 +4K+ 73+K 7TUV0W 8- 3433 >/�.,R>/883 />P?=6�79>;?@�AB;= <6BMMB;�:F=;>= C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= ?9Q;�9M�A:E@�A:H= E -JIJ++ 5.I3+C +4-8 7 5I+.+ 3I5K. 3I3-, +48C 7 34++L -JIJ++ 55I,88 +4-C 7 5I+.+ 3I8-. 3I.3C +48K 7+ 333+3. /0102 8- 343. >/�.,R>/883 <6BMMB;�:F=;>= :A?�>/�883�R�:A?�>/�., 8 K >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= ?9Q;�9M�A:E@�A:H= E 83I,J+ .,I,-+ +4CC 7 .I3++ 3I..5 3I3-- +4-K 7 34++L K8I33+ .JI3CC +45- 7 8I.8+ 3I.K- 3I.38 +45+ 7+ 333+3. :EY:7=;? 8+ +4,J >/�.,R>/883 :A?�>/�883�R�:A?�>/�., 76�8CC 8 C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= ?9Q;�9M�A:E@�A:H= E 83I,J+ .,I,-+ +4CC 7 .I3++ 3I..5 3I3-- +4-K 7 34++L C.IJ++ .JI3CC +48C 7 5I3,+ 3I.K- 3I.38 +483 7+ 333+.3 /0102 -- .4., >/�.,R>/883 76�8CC A:H=�=AA:�69:E 8 C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= ?9Q;�9M�A:E@�A:H= E 83I,J+ .JI8++ +4,+ 7 .I3++ 3I.3. 3I858 +4CK 7 34++L C.IJ++ 5+IJ++ +48J 7 5I3,+ 3I.,8 3I-+, +48K 7+ 33+85+ /0102 -- 34KJ >/�.,R>/883 A:H=�=AA:�69:E 76�8CC:�R�PBAA=6�D9>A=F:6E C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= M6>B?A:;E�G:6H E -JIJ++ 53I+++ +4-. 7 5I+.+ 3I.,K 3I-3. +4-+ 7 34++L -JIJ++ 5.I-K3 +4-8 7 5I+.+ 3I585 3I-KJ +4-5 7+ 33+853 /0102 8- 345- >/�.,R>/883 76�8CC:�R�PBAA=6�D9>A=F:6E 76�8C+�NP:6?B;�A>?S=6�HB;<�DAFEO C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= M6>B?A:;E�G:6H E -JIJ++ 5KI-++ +4C8 7 5I+.+ 3ICC. 3IC+C +4-- 7 34++L -JIJ++ 8+I8C8 +4CK 7 5I+.+ 3I,8, 3ICKK +4-K 7+ 33+3+J :EY:7=;? 8- +4-3 >/�.,R>/883 76�8C+�NP:6?B;�A>?S=6�HB;<�DAFEO 76�8CC:�NA==�69:EO C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E -JIJ++ -+I.-+ +4K8 7 5I+.+ .I+C3 3IJ5. +4CK 7 34.-L -JIJ++ -5I8,+ +4KJ 7 5I+.+ .I3J5 .I+-C +4,5 7+ 33+3+J /0102 8- +4C, >/�.,R>/883 76�8CC:�NA==�69:EO 76�88:R�<6BMMB;�69:E C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E -JIJ++ -+I.-+ +4K8 7 5I+.+ .I+C3 3IJ5. +4CK 7 34.-L -JIJ++ -5I8,+ +4KJ 7 5I+.+ .I3J5 .I+-C +4,5 7+ 33+3+J :EY:7=;? 5- +43- >/�.,R>/883 76�88:R�<6BMMB;�69:E >/�.,R>/883�/GAB? C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E -+I+++ -+I.-+ 34+3 = .I-.+ .I+C3 3IJ5. +4K. E 34.-L -+I+++ -5I8,+ 34+, M .I-.+ .I3J5 .I+-C +4K, E+ 33-3.+ /0102 5- 34+8 >/�.,R/6�.- >/�.,R>/883�/GAB? P:B;�/?6==? 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 5.I8++ .JI.-+ +4J+ E 3IC5+ 3I3.5 3I3,C +4,. E 54++L 5.I8++ 55IJ+J 34+- M 3IC5+ 3I5+. 3I5C5 +4K8 E+ 33-33J /0102 5- +4-, >/�.,R/6�.- P:B;�/?6==? /6�88 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 5.I8++ .-I,-+ +4,J E 3IC5+ J3- 3I+C, +4C- E 54.-L 5.I8++ 5+I.3- +4J5 E 3IC5+ 3I+,8 3I.-. +4,, E+ 33-33C /0102 5- +4C5 >/�.,R/6�.- /6�88 76�.-:�N;96?SO 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 5.I8++ 83I+++ 34., M 3IC5+ 3IC8J 3IJ-3 34.+ M .4-+L 5.I8++ 8CI5KK 3485 M 3IC5+ 3IKCC .I.+, 345- M+ 33++38 /0102 -- .43C >/�.,R/6�.- 76�.-:�N;96?SO 76�55 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 83I,J+ 5CI,-+ +4KK 7 .I3++ 3I5.+ 3I-K+ +4,- 7 54-+L 83I,J+ 85IC8, 34+8 M .I3++ 3I-CK 3IK,, +4KJ 7+ 33++38 :EY:7=;? -- 343. >/�.,R/6�.- 76�55 76�8K 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E 83I,J+ 5CI,-+ +4KK 7 .I3++ 3I5.+ 3I-K+ +4,- 7 .4.-L 83I,J+ 83I+,- +4JK E .I3++ 3I8,- 3I,CC +4K8 7+ 33+5C. /0102 -- .4-8 >/�.,R/6�.- 76�8K GA:;?:?B9;�D9>A=F:6E 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E C-IC++ .,I+++ +483 D 5I.8+ 3I+J. 3I.J5 +48+ D .4-+L C-IC++ 5+I-8K +48, D 5I.8+ 3I.5- 3I8C5 +48- D+ 33+5C. :EY:7=;? -- .4C, >/�.,R/6�.- GA:;?:?B9;�D9>A=6F:6E MA96BE:�?>6;GBH= 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E C-IC++ .,I+++ +483 D 5I.8+ 3I+J. 3I.J5 +48+ D .4-+L C-IC++ 5+I-8K +48, D 5I.8+ 3I.5- 3I8C5 +48- D38. 33+5C8 7TUV0W -- 84+K >/�.,R/6�.- MA96BE:�?>6;GBH= /6�3J 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�<69F=A:;E E 83I,J+ ..I538 +4-5 7 .I3++ K5C KK. +48. 7 34++L 83I,J+ .5I8-. +4-C 7 .I3++ K,J J., +488 7+ 33+5C5 /0102 -- 545C >/�.,R/6�.- /6�3J 76�-C3 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�<69F=A:;E E C-IC++ 3JI,++ +45+ D 5I.8+ J,C K.8 +45+ D 34++L C-IC++ .+I,+- +45. D 5I.8+ 3I+.C KCC +45. D+ 33+8CK /0102 -- .438 >/�.,R/6�.- 76�-C3 76�-C3: 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�PB;;=9A: E 83I,J+ 5CI,-+ +4KK 7 .I3++ 3I,5. 3I8C5 +4K. 7 54.-L 83I,J+ 85I3.5 34+5 M .I3++ .I+5. 3I,3, +4J, E+ 33+3C5 /0102 -+ +45K >/�.,R/6�.- 76�-C3: 76�-C3R�P:B;�:F=;>= C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�PB;;=9A: E C.IJ++ 83I,-+ +4CC 7 5I3,+ 3IJ,C 3ICCJ +4C. 7 .4-+L C.IJ++ 8,I.5C +4,- 7 5I3,+ .I.5C 3IKKK +4,3 7+ 33+3C5 :EY:7=;? -+ +4CK >/�.,R/6�.- 76�-C3R�P:B;�:F=;>= 76�-+ C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�PB;;=9A: E -JIJ++ 83I,-+ +4,+ 7 5I+.+ 3IJ,C 3ICCJ +4C- 7 .4-+L -JIJ++ 8,I.5C +4,J 7 5I+.+ .I.5C 3IKKK +4,8 7+ 33+8.5 /0102 -+ +4,J >/�.,R/6�.- 76�-+ <6:;E�SB<SQ:@ C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�PB;;=9A: E -JIJ++ 5CI.-+ +4C3 7 5I+.+ 3IC5+ 3I8.+ +4-8 7 34++L -JIJ++ 5KI+JJ +4C8 7 5I+.+ 3I,35 3I8J. +4-, 7+ 33-+8, /0102 -+ 34.. >/�.,R/6�.- <6:;E�SB<SQ:@ /6�-+ C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�7A=6P9;? E C.IJ++ .KI.-+ +48- 7 5I3,+ 3I.J5 3I.,J +483 7 34++L C.IJ++ .JICJ3 +48, 7 5I3,+ 3I5-J 3I588 +485 7+ 33++3. /0102 -- 34-8 >/�.,R/6�.- /6�-+ Y9S;/�A:H=�69:E C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�7A=6P9;? E C.IJ++ 58I-++ +4-- 7 5I3,+ 3I53. 3I58J +485 7 34++L C.IJ++ 5CI.C+ +4-K 7 5I3,+ 3I5,J 3I83K +48- 7+ 33++33 /0102 -- .4+C >/�.,R/6�.- Y9S;/�A:H=�69:E S:6EQ99E�P:6/S�69:E C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E C.IJ++ 58I.-+ +4-8 7 5I3,+ 3I8.K 3I5.3 +48- 7 34++L C.IJ++ 5-IJJ, +4-, 7 5I3,+ 3I-+3 3I5KK +48, 7+ 33+533 /0102 -- +4J- >/�.,R/6�.- S:6EQ99E�P:6/S�69:E A:H=�A9>B/:�69:E C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E C.IJ++ .CI-++ +48. 7 5I3,+ KJ8 3I+.3 +45. 7 .4-+L C.IJ++ .JIJK. +48K 7 5I3,+ 3I+33 3I3-- +45C 7+ 33+++, /0102 C- C4-3 >/�.,R/6�.- A:H=�A9>B/:�69:E D9<<@�P:6/S�6E C C 6>6:A EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E 8KI+J+ .KI+++ +4-K 7 .I-.+ 3I3,- 3I5J+ +4-- 7 .4,-L 8KI+J+ 5.I+CK +4C, 7 .I-.+ 3I58C 3I-J. +4C5 7+ 33+++, :EY:7=;? C- .4+3 >/�.,R/6�.- D9<<@�P:6/S�6E 76�8,8 C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E C.IJ++ .KI+++ +48- 7 5I3,+ 3I3,- 3I5J+ +488 7 .4,-L C.IJ++ 5.I+CK +4-3 7 5I3,+ 3I58C 3I-J. +4-+ 7383 7TUV0W -- 34,. >/�.,R/6�.- 76�8,8 >/�3J. C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E C.IJ++ -3IC8C +4K. 7 5I3,+ 3IJ.J 3I-8C +4C3 7 34-+L C.IJ++ --IC5, +4KK 7 5I3,+ .I+,K 3ICC- +4CC 7+ 33-+JC /0102 5- +4,- >/�883R�/6�-++ >/�.,R>/883�/GAB? A==�/?6==? 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 58I+.+ 53I.-+ +4J. E 3I,3+ 3I-C3 3I53J +4J3 E 34++L 58I+.+ 5.IK88 +4J, E 3I,3+ 3IC83 3I5KC +4JC E+ 33+8J. /0102 5- +48. >/�883R�/6�-++ A==�/?6==? ;�7:;:A�/?6==? 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 5.I8++ 5.I,-+ 34+3 = 3IC5+ 3IC58 3I5K3 34++ = 34++L 5.I8++ 58I8.3 34+C M 3IC5+ 3I,3, 3I8-3 34+- M+ 33-+J5 /0102 8- 34+C >/�883R�/6�-++ ;�7:;:A�/?6==? =�EBZB=�:F=;>= 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E 83I,J+ 5.I+++ +4,, 7 .I3++ 3I.,K 3I3KK +4C3 7 34++L 83I,J+ 55IC5. +4K+ 7 .I3++ 3I585 3I.8J +4C8 7+ 33-+J. /0102 8- +4.- >/�883R�/6�-++ =�EBZB=�:F=;>= =�P:B;�/?6==? C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E -JIJ++ -.I-++ +4KK 7 5I+.+ .I8J5 3IKK, +4K5 7 .4.-L -JIJ++ -KIC,K +4JK E 5I+.+ .I,KC .I3+J +4J. 7+ 33+3,, /0102 8- 3483 >/�883R�/6�-++ =�P:B;�/?6==? 76�88 C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E -JIJ++ 5CI,K8 +4C3 7 5I+.+ 3IK5, 3I8,5 +4C3 7 54++L -JIJ++ 8.IC85 +4,3 7 5I+.+ .I35+ 3I,+K +4,3 7+ 33+3,, :EY:7=;? 8- 54+, >/�883R�/6�-++ 76�88 6:EB9�69:E C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E C.IJ++ 5CI,K8 +4-K 7 5I3,+ 3IK5, 3I8,5 +4-K 7 54++L C.IJ++ 8.IC85 +4CK 7 5I3,+ .I35+ 3I,+K +4C, 7+ 33+3.K :EY:7=;? 8- +4KK >/�883R�/6�-++ 6:EB9�69:E� 76�8,5 C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�A==/D>6< E C.IJ++ 8CI-++ +4,8 7 5I3,+ 3IK8K 3IKJ- +4C+ 7 54-+L C.IJ++ --I.., +4KK 7 5I3,+ .I3J- .I.-3 +4,3 7+ 33+3.K /0102 -+ .455 >/�883R�/6�-++ 76�8,5 9AE�>/�883R�76�-++: C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�?:F:6=/ E C.IJ++ 8CI-++ +4,8 7 5I3,+ 3IK8K 3IKJ- +4C+ 7 54-+L C.IJ++ --I.., +4KK 7 5I3,+ .I3J- .I.-3 +4,3 7+ 33+-+8 /0102 8- +4.+ >/�883R�/6�-++ 9AE�>/�883R�76�-++: /6�3J�R�E>;7:;�E6BF= C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�?:F:6=/ E -JIJ++ .,I.-+ +48- 7 5I+.+ 3I+,8 3I3.+ +45, 7 34++L -JIJ++ .KIC8+ +48K 7 5I+.+ 3I3.J 3I3,, +45J 7+ 33+838 /0102 8- +4C. >/�883R�/6�-++ /6�3J�R�E>;7:;�E6BF= 76�8-.�R�/?�7A:B6�:D6:P/�:F=;>= C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�?:F:6=/ E -JIJ++ 8JI-++ +4K5 7 5I+.+ .I38K 3IJ5, +4,3 7 34++L -JIJ++ -.I+.- +4K, 7 5I+.+ .I.-K .I+5C +4,- 7+ 33+838 :EY:7=;? 8- +45J >/�883R�/6�-++ 76�8-.�R�/?�7A:B6�:D6:P/�:F=;>= 76�8-.�R�A:H=�=>/?B/�E6BF= C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�?:F:6=/ E C.IJ++ 8JI-++ +4,J 7 5I3,+ .I38K 3IJ5, +4CK 7 34++L C.IJ++ -.I+.- +4K5 7 5I3,+ .I.-K .I+5C +4,3 7+ 33+838 :EY:7=;? -+ 34.. >/�883R�/6�-++ 76�8-.�R�A:H=�=>/?B/�E6BF= E:FBE�Q:AH=6�E6BF= C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= =>/?B/R?:F:6=/ E C.IJ++ 8JI-++ +4,J 7 5I3,+ .I38K 3IJ5, +4CK 7 34++L C.IJ++ -.I+.- +4K5 7 5I3,+ .I.-K .I+5C +4,3 7+ 33+838 :EY:7=;? 8- 34+. >/�883R�/6�-++ E:FBE�Q:AH=6�E6BF= /6�3JR�D:@�/?6==? C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�=>/?B/ E C.IJ++ 8JI-++ +4,J 7 5I3,+ .I38K 3IJ5, +4CK 7 34++L C.IJ++ -.I+.- +4K5 7 5I3,+ .I.-K .I+5C +4,3 7+ 33+8,- :EY:7=;? -+ 345C >/�883R�/6�-++ /6�3JR�D:@�/?6==? 9AE�P?�E96:�69:E C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= =>/?B/RP9>;?�E96: E C.IJ++ -.I-++ +4K5 7 5I3,+ .I85J .I+C3 +4,, 7 84-+L C.IJ++ C-I8.- 34+8 M 5I3,+ 5I+5J .I-CK +4JC 7+ 33+8,- /0102 -+ 34.. >/�883R�/6�-++ 9AE�P?�E96:�69:E E9;;=AA@�/?6==?R/6�88 C C >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�P9>;?�E96: E C.IJ++ -.I-++ +4K5 7 5I3,+ .I85J .I+C3 +4,, 7 84-+L C.IJ++ C-I8.- 34+8 M 5I3,+ 5I+5J .I-CK +4JC 7+ 33+8JJ /0102 -- 343J >/�883R�/6�-++ E9;;=AA@�/?6==?R/6�88 Q9AM�D6:;7S�69:E 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�P9>;?�E96: E 83I,J+ 5+I,-+ +4,8 7 .I3++ 3I..3 3I-C+ +4,8 7 34++L 83I,J+ 5.I53J +4,, 7 .I3++ 3I.K5 3IC8+ +4,K 7+ 33+++. /0102 -- 3453 >/�883R�/6�-++ Q9AM�D6:;7S�69:E /6�8C 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�P9>;?�E96: E 83I,J+ 53I-++ +4,- 7 .I3++ 3I-K- 3I58+ +4,- 7 34++L 83I,J+ 55I3+, +4,J 7 .I3++ 3ICCC 3I8+K +4,J 7+ ,-+C8. /0102 -- +4,8 >/�883R�/6�-++ /6�8C 96:;<=�79>;?@�AB;= 8 8 >6D:; EBFBE=E /?:?= 7B?@�9M�P9>;?�E96: E 83I,J+ 58I+++ +4K3 7 .I3++ 3I88+ 3I..J +4CJ 7 .4,-L 83I,J+ 5KIJ5J +4J5 7 .I3++ 3IC8J 3I8+K +4,J 73J. 7TUV0W .- +4K5 FB/?:�E=A�A:<9�D9>A=F:6E A:H=�A9>B/:�69:E >/�., . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ E 35I5.+ 3I-., +433 7 CK+ ,J CC +43. 7 34++L 35I5.+ 3IC+- +43. 7 CK+ K5 CJ +43. 7.C- 7TUV0W 5+ +4KK Q:/SB;<?9;�:F=;>= S:/=A?9;�/?6==?� :D6:P/�69:E . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 7B?@�9M�=>/?B/ 7B?@�9M�=>/?B/ E 38I+C+ 3IJK+ +438 7 ,3+ ,J 33K +43, 7 34++L 38I+C+ .I+K3 +43- 7 ,3+ K5 3.8 +43, 73C8 7TUV0W 5- +4JJ Q:@769//�:F=;>= 79>;?@�7A>D�69:E /6�88�N9AE�7464�88DO . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�=>/?B/ E 38I+C+ -I,.. +483 7 ,3+ 3K5 5-J +4-3 E .4-+L 38I+C+ CI8,8 +48C 7 ,3+ .+, 8+C +4-, E.5C 7TUV0W .- +4-. Q=AA/�:F=;>= /6�3J A:H=�:F=;>= . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 7B?@�9M�?:F:6=/ 7B?@�9M�?:F:6=/ E 3+I5C+ 3I,C, +43, 7 -5+ 83 3.- +4.8 7 84,-L 3+I5C+ .I..K +4.. 7 -5+ -. 3-K +45+ 73.J 7TUV0W 8- 343C Q9AM�D6:;7S�69:E >/�883 D6B??�69:E . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�P9>;?�E96: E 3CIK.+ 38I5CJ +4K- 7 K8+ C+5 C,J +4K3 7 ,4,-L 3CIK.+ .+IK,+ 34.8 M K8+ K,C JKC 343, M38K 7TUV0W 8- 54-. Q9AM�D6:;7S�69:E D6B??�69:E 76�85, . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�P9>;?�E96: E 3CIK.+ ,I8+. +488 7 K8+ 5-J 583 +485 7 ,4.-L 3CIK.+ 3+I-+8 +4C. 7 K8+ -+J 8K8 +4C3 7.5- 33,+3- 7TUV0W 5- 34,3 Q99EA=:�69:E A:;=�G:6H�69:E /6�3J . . >6D:; >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ 7B?@�9M�?:F:6=/ E 38I+C+ 5I53J +4.8 7 ,3+ 3-5 3-+ +4.. 7 34++L 38I+C+ 5I8KK +4.- 7 ,3+ 3C3 3-K +4.5 7.. 7TUV0W 8- .438 @9>?S�7:PG�69:E />P?=6�79>;?@�AB;= :>/?B;�P=66B??�69:E . . 6>6:A >;EBFBE=E 79>;?@ >;B;796G96:?=E�A:H=�79>;?@ 7 ,I-C+ 3I3,K +43C D 5J+ 5K K+ +4.3 D .4.-L ,I-C+ 3I53, +43, D 5J+ 8. KJ +4.5 D

Y1VU1[W�.+.+

ATTACHMENT B -  Lake and Sumter Counties CMPs

jzaballero
Rectangle



Sumter County CMP Database

SEGMENT 
ID

COUNTY 
STATION FDOT STATION DATA SOURCE SPEED 

LIMIT

SEGMENT 
LENGTH 

(MI)
ROAD NAME FROM TO LANES 

(2019)
LANES 
(2024)

URBAN / 
RURAL

DIVIDED / 
UNDIVIDED

MAINTAINING 
AGENCY JURISDICTION

ADOPTED 
LOS 

STANDARD

DAILY 
SERVICE 
VOLUME

2019 AADT 2019 DAILY 
V/C

2019 DAILY 
LOS

PEAK HOUR 
DIRECTIONAL 

SERVICE VOLUME

2019 PEAK 
HOUR NB/EB 

VOLUME

2019 PEAK 
HOUR SB/WB 

VOLUME

2019 PEAK 
HOUR V/C

2019 PEAK 
HOUR LOS

GROWTH 
RATE

DAILY 
SERVICE 
VOLUME 

(2024)

2024 AADT 2024 DAILY 
V/C

2024 
DAILY 
LOS

PEAK HOUR 
DIRECTIONAL 

SERVICE 
VOLUME (2024)

2024 PEAK 
HOUR NB/EB 

VOLUME

2024 PEAK 
HOUR SB/WB 

VOLUME

2024 
PEAK 
HOUR 

V/C

2024 
PEAK 
HOUR 
LOS

6000015 348 SUMTER 35 0.43 BUENA VISTA BLVD SR 44 C-44A 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 29,160 12,447 0.43 C 1,467 599 598 0.41 C 1.00% 29,160 13,082 0.45 D 1,467 630 629 0.43 C
6000020 220 NO COUNT 30 0.09 MARIPOSA WAY C-466E 500 FT SOUTH MARIPOSA WAY 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 3,571 0.27 C 675 205 133 0.30 C 6.50% 13,320 4,893 0.37 C 675 281 182 0.42 C
6000030 185 SUMTER 30 0.36 BELVEDERE BLVD C-466E CHURCHILL DOWNS 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 11,502 0.86 D 675 586 614 0.91 D 1.25% 13,320 12,239 0.92 D 675 624 653 0.97 D
6000035 187 SUMTER 30 1.33 BELVEDERE BLVD CHURCHILL DOWNS BUENA VISTA BLVD 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 7,855 0.59 D 675 422 359 0.63 D 5.75% 13,320 10,388 0.78 D 675 558 475 0.83 D
6000045 329 SUMTER 20 0.51 BONITA BLVD CANAL ST MORSE BLVD N 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 3,804 0.29 C 675 193 169 0.29 C 7.00% 13,320 5,335 0.40 C 675 271 237 0.40 C
6000050 326 SUMTER 20 0.52 BONITA BLVD BUENA VISTA BLVD CANAL ST 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 4,349 0.33 C 675 218 228 0.34 C 2.25% 13,320 4,861 0.36 C 675 244 255 0.38 C
6000055 216 SUMTER 25 0.49 CANAL ST C-466A ODELL CIR (S) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 3,571 0.27 C 675 205 133 0.30 C 6.50% 13,320 4,893 0.37 C 675 281 182 0.42 C
6000060 213 SUMTER 20 0.63 CANAL ST ODELL CIR (S) BONITA BLVD 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 5,199 0.39 C 675 239 242 0.36 C 8.00% 13,320 7,639 0.57 D 675 351 356 0.53 D
6000065 204 SUMTER 30 0.97 CANAL ST BONITA BLVD ODELL CIR (N) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 5,629 0.42 C 675 224 297 0.44 C 4.25% 13,320 6,931 0.52 D 675 276 366 0.54 D
6000070 198 SUMTER 35 0.76 CANAL ST ODELL CIR (N) STILLWATER TRL 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 5,490 0.41 C 675 258 274 0.41 C 2.75% 13,320 6,288 0.47 C 675 295 314 0.47 C
6000080 195 NO COUNT 25 0.62 CHURCHILL DOWNS BELEVEDERE BLVD MORVEN PARKWAY 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 7,855 0.59 D 675 422 359 0.63 D 5.75% 13,320 10,388 0.78 D 675 558 475 0.83 D
6000085 275 SUMTER 35 2.00 NE 90TH ST (CR 100) TERMINUS (Lake Ella Rd) C-466 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 10,360 2,080 0.20 C 525 82 141 0.27 C 6.75% 10,360 2,883 0.28 C 525 114 195 0.37 C
6000090 69 188040 FDOT 35 0.23 LYNNHAVEN LN C-472 CHURCHILL DOWNS 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 2,780 0.21 C 675 100 140 0.21 C 1.00% 13,320 2,922 0.22 C 675 105 147 0.22 C
6000095 72 NO COUNT 35 0.30 LYNNHAVEN LN CHURCHILL DOWNS BELVEDERE BLVD 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 6,737 0.51 D 675 302 265 0.45 C 1.50% 13,320 7,258 0.54 D 675 325 285 0.48 C
6000100 246 SUMTER 25 0.44 ODELL CIRCLE BUENA VISTA BLVD (S) BACKWATER WAY 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 6,186 0.46 C 675 295 304 0.45 C 7.25% 13,320 8,778 0.66 D 675 419 431 0.64 D
6000105 240 SUMTER 35 0.38 ODELL CIRCLE CANAL ST (S) ARVIN LN 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 6,734 0.51 D 675 310 315 0.47 C 8.25% 13,320 10,010 0.75 D 675 461 468 0.69 D
6000110 231 SUMTER 25 0.51 ODELL CIRCLE MORSE BLVD N (S) STILLWATER TRL 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 5,866 0.44 C 675 245 319 0.47 C 3.00% 13,320 6,800 0.51 D 675 284 370 0.55 D
6000115 482 SUMTER 30 1.55 ODELL CIRCLE STILLWATER TRL MORSE BLVD N (N) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 9,051 0.68 D 675 473 406 0.70 D 1.00% 13,320 9,513 0.71 D 675 497 427 0.74 D
6000120 228 SUMTER 30 0.31 ODELL CIRCLE MORSE BLVD N (N) CANAL ST (N) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 4,993 0.37 C 675 297 282 0.44 C 1.00% 13,320 5,248 0.39 C 675 312 296 0.46 C
6000125 222 SUMTER 30 0.36 ODELL CIRCLE CANAL ST (N) BUENA VISTA BLVD (N) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 4,909 0.37 C 675 250 270 0.40 C 7.00% 13,320 6,885 0.52 D 675 351 379 0.56 D
6000130 264 SUMTER 20 0.39 STILLWATER TRL CANAL ST MORSE BLVD 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 11,306 0.39 C 1,467 490 540 0.37 C 4.75% 29,160 14,259 0.49 D 1,467 618 681 0.46 D
6000135 261 SUMTER 35 0.35 STILLWATER TRL BUENA VISTA BLVD CANAL ST 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 11,678 0.40 C 1,467 512 542 0.37 C 2.00% 29,160 12,893 0.44 C 1,467 565 598 0.41 C
6000145 454 SUMTER 35 0.51 CR 139 (Powell Rd) SR 44 C-44A 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 30,780 10,667 0.35 C 1,549 542 451 0.35 C 1.00% 30,780 11,211 0.36 C 1,549 570 474 0.37 C

32230001 116 SUMTER 40 0.63 CR 673 CR 674 US 301/SR 35 2 2 RURAL UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY C 16,400 2,198 0.13 B 850 103 68 0.12 B 4.75% 16,400 2,772 0.17 B 850 130 86 0.15 B
32531601 430 180088 FDOT 50 5.60 US 301/SR 35 C-542 C-470 E (S) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED STATE UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 24,200 6,543 0.27 B 1,190 226 349 0.29 B 4.00% 24,200 7,961 0.33 B 1,190 274 425 0.36 C
32531602 428 180001 180042 FDOT 55 1.36 US 301/SR 35 C-476 (Noble Av) C-542 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED STATE BUSHNELL D 14,160 5,336 0.38 C 704 202 263 0.37 C 4.00% 14,160 6,492 0.46 C 704 245 320 0.45 C
32532601 400 185008 FDOT 40 1.28 US 301/SR 35 C-466A (Cleveland Ave) C-462 (S) 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED STATE WILDWOOD D 39,800 20,957 0.53 C 2,000 913 788 0.46 C 3.50% 39,800 24,890 0.63 C 2,000 1,084 936 0.54 C
32533001 420 180210 FDOT 45 1.26 US 301/SR 35 C-472 C-466 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED STATE WILDWOOD D 41,790 24,943 0.60 C 2,100 1,136 979 0.54 C 4.25% 41,790 30,713 0.73 C 2,100 1,399 1,205 0.67 C
32533101 440 180100 FDOT 45 0.75 US 301/SR 35 C-466 CR 204 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED STATE WILDWOOD D 39,800 21,071 0.53 C 2,000 962 829 0.48 C 5.25% 39,800 27,214 0.68 C 2,000 1,242 1,071 0.62 C
32533102 450 180100 FDOT 45 1.52 US 301/SR 35 CR 204 MARION COUNTY BOUNDARY 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED STATE WILDWOOD D 39,800 21,071 0.53 C 2,000 962 829 0.48 C 5.25% 39,800 27,214 0.68 C 2,000 1,242 1,071 0.62 C
33000001 289 SUMTER 20 0.33 BUENA VISTA BLVD BELVEDERE BLVD TALL TREES LN 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 20,031 0.69 D 1,467 970 896 0.66 D 4.00% 29,160 24,371 0.84 D 1,467 1,180 1,090 0.80 D
33000002 286 SUMTER 35 0.23 BUENA VISTA BLVD TALL TREES LN LAUREL MANOR DR 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 18,934 0.65 D 1,467 888 878 0.61 D 1.00% 29,160 19,900 0.68 D 1,467 933 923 0.64 D
33000003 283 SUMTER 35 0.15 BUENA VISTA BLVD LAUREL MANOR DR C-466 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 17,836 0.61 D 1,467 806 860 0.59 D 1.00% 29,160 18,746 0.64 D 1,467 847 904 0.62 D
35270001 56 188014 FDOT 55 2.45 C-470 E US 301/SR 35 NE 50TH WAY 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 24,200 8,979 0.37 C 1,190 339 393 0.33 B 9.00% 24,200 13,815 0.57 C 1,190 522 605 0.51 C
35270002 58 SUMTER 55 1.49 C-470 E NE 50TH WAY CR 501 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 24,200 9,939 0.41 C 1,190 443 345 0.37 C 8.75% 24,200 15,118 0.62 C 1,190 674 525 0.57 C
35270003 59 SUMTER 55 2.56 C-470 E CR 501 LAKE COUNTY BOUNDARY 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 24,200 10,669 0.44 C 1,190 504 407 0.42 C 8.25% 24,200 15,859 0.66 C 1,190 749 605 0.63 C
35281102 8 SUMTER 35 1.54 C-44A SR 44 (W) CR 213 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 24,200 1,298 0.05 B 1,190 56 81 0.07 B 1.25% 24,200 1,381 0.06 B 1,190 60 86 0.07 B
35281103 1100 WILDWOOD 35 1.13 C-44A CR 213 US 301/SR 35 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 24,200 1,298 0.05 B 1,190 56 81 0.07 B 1.00% 24,200 1,364 0.06 B 1,190 59 85 0.07 B
35281301 9 - SUMTER 35 0.52 C-44A CR 139 BUENA VISTA BLVD 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 30,780 6,664 0.22 C 1,549 295 284 0.19 C 5.75% 30,780 8,813 0.29 C 1,549 390 376 0.25 C
35281302 354 SUMTER 25 2.80 C-44A BUENA VISTA BLVD SR 44 (E) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 24,200 1,532 0.06 B 1,190 70 69 0.06 B 8.50% 24,200 2,304 0.10 B 1,190 105 104 0.09 B
35310001 81 187006 SUMTER 35 0.43 C-475 S (Main Street) SR 48 W JUMPER DR S 4 4 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY BUSHNELL D 30,780 7,145 0.23 C 1,549 288 429 0.28 C 4.25% 30,780 8,798 0.29 C 1,549 355 528 0.34 C
35310002 80 SUMTER 45 0.57 C-475 S (Main Street) JUMPER DR S CR 542 W 4 4 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY BUSHNELL D 37,810 3,502 0.09 C 1,900 176 165 0.09 C 11.75% 37,810 6,103 0.16 C 1,900 307 288 0.16 C
35310003 79 - CONSTRUCTION 55 1.27 C-475 S CR 542 W CR 532 W 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY BUSHNELL D 24,200 4,587 0.19 B 1,190 234 202 0.20 B 1.00% 24,200 4,821 0.20 B 1,190 246 212 0.21 B
35310004 78 - CONSTRUCTION 55 3.69 C-475 S CR 532 W C-470 E 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY BUSHNELL D 24,200 4,021 0.17 B 1,190 205 177 0.17 B 1.00% 24,200 4,226 0.17 B 1,190 215 186 0.18 B
35320001 112 188011 FDOT 55 1.60 C-575 C-476 CR 663 2 2 RURAL UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY C 16,400 729 0.04 B 850 31 36 0.04 B 1.00% 16,400 766 0.05 B 850 33 38 0.04 B
35331101 41 SUMTER 45 0.75 C-466A C-462/CR 139 C-133 (NE 57th Dr) 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 37,810 22,776 0.60 C 1,900 969 1,036 0.55 C 4.75% 37,810 28,724 0.76 C 1,900 1,222 1,307 0.69 C
35331102 43 SUMTER 45 0.68 C-466A C-133 (NE 57th Dr) BUENA VISTA BLVD 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 37,810 25,010 0.66 C 1,900 1,117 1,172 0.62 C 5.75% 37,810 33,076 0.87 C 1,900 1,477 1,550 0.82 C
35331103 46 ADJACENT 45 1.07 C-466A BUENA VISTA BLVD CANAL ST 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 37,810 18,028 0.48 C 1,900 826 784 0.43 C 3.50% 37,810 21,412 0.57 C 1,900 981 931 0.52 C
35331104 46 SUMTER 45 1.07 C-466A CANAL ST MORSE BLVD 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 37,810 18,028 0.48 C 1,900 826 784 0.43 C 3.50% 37,810 21,412 0.57 C 1,900 981 931 0.52 C
35331105 49 187031 SUMTER 45 0.61 C-466A MORSE BLVD LAKE COUNTY BOUNDARY 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 37,810 19,532 0.52 C 1,900 845 920 0.48 C 2.50% 37,810 22,099 0.58 C 1,900 956 1,041 0.55 C
35371401 25 SUMTER 45 0.25 C-466 CR 105 CR 103 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 35,820 21,605 0.60 C 1,800 819 1,123 0.62 C 1.00% 35,820 22,707 0.63 C 1,800 861 1,180 0.66 C
35380001 90 SUMTER 45 1.55 C-476B SW 95TH AVE C-476 W 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY C 17,000 1,942 0.11 B 840 118 56 0.14 B 1.00% 17,000 2,041 0.12 B 840 124 59 0.15 B
35411002 16 187003 FDOT 45 1.14 C-462 CR 121 CR 134 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY F 33,300 9,771 0.29 C 1,640 416 358 0.25 B 1.00% 33,300 10,269 0.31 C 1,640 437 376 0.27 C
35411003 17 SUMTER 45 0.50 C-462 CR 134 C-466A 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD F 33,300 11,810 0.35 C 1,640 674 419 0.41 C 1.00% 33,300 12,412 0.37 C 1,640 708 440 0.43 C
35411101 12 - SUMTER 35 0.85 C-462 CR 131 CR 121 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD F 33,300 14,168 0.43 C 1,640 458 904 0.55 D 6.25% 33,300 19,185 0.58 D 1,640 620 1,224 0.75 E
35431101 800 WILDWOOD 35 0.93 C-472 CR 117 LYNN HAVEN LANE 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 14,060 6,785 0.48 C 713 259 381 0.53 D 1.75% 14,060 7,400 0.53 D 713 282 416 0.58 D
35431102 67 SUMTER 35 0.82 C-472 LYNN HAVEN LANE BUENA VISTA BLVD 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 6,737 0.51 D 675 302 265 0.45 C 1.50% 13,320 7,258 0.54 D 675 325 285 0.48 C
35480001 180197 180197 FDOT 60 16.73 SR 471 POLK COUNTY BOUNDARY SR 50 2 2 RURAL UNDIVIDED STATE UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY C 8,400 3,600 0.43 B 430 130 124 0.30 B 6.50% 8,400 4,932 0.59 C 430 177 170 0.41 B
35501001 60 SUMTER 35 1.78 C-470 N CR 479 SR 93/I-75 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 24,200 8,107 0.34 B 1,190 405 302 0.34 B 1.00% 24,200 8,521 0.35 B 1,190 426 317 0.36 C
35511201 398 180201 FDOT 45 0.63 SR 44 CR 139 BUENA VISTA BLVD 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED STATE WILDWOOD D 41,790 20,843 0.50 C 2,100 904 779 0.43 C 2.75% 41,790 23,871 0.57 C 2,100 1,035 892 0.49 C
35511202 456 180005 FDOT 55 2.94 SR 44 BUENA VISTA BLVD C-468 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED STATE UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 41,790 20,343 0.49 C 2,100 777 859 0.41 C 4.25% 41,790 25,049 0.60 C 2,100 957 1,057 0.50 C
35541001 108 SUMTER 45 0.18 C-48 CR 313 SR 93/I-75 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY BUSHNELL D 37,810 10,439 0.28 C 1,900 415 390 0.22 C 4.75% 37,810 13,165 0.35 C 1,900 523 492 0.28 C
35541002 410 180016 SUMTER 40 0.32 SR 48 (CR 48 W) SR 93/I-75 CR 609 4 4 RURAL DIVIDED STATE BUSHNELL D 31,920 16,596 0.52 C 1,659 685 768 0.46 C 2.50% 31,920 18,777 0.59 C 1,659 775 869 0.52 C
35581601 408 180089 FDOT 55 6.29 SR 471 C-476 US 301/SR 35 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED STATE UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 24,200 5,386 0.22 B 1,190 251 253 0.21 B 8.50% 24,200 8,099 0.33 B 1,190 377 380 0.32 B
40010001 278 SUMTER 35 0.24 CR 103 C-466 E WOODRIDGE DR 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 30,780 3,299 0.11 C 1,549 147 183 0.12 C 2.75% 30,780 3,778 0.12 C 1,549 168 210 0.14 C
40090001 113 SUMTER 55 2.43 CR 501 C-500 Corbin Trail 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 24,200 6,291 0.26 B 1,190 338 254 0.28 B 12.00% 24,200 11,087 0.46 C 1,190 596 448 0.50 C
40090002 113 ADJACENT 55 0.48 CR 501 Corbin Trail C-468 (Warm Springs Ave) 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY WILDWOOD D 35,820 6,291 0.18 C 1,800 338 254 0.19 C 12.00% 35,820 11,087 0.31 C 1,800 596 448 0.33 C
50000101 149 SUMTER 35 0.49 BUENA VISTA BLVD C-466 SADDLEBROOK LN 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 19,270 0.66 D 1,467 859 838 0.59 D 1.00% 29,160 20,253 0.69 D 1,467 903 881 0.62 D
50000102 352 SUMTER 35 1.39 BUENA VISTA BLVD SADDLEBROOK LN EL CAMINO REAL 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 21,462 0.74 D 1,467 922 1,027 0.70 D 1.00% 29,160 22,557 0.77 D 1,467 969 1,079 0.74 D
59999951 182 SUMTER 35 0.50 MORSE BLVD N C-466A ODELL CIRCLE S. END 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 22,470 0.77 D 1,467 1,055 1,012 0.72 D 3.25% 29,160 26,367 0.90 D 1,467 1,238 1,187 0.84 D
59999952 176 SUMTER 35 0.54 MORSE BLVD N ODELL CIRCLE S. END BONITA BLVD 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 14,473 0.50 D 1,467 626 652 0.44 C 3.25% 29,160 16,983 0.58 D 1,467 735 765 0.52 D
59999953 170 SUMTER 35 1.12 MORSE BLVD N BONITA BLVD ODELL CIRCLE N. END 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 12,800 0.44 C 1,467 619 568 0.42 C 2.25% 29,160 14,306 0.49 D 1,467 692 635 0.47 D
59999954 164 SUMTER 35 0.86 MORSE BLVD N ODELL CIRCLE N. END STILLWATER TRAIL 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 16,467 0.56 D 1,467 784 730 0.53 D 1.00% 29,160 17,307 0.59 D 1,467 824 767 0.56 D
59999955 158 SUMTER 35 0.98 MORSE BLVD N STILLWATER TRAIL C-466 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 26,685 0.92 D 1,467 1,231 1,161 0.84 D 1.00% 29,160 28,046 0.96 D 1,467 1,294 1,220 0.88 D
60000051 311 SUMTER 35 0.42 BUENA VISTA BLVD ST. CHARLES PL ODELL CIRCLE S. END 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 15,270 0.52 D 1,467 679 806 0.55 D 1.00% 29,160 16,049 0.55 D 1,467 714 847 0.58 D
60000052 308 SUMTER 35 0.68 BUENA VISTA BLVD ODELL CIRCLE S. END BONITA BLVD 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 12,758 0.44 C 1,467 562 596 0.41 C 2.00% 29,160 14,086 0.48 D 1,467 620 658 0.45 D
60000053 305 SUMTER 35 0.94 BUENA VISTA BLVD BONITA BLVD ODELL CIRCLE N. END 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 14,224 0.49 D 1,467 628 667 0.45 D 1.75% 29,160 15,513 0.53 D 1,467 685 727 0.50 D
60000054 302 SUMTER 35 0.61 BUENA VISTA BLVD ODELL CIRCLE N. END STILLWATER TRAIL 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 23,446 0.80 D 1,467 923 1,238 0.84 D 1.00% 29,160 24,642 0.85 D 1,467 970 1,301 0.89 D
60000055 299 SUMTER 35 0.58 BUENA VISTA BLVD STILLWATER TRAIL TEMBERRY FOREST DR 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 18,964 0.65 D 1,467 761 1,030 0.70 D 1.00% 29,160 19,931 0.68 D 1,467 800 1,083 0.74 D
60000056 295 SUMTER 35 0.93 BUENA VISTA BLVD TEMBERRY FOREST DR C-472 (Rainey Trail) 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 29,160 22,645 0.78 D 1,467 1,051 1,055 0.72 D 1.00% 29,160 23,800 0.82 D 1,467 1,105 1,109 0.76 D
60000201 219 NO COUNT 30 0.12 MARIPOSA WAY 500 FT SOUTH MARIPOSA WAY MORSE BLVD N 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 3,571 0.27 C 675 205 133 0.30 C 6.50% 13,320 4,893 0.37 C 675 281 182 0.42 C
60000801 192 188037 FDOT 25 1.12 CHURCHILL DOWNS MORVEN PARKWAY LYNNHAVEN LN 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 1,540 0.12 C 675 75 67 0.11 C 1.00% 13,320 1,619 0.12 C 675 79 70 0.12 C
60001001 243 SUMTER 30 0.38 ODELL CIRCLE BACKWATER WAY CANAL ST (S) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 5,630 0.42 C 675 221 310 0.46 C 1.00% 13,320 5,917 0.44 C 675 232 326 0.48 C
60001051 237 SUMTER 25 0.52 ODELL CIRCLE ARVIN LN MORSE BLVD N (S) 2 2 URBAN UNDIVIDED COUNTY UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 13,320 6,664 0.50 D 675 359 303 0.53 D 7.75% 13,320 9,679 0.73 D 675 521 440 0.77 D
355113021 1240 180005 WILDWOOD 55 1.26 SR 44 C-468 LAKE COUNTY BOUNDARY 4 4 URBAN DIVIDED STATE UNINCORPORATED SUMTER COUNTY D 39,800 23,600 0.59 C 2,000 915 1,054 0.53 C 4.75% 39,800 29,763 0.75 C 2,000 1,154 1,329 0.66 C

April 2020

ATTACHMENT B -  Lake and Sumter Counties CMPs

jzaballero
Rectangle



Attachment C - Planned and Programmed Improvements



CFRPM7 Year 2025 CF - Project Distribution

 (Licensed to Vanasse Hangen Brustlin Inc)

C:\FSUTMS\D5\CFRPM7\Base\CF_2025\P63887\OUTPUT\HWYLOAD_SL_AllDay_M25.NET 

NUM_LANES=1

NUM_LANES=2

NUM_LANES=3

NUM_LANES=4

FAC_TYPE=51

0.58 0

0

0

0
.4

5

0.01

0.03

0

0.08

0
.1

2

0

0

0.31

0

0

0

0
.0

7
0.52

0

0

0.31

0

0.
13

0

0.
53

0.41

0.
39

0.
3
7

0

0

0.
23

0.290.09

0

0

1.
01

0.03

0.1

0

0

0.05

0

0

0.23

0

0

0.190

0

0.37

0

0.25

0

0

0.51

0

0
.4

9

0
.1

7

0.07

0
.0

5

0
.0

5

0

0
.0

6

0

0

0

0.03

0
.2

3

0

0
.6

3

1.89

0

0
0

0.55

0
.1

5

0.5

0
.4

1

0

0

0.06

0

0

0.67

0
.2

3

0.55

0

2
.7

2

0

0

0

0

0.35

0

0

0
.3 0

.1
9

0

0.24

0

1.03

0
.0

7

0

0.61

0
0.

1

0

0

1.16

0
.1

9

0

0

0

0.06

1
.1

1

0.
09

0
0

0

0
.8

3

0

0

0
.1

2

0

0

00.13

0

0.38

0

0.1

0
.6

8

0

00

0

0.49

0

0
.0

8

0

0

0.5

0
.1

8

0
.3

6

0

0

0

0.5

0
0

0

0
.3

0

0

00
.4

1

2
.3

9

0

0

0

0.3

0

0

0
.8

7

0

0.55

0

0

0

0.17

0

0.49

0

0
.3

2

0.82

0

0.06

0.27

0

0.1

0
.3

5

0.94

0

0.
05

0.12

0

0

0
.0

5

0

0.8

0
1.

13

0

0.05

0

1
0
0

0.12

0

0

0.0
7

0

0.43

0

0

0

0.
23

0

0

0
.2

8

0.07

0

0.21

0

0

0

0

0
.4

6

1.
7

0
.1

5

0.
47

0

0.06

0

0
.1

3

0
.0

3 0

1.08

0.1

0

1.47

0
.8

1

0

0

0
0.15

0.23

0
0.93

0

0.83

0

0

0

1
.2

1
.0

5

0

0.96

1.56

0

0

0

0

0

0
.5

9

0.09
0.84

0
.9

5

0

0
.3

5

0.3
7

0

2
.6

6

0

0.
55

1
.7

5

0

0

0

0

0
.6

2

0

1
.1

0

0
.8

3

0
.2

1

1.41

0

1.5

0

0.
85

0

0.8
2

0

0
.6

5

0

0
.7

6

0

0.62

0 1
.2

5

0

0
.7

7

0

0

0.15
0.09

0
.0

5

0.27

0
.5

9

0

0
.8

8

0

0.3

0

0

0.4

1
.0

6

0

0

0
.2

0.06

0
.1

3

0

0

0.45

0

0

0.15

0

0
.0

4

0

0

0.
24

0.
15

0

0
.3

4

0

0.1

0

0.
38

0

0

0

0.21

0

0.06

0

0
.0

6

0

0
.3

1

0

0

0.23

0

0.08

0
.0

7

0
.1

0.04

0
.0

4

0

0

0
.2

0.
14

0

0.2

0

0.41

0

0

0

0

0

0.17

0

0

0

0
.0

6

0.25

0

0

0

0.
13

0
.0

7

0.23

0
.1

5

0.4
1

0

0.02

0
.3

3

0.01

0.2
9

0

0.11

0

0
.1

70

0.05

0.06

0
.1

2

0
.0

6

0.06

0.
44

0

0.07

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.07

0

0

0

0.06

0
.0

6
0

0

0

0

0

0
.9

6

0

0.96

12.16

1
. 1

9

1
0.9

6

4
.7

1

0

5
.7

7

1.08

7
. 8

7

3
. 2

5 4
.5

7

1.
11

0.12

2
.1

8

2
.4

3

0.
72

0

0.13

1
.3

8

3
. 4

7

0.
17

2.27

0
.2

3

4.
77

5.02

0

6.79

4

0

0.22

2
.0

7

0

4.1
0.22

4
.3

2

0

0
.1

0

0

0

0
.5

6.28

5.76

1
.1

9

0.07

0

1
.1

4

3
.7

6

0

3
.7

6

0 7

0.57

0
.4

3

0.11

0

0

0

1
.3

8

1
. 6

9

0.11

0

0.5

0

0.57

0.9

4
. 5

3
. 3

5

0.27

2
.7

3

0.23

2.51

3

5
.0

3

1.596
.6

2

3
.0

2

0.
75

2
.3

0

0.
16

42.98

1
3
.5

9

56.57 3
.3

3

1
. 2

7

23.42

0
. 8

1

0
.2

9

0.73

0.19

02
.1

9

2
.1

9

0

6.79

6.79

7

7

4.
52

0

0.150
.1

5

1
. 6

9

1
.6

9

0

2.38

0
.1

1

2.27

0

0
.3

6

0.36

0

0

0.05

3
.0

6

0
.3

5

0

0.4

0.
4

0

0.15

0

0

0

0
.3

0.3

7
.3

4

3
. 8

1

3.54

0

0
.2

8

0 0
.1

5

0.12

0.24

0

0
.2

4

1.63

3
.3

1.64

0

0
.2

4

0 0

0

7.62

5.99

1
3
.5

9

0.07

0

0.82

0

0.03

8
.9

6

32.48

23.49

1
.3

2

0
.8

3

0

0.45

0.52

1
.1

1

0.01

0.03

0
.2

8

5.48

5.76

0.07

0

0.03

0
.2

8

0

0
.8

3

0
.8

3

0

6
.9

9

7
. 8

1

0.82

0

7
.6

2

0

1
.0

2

1
.1

4

0.09

0

0

0.
4

3
.0

6

1
4
. 2

2

1
3
.3

4

0.03

0.03

0

0.07

0

0

0
.1

2

0.05

0.09

0.28

0

0.38 0

0.39

0

0

0.28

0
.0

2

0

0

0.44

1
.3

8

1
.6

4

0

0

7
.9

2

5.55

0.03

0.03

1
.0

1

1
. 6

9

0.52

0

5
.7

7

2.51

0

7
. 3

4

0.22

0
. 9

6

0

4
.7

1

0
. 4

0

3.39

0
.4

2.38

35.18

0

0

0

4.
77

2
. 2

9

1
.1

9

0.22

23.42

0.45

0.19

5.13

0.12

0
.2

8

0.154
.6

6

0
.5

5

0

7
.9

2

7
.9

2

0.15

0.4
42.77

0.19

0
.2

8

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.41

1
3
.5

9

0

0
. 9

6

0.63

0.12

2
.1

9

0

0.12

0
.1

0

3.3

0

1
.1

4

2
.7

3

6
. 6

2

0.01

0

0

0

1
.2

6

0

0.37

0.23

0

0.56

0.27

0

1
4
.0

2

0.3

0

0

0

0.11

0.11

2
.2

9

0.82

0
.4

1
.1

1

0

3.08

7
.9

2

1
.0

1

0
. 8

2

3
.0

6

0

0.09

0.45

0
.2

4

36.04

1.2

0.01

0
.9

1

0.11

0.06

0 0
.0

2

0
.1

1

0.110.1
0

0

0
.9

1

0.15

0
.9

1

0.06

0.06

1.22

1.5

0.52

0.23

0
.5

9

0

1.9

0.
15

1.9

1.9

0

6.03

4
.9

4

1.
38

1.93

0

3.3

0
.3

1

1.28

0.98

3.36

4.31

0

0
.9

6

0

0
.0

7

0
.2

1

0

1
.3

17.27

1
2
.4

1
1
.2

5

40.87

1
.0

4

0

0
. 0

5

0.7

0.64

2
.0

4

6.08

1
.2

3

2.85 6.42

11.41

2
.0

4

0

2.51

0.77

0
0

0
.3

1

0

0

0

0.58

1.28

2.9

1
.4

7
0

0 2.32

2.16

1

0
1.81

0

2
. 0

4

0

1
. 2

5

1.99

0.06

3.29

14.14

0.
01

0.46

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
.0

7

0

0

0

0

0.03

0.1

0
.1

7

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1.03

0.03

0
.8

8

0

0.01

0

0.15

00.15

0

0

4.89

5
.5

1

0

0

1

0
.2

3

1
.2

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
3.16

0

0.4

6.
61

5.77

0

0

0

2.04

0

2.
04

0

0

0 0

6.64

3.7

0
.6

0.2

8
.6

5

2.03

0.46

0.81

0
.7

8

0

0.2

0

1
.27

0.46

0.
46

0

1
.2

7

0

2.29

0

0

0.3

3.29

4
.9

4

1.7

0
0

0

0

0

3.29

0

0

0.63

0
.4

1.2

0
.7

6

0.4

0

0

0.24

0

0

0.07

0

0

0.46

0

0

6.08

0

0

0

0

2
.9

4

2
.1

2

0

0

0

1.5

0

0

0

0

3.3

0
.2

3

0.01

0
.5

9

1.10

0

0

0
.0

8

0

0

0.1

0

1.9

1

0

0

5
.5

5

1
.2

3

0.82

0

0

0

0
.5

9

0

0

0
.3

1

0.6

0

0.
6

0
.4

0
.2

0

0

2.2

0.08

2.2

0

00

0.0600

0
0

0.1
7

0
.1

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.39

0.1
0.39

0.39

5
.5

5

0.3

0.3

0
.4

0.3

Attachment D: CFRPM Model – Trip Distribution

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval

jzaballero
Oval



Attachment E:  Trip Generation - Concept Development Program 

Daily Trips
Daily Trips Total % In Enter Exit

820 Shopping Center 94,000 SF 5,764 519 48% 249 270
820 Shopping Center 33,000 SF 2,829 239 48% 115 124
932 High Turnover Sit-Down Restaurant 7,000 SF 785 68 62% 42 26
934 High Turnover Sit-Down Restaurant 5,600 SF 628 55 62% 34 21
934 Fast Food with Drive Thru 4,000 SF 1,884 131 52% 68 63
221 Multi-Family (Mid-Rise) 768 DU 4,184 338 61% 206 132

16,074 1,350 714 636
2,377 293 146 147
1,578 138 69 69

12,119 919 499 420
Source: Institute of Transportation (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition

NCHRP Report 684
ITE Trip Generation Handbook, 3rd Edition

Concept 

 Total Trips
Internal Capture 14.79% / 21.7%)

Pass By Trips (limited to 10% of 2030 background traffic)
Total New External Trips

PM Peak Hr TripsDevelopment 
Scenarios

ITE 
Code Land Use Size Units



 

0038773\193462\11446843v4 

FRUITLAND PARK COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ZONING JUSTIFICATION STATEMENT 

The Applicant has submitted for a large-scale Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use amendment 
from Community Mixed Use (6 units/acre) to General Mixed Use (12 units/acre) and a companion 
rezoning from Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Mixed Use Planned Unit Development 
(MUPUD).  Per Table 154.030.01, MUPUD is a compatible zoning designation with the requested 
Future Land Use designation of General Mixed Use. 

 

 

The City and FRANK STEPHAN BOUIS, TRUSTEE OF THE FRANK STEPHAN BOUIS FAMILY 
TRUST DATED OCTOBER 16, 2008 had previously entered into the Like Oak Center Master 
Development Agreement on January 27, 2010 (the “Original Agreement”) regarding the 
annexation, rezoning and future land use designation for Parcel ID 05-19-24-0003-000-02000 
(the “Subject Property”), which Original Agreement needs to be updated to reflect the satisfaction 
of certain obligations therein and changing market conditions and demands in the area. 

 



 

0038773\193462\11446843v4 

COMPREHENSVE PLAN ANALYSIS 

The Subject Property is comprised of approximately 68.55 acres and currently has a future land 
use designation of Community Mixed Use and therefore a Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
map amendment with a compatible rezoning is required for any development of the Subject 
Property.  The requested General Mixed Use Future Land Use designation permits up to 12 
dwelling units/acre and is a compatible and consistent with the surrounding development pattern.  
Under the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2035 (“Comp Plan”), the City has “anticipated that 
additional housing needs will be accommodated primarily within mixed use developments.”  In 
June 2020, the City ranked highest in the Central Florida area for population growth rates since 
2010, up 159.9%, from 4,129 to 10,730 residents.  As shown in the Comp Plan, the City’s 
projected population for 2025 has already been surpassed and this growth rate is expected to 
have a continued upward trajectory and therefore additional housing, retail and job opportunities 
are critical to the City’s long-term economic growth and sustainability. 

 

The Future Land Use Element of the Comp Plan provides that the City has the following goals 
which are satisfied by this request: 

 To encourage a mix and location of land uses designed to increase accessibility of 
Fruitland Park’s residents to services, recreation, jobs and housing. 

 To encourage the co-location of jobs with housing and expand residents’ ability to work in 
close proximity to their homes. 

 To encourage a mix of housing types and styles that provides people with affordable 
housing choices that can accommodate changes in lifestyle. 

This Subject Property offers the perfect opportunity for “mixed use communities that will provide 
employment, recreation, and public facilities not only for residents who reside in those 
communities, but also for existing and future residents who live in nearby residential 
neighborhoods.”  As “it is the City’s goal to be a full service medium sized city,” the Comp Plan 
recognizes that “it is necessary to provide a full range of uses to serve and support the residential 
population, including employment centers [and] retail” uses.  The City further acknowledges in 
their Comp Plan that “it is anticipated that s significant portion of the additional commercial 
acreage needs will be incorporated in mixed use land use categories.”  The requested General 
Mixed Use designation therefore fits into the City’s vision and goals for growth, and additional  
policies which are met through this request are also included on Exhibit A. 



 

0038773\193462\11446843v4 

As shown below, the area surrounding the Subject Property is developed with significant single 
family homes, which if that development trend continues, will contribute to urban sprawl.  The 
City’s Comp Plan underscores the importance of urban design and compact, mixed-use 
development, since urban sprawl “consumes more land, is costlier in terms of the provision of 
infrastructure and services, increases traffic congestion, and results in greater social isolation 
than more compact and integrated forms of development.”  Thus, the requested MUPUD zoning 
and its proposed concept plan will help to minimize urban sprawl and segregated multiple-use 
development by providing a mix of uses on a well-traveled roadway corridor in a growing area of 
the City. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

0038773\193462\11446843v4 

ZONING PLAN ANALYSIS 

Per Section 154.030(d)(10) of Chapter 154 of the City’s Land Development Code, the PUD district 
is established to implement comprehensive plan policies for encouraging affordable housing by 
allowing a variety of housing types with a broad range of housing costs and to encourage 
innovative development concepts. 

Per code, the Mixed Use PUD located within the General Mixed Use land use category shall 
accommodate a use mix consistent with at least two of the three of the following table and shall 
not exceed a density of 12 units per acre: 

 

The concept plan submitted with this project satisfies such allowable densities and intensities. As 
required under code, the project satisfies the following principles:  

1) The creation of an attractive and high quality environment that is compatible with the 
scale and character of the surrounding community.  

2) The development of commercial, residential and mixed use areas that is safe, 
comfortable and attractive to pedestrians.  

3) The location of the commercial center so that it is easily accessible by pedestrians from 
as many of the residential areas as possible.  

4) The maximization of shared parking.  

5) To develop a network of parks, walkways, public art, and cultural facilities that 
encourage a sense of place and the overall health and well being of the community.  

6) To encourage a mix of housing types and styles that provides people with affordable 
housing choices that can accommodate changes in lifestyle.  

7) Encourage alternative forms of transportation. 

The proposed project will create a true live-work-play community that reduces dependence on 
automobiles to access commercial/retail/medical uses, provides for safe interconnectivity 
between uses on site and will enhance the property values in the area. 

Because the project satisfies the City’s applicable Comp Plan and code policies and will provide 
an opportunity for enhanced retail and residential opportunities for the City, we respectfully 
request approval of the requests.  



 

0038773\193462\11446843v4 

Exhibit A 

Comp Plan Goals & Policies 

 

 



 

0038773\193462\11446843v4 

 

 

 



 

0038773\193462\11446843v4 

 

 

 

 



1

Korn, Lauren

From: Vovsi, Eman M. <Eman.Vovsi@DOS.MyFlorida.com>
Sent: Friday, April 22, 2022 10:32 AM
To: Korn, Lauren
Subject: RE: Fruitland Park - Master Site File Sign Off
Attachments: Template_102.pdf

CAUTION: THIS IS AN EXTERNAL EMAIL  

 

Completed; no cultural resources detected  
 

From: Korn, Lauren <Lauren.Korn@lowndes-law.com>  
Sent: Friday, April 22, 2022 9:58 AM 
To: Vovsi, Eman M. <Eman.Vovsi@DOS.MyFlorida.com> 
Cc: Smith, Kathryn <Kathryn.Smith@lowndes-law.com>; Tedrow, Tara <Tara.Tedrow@lowndes-law.com> 
Subject: Fruitland Park - Master Site File Sign Off 
 

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL SOURCE 

The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint. 

 

Good Morning, 
  
We are requesting a Florida Master Site File sign off for property located on Timbertop Lane (address unassigned), 
Fruitland Park with parcel ID #05-19-24-0003-000-02000.  The City of Fruitland Park has requested this sign off for a 
development application that we are submitting.   
  
Attached are the property card and aerial map for your reference.  Please let us know if you have any questions or need 
additional information for processing our request at your earliest convenience. 
  
We appreciate your assistance. 
  
Sincerely, 
Lauren A. Korn 
Paralegal 
D: 407.418.6240| P: 407.843.4600  | Ext: 1240 
Email | Website 
  

 

LOCAL ROOTS. BROAD REACH. SM 
  
 



")

")

subject property

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User
Community



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 TomTom 

ZO
N

IN
G

: C
-2

FL
U

: C
O

M
M

 - 
H

IG
H

 IN
TE

N
SI

TY

ZONING: C-2
FLU: NO FLU DESIGNATION

ZONING: A (LAKE COUNTY)
FLU: URBAN LOW (LAKE COUNTY)

ZO
N

IN
G

: A
 (L

AK
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
)

FL
U

: R
U

R
AL

 (L
AK

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

)

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-7

 (L
AK

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

)
FL

U
: U

R
BA

N
 M

ED
IU

M
(L

AK
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
)

ZONING: A (LAKE COUNTY)
FLU: URBAN LOW (LAKE COUNTY)

STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT AREA

GARDEN APARTMENT
3-STORY

(36 UNITS)
GARDEN APARTMENT

3-STORY
(36 UNITS)

GAR
DE

N 
AP

AR
TM

EN
T

3-
ST

ORY
(3

6 
UN

IT
S)

G
AR

D
EN

 A
PA

R
TM

EN
T

3-
ST

O
R

Y
(3

6 
U

N
IT

S)

GARDEN APARTMENT

4-STORY

(48 UNITS)

GARDEN APARTMENT
4-STORY(48 UNITS)

G
AR

D
EN

 APAR
TM

EN
T

4-STO
R

Y

(48 U
N

ITS)

CLUBHOUSE

POOL
AREA

PLAYGROUND

CLUBHOUSE

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

P1
RETAIL

P2
P3

P4

FUTURE
P6

FUTURE
P7 FUTURE

P8

FUTURE
P5

POOL
AREA

LEGEND

NORTH
MILLER PARK PD

APRIL 21, 2022

Fruitland Park, Florida

VICINITY MAP

N
O

R
TH

PROJECT TEAM   
OWNER/DEVELOPER:
INTRAM INVESTMENTS, INC.
5555 S. KIRKMAN RD, SUITE 201
ORLANDO, FL 32819
CONTACT: KELLY FROELICH
PHONE: (40) 701-5205
EMAIL: kfroelich@intram.com

CIVIL ENGINEER:
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
189 S. ORANGE AVE, SUITE 1000
ORLANDO, FL 32801
CONTACT: BRENT LENZEN, P.E.
PHONE: (407) 898-1511
EMAIL: brent.lenzen@kimley-horn.com

LEGAL COUNSEL:
LOWNDES LAW
215 N. EOLA DRIVE
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32801
CONTACT: TARA TEDROW
PHONE: (407) 418-6361

PROJECT LOCATION

M
IL

LE
R

 P
AR

K 
PD

PR
O

JE
C

T#
 0

49
11

90
10

©SURVEYOR
CLYMER FARNER BARLEY
4450 NE 83RD ROAD
WILDWOOD, FL 34785
CONTACT: KAYE JAMESON, PSM
PHONE: (352) 748-3126

PD1.0

Parcel ID: 051924000300002000

PARKING:

SITE DATA:

BUILDING

SERVICES
GENERAL NOTES:

LANDSCAPE*

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

COMMERCIAL (P1 - P5)

SETBACKS

INSTITUTIONAL (P6 - P8)

PROJECTED PHASING



ZO
N

IN
G

: C
-2

FL
U

: C
O

M
M

 - 
H

IG
H

 IN
TE

N
SI

TY

ZONING: PUD
FLU: MIXED COMMUNITY

ZONING: A (LAKE COUNTY)
FLU: URBAN LOW (LAKE COUNTY)

ZO
N

IN
G

: A
 (L

AK
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
)

FL
U

: R
U

R
AL

 (L
AK

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

)

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-7

 (L
AK

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

)
FL

U
: U

R
BA

N
 M

ED
IU

M
(L

AK
E 

C
O

U
N

TY
)

ZONING: A (LAKE COUNTY)
FLU: URBAN LOW (LAKE COUNTY)

STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT AREA

GARDEN APARTMENT
3-STORY

(36 UNITS)
GARDEN APARTMENT

3-STORY
(36 UNITS)

GAR
DE

N 
AP

AR
TM

EN
T

3-
ST

ORY
(3

6 
UN

IT
S)

G
AR

D
EN

 A
PA

R
TM

EN
T

3-
ST

O
R

Y
(3

6 
U

N
IT

S)

GARDEN APARTMENT

4-STORY

(48 UNITS)

GARDEN APARTMENT
4-STORY(48 UNITS)

G
AR

D
EN

 APAR
TM

EN
T

4-STO
R

Y

(48 U
N

ITS)

CLUBHOUSE

POOL
AREA

PLAYGROUND

CLUBHOUSE

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

(10 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(6
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(8
 U

N
IT

S)

P1
RETAIL

P2
P3

P4

FUTURE
P6

FUTURE
P7 FUTURE

P8

FUTURE
P5

POOL
AREA

ZONING: C-2
FLU: COMMERCIAL

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

(10 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY

(10 UNITS)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(8
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(8
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(8
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(8
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(8
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(8
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(8
 U

N
IT

S)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TOWNHOME
2-STORY
(8 UNITS)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(6
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(6
 U

N
IT

S)

TO
W

N
H

O
M

E
2-

ST
O

R
Y

(6
 U

N
IT

S)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 TomTom 

LEGEND

TYPICAL ROAD SECTION
N.T.S.

PD1.0

Parcel ID: 051924000300002000

NORTH
MILLER PARK PD

MAY 4, 2022

Fruitland Park, Florida

VICINITY MAP

N
O

R
TH

PROJECT TEAM   
OWNER/DEVELOPER:
INTRAM INVESTMENTS, INC.
5555 S. KIRKMAN RD, SUITE 201
ORLANDO, FL 32819
CONTACT: KELLY FROELICH
PHONE: (40) 701-5205
EMAIL: kfroelich@intram.com

CIVIL ENGINEER:
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
189 S. ORANGE AVE, SUITE 1000
ORLANDO, FL 32801
CONTACT: BRENT LENZEN, P.E.
PHONE: (407) 898-1511
EMAIL: brent.lenzen@kimley-horn.com

LEGAL COUNSEL:
LOWNDES LAW
215 N. EOLA DRIVE
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32801
CONTACT: TARA TEDROW
PHONE: (407) 418-6361

PROJECT LOCATION

M
IL

LE
R

 P
AR

K 
PD

PR
O

JE
C

T#
 0

49
11

90
10

©SURVEYOR
CLYMER FARNER BARLEY
4450 NE 83RD ROAD
WILDWOOD, FL 34785
CONTACT: KAYE JAMESON, PSM
PHONE: (352) 748-3126PARKING:

SITE DATA:

BUILDING

SERVICES

GENERAL NOTES:

LANDSCAPE*

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

COMMERCIAL (P1 - P5)

SETBACKS

INSTITUTIONAL (P6 - P8)

PROJECTED PHASING



  1 

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK 
STAFF REPORT BY LPG URBAN & REGIONAL PLANNERS, INC. 

 
LARGE SCALE COMP PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING 

 
Owner:   Stephanie Bailey Bouis & Patricia Bouis Thompson 
 
Applicant: Tara Tedrow 
 
General Location: North side of CR 466A & East of Timbertop Lane 
 
Number of Acres:   68.55 ± acres  
 
Existing Zoning:   Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
 
Existing Land Use:   Community Mixed Use (6 units/acre) 
 
Proposed Land Use:   General Mixed Use (12 units/acre) 
 
Proposed Zoning:   Mixed Use Planned Unit Development (MUPUD) 
 
Date:     May 5, 2022 
 
Description of Project 
 
The proposed development consists of 18.88 + acres (27.5%) of commercial uses (168,000 SF), 
6.88 + acres (10.1%) of institutional uses (209,785 SF), and 42.79 acres + (62.4%) of multi-family 
consisting of 486 total units (288 apartment units and 198 townhomes) (42.79 + acres). Total 
commercial/office/intuitional square footage is 377,785 square feet. The proposed maximum 
height is 4 stories (45 feet).  The existing PUD known as Live Oak Center allowed for 120 units 
(townhomes/apartments – 10 acres), 300,000 (30 acres) SF of commercial, and 200,000 (20 
acres) SF of office with a maximum building height of 45 feet. 
 
 

 Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Land Use 
North Lake County Agriculture (Ag) Lake County Urban Medium (7 units/acre) 
South PUD and C-2 Mixed Community and Commercial 
East County R-7 Lake County Urban Medium (7 units/acre) 
West C-2 and County Agriculture (Ag) Commercial and County Rural (1 unit/5 acres) 

 

 
 



  2 

Assessment 

 
Application 

The traffic impact analysis submitted does not appear to address the proposed institutional 
uses.  Please revise the traffic analysis to be consistent with the conceptual plan. 
 
Conceptual Plan 
 
Staff previously recommended a 25’ buffer to mitigate the adjacent agricultural zoned property 
located to the north, east and west. The applicant is proposing a 15’ landscape buffer with a 6’ 
tall opaque fence along the northern property boundary adjacent to the Agricultural zoning.  
Please add the note “Type B” after 15’ which would indicate that the buffer planting is 4 canopy 
trees, 2 understory trees and 15 shrubs per 100 linear feet.   
 
The applicant is proposing a 10’ landscape buffer along the east and west property boundary; 
however, the plan indicates that the proposed buffer is within the existing 10’ right of way of 
Timber Top Lane.  Please be advised that the buffer area is required to be outside of the right of 
way.  In addition, the proposed 10’ buffer is not sufficient.  Please either provide a 25’ buffer or 
a 15’ Type “B” landscape buffer with a 6’ opaque fence.   
 
The note section on the plan regarding buffer widths does not match the proposed buffer 
widths shown on the plan. 
 
Please be advised that the minimum setback from Lake Josephine is 35’ from the Ordinary High 
Water Line pursuant to Chapter 165.  Please add a note on the plan regarding the setback 
within the setbacks note section.    
 
The note section indicates 24 townhome units; however, the plan shows 25 townhome units. 
Please revise note section to be consistent with the plan.   The proposed DA indicates that the 
townhomes may be fee simple or rental.  If fee simple the roadway widths provided are 
insufficient.  In addition, the proposed parking appears insufficient; however, the proposed DA 
and note section indicates that the applicant will meet parking requirements of the LDRs. 
 
It is also noted that the proposed setback along the northern property boundary is 20’ and 
based on the townhome design, it appears that only a 5’ backyard space is being offered.  This 
is insufficient.  Please revise concept plan to provide a minimum of 15’.    
 
The Site data notes indicate a maximum ISR of .80 which is permitted under the General Mixed 
Use.  Please add a note regarding the maximum FAR of .70. The proposed commercial and 
institutional maximum FAR is noted as .75.  The maximum FAR of .75 exceeds the maximum 
permitted.  Please revise the FAR and associated calculations.  Please note that the maximum 
FAR also applies to the residential portions of the project (townhomes and apartments). 
 



  3 

The project at build out is anticipated to have a population of 1,176 residents (2.42 pph x 486 
units).  Chapter 154 requires a minimum of 20% of common open space of which portions 
should be suitably improved to meet the recreational needs of the community.  The plan shows 
two (2) clubhouses, two (2) pools, playground, walking trail, benches and four (4) fountains.  
The plan indicates that the applicant is offering 25% open space which equates to 16.33 acres 
and includes the proposed stormwater pond.  The plan indicates that the proposed pond will 
contain water.  The EA report indicates that the soils in this area are Apopka sands which are 
sandy, well drained soils.  Is the applicant going to line the proposed stormwater pond to assure 
that it is a wet pond?  If not, then it is highly recommended that the concept plan be revised to 
reflect that it is a dry pond and other amenities such as a play field, dog park, etc. in this area. 
 
The note section identifies 4 phases.  Please label the phases on the plan. 
 
The applicant is advised that additional right of way will be required for Timbertop Lane which 
will affect the site layout.  Timbertop Lane is a planned major collector roadway with a 
minimum 100’ right of way.  The DA indicates that the applicant will provide a pedestrian and 
bicycle trail of 15’ to connect to 466A; however, there are no notes on the concept plan 
regarding the additional right of way or proposed pedestrian and bicycle trail.  In addition, it is 
our understanding that Lake County Public Works has requested that the full median entry 
boulevard be moved further east.  The current location can be a right in/right out only and the 
proposed roadway located on the east boundary will not be allowed.  Please revise concept 
plan. 
 
Development Agreement 
 
Section 4, Development Standards – the proposed acreages and categories do not match the 
concept plan.  It is recommended that the Commercial Retail/Office category – 18.88 acres, 
maximum square footage 168,000 SF, Institutional/Medical category – 6.88 acres, maximum 
square footage of 209,785. 
 
Section 5, Permitted Uses – it is recommended that the following uses be stricken – 
Maintenance General Contractor, Mini-warehouses, Office warehouse facility, and Self-storage 
facility. 
  
Section 5, Residential Uses – Where are the proposed detached residential units and duplex 
units proposed?  None are shown on the current concept plan. The City will require an Option B 
concept plan to be submitted to address these units.   
 
Section 5, Building Height – The building height referenced is 75’; however, the concept plan 
shows a maximum building height of 45’.  Staff recommends a maximum building height of 45’ 
provided that adequate fire protection is provided. 
 



  4 

Section 7, Pedestrian and Bicycle Trail – Where is the proposed 15’ pedestrian and bicycle trail 
on the concept plan?  This section references a sidewalk on one side of the right of way within 
the Property. 
 
Section 8, Road Improvements – This section does not include additional right of way which will 
be required for the roadway improvements to Timbertop Lane. 
 
The development agreement should refence minimum living areas, setbacks and residential 
design standards.  Proposed language has been added.  Please see revised DA. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
Staff concurs with the justification submitted.   
 
Environmental Assessment 
 
The assessment indicates the presence of wetlands, potential presence of gopher tortoises and 
the site is within the sand skink consultation area.  Prior to development, a relocation permit 
will need to be secured and a sand skink survey or exemption will need to be secured.  Should 
sand skinks occupy the site and habitat set aside is not an option, mitigation will be required.  
 
 
Recommendation 

 
Please revise concept plan and submit revised traffic analysis as outlined above. 
 
  



  
 

 

 

VIA EMAIL swilliams@fruitlandpark.org  
 
May 11, 2022 
 
Sharon Williams 
Assistant to the Director 
Community Development Department 
City of Fruitland Park 
506 W. Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, FL 34731 
 
RE: TIMBERTOP LAN (HALFF AVO 043866.085) 
 PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
Dear Ms. Williams: 
 
Per an email request from Emily Church dated May 5, 2022, I have reviewed the documents 
which were included in drop box for the above referenced project.  Based on my review, my 
comments are below. 
 

1. Conceptual Plan comments are as follows: 
a. Provide Gross densities. 
b. Proposed method of stormwater management 
c. Typical road section. 
d. Soils within the project area. 
e. Project name. 

i. Is the name Timbertop or Miller Park? 
f. Existing topography at one-foot contours based on Lake County or St. Johns River 

Water Management District datum). 
g. Net living area for each type of dwelling unit. 

 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
HALFF 
 

 
 
Hugo Cabrera, P.E. 
Senior Public Works Project Manager 
hcabrera@halff.com  
 
HC:am 

mailto:swilliams@fruitlandpark.org
mailto:hcabrera@halff.com


 
   

 
 

 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW LETTER 
TIMBERTOP LANE 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT & PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
5/20/2022 

 
Property Owner(s): Stephanie Bailey Bouis and Patricia Bouis Thompson 
Applicant/Agent:  Tara Tedrow 
Phone: : 407-418-6361 
Email: Tara.Tedrow@lowndes-law.com 
Mailing Address: 215 N. Eola Drive 
         Orlando, FL 32801  
      
Project Name: Timbertop Lane 
Engineer Name: Kimley Horn 
Alt Key:    1287715 
Project Address: Timbertop Lane & Miller Blvd 
        Fruitland Park, FL 34731 
 
 Dear Mrs, Tedrow, 
 

Contained herein are the comments following informal TRC review.  The referenced project is 
tentatively scheduled before Technical Review Committee (TRC) on July 5th  at 10:00AM.    
 
City Attorney Review: 
No comment at time of review letter. 
 

 City Engineer Review:  
1. Conceptual Plan comments are as follows: 

a. Provide Gross densities. 
b. Proposed method of stormwater management 
c. Typical road section. 
d. Soils within the project area. 
e. Project name. 

2. Is the name Timbertop or Miller Park? 
a. Existing topography at one-foot contours based on Lake County or St. Johns River 

Water Management District datum). 
b. Net living area for each type of dwelling unit. 

 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office. 
 
City Land Planner Review:  
See attached Staff Report.  

 



 Development Application Review: Page 2 

City Building Review:  
No comment at time of review letter. 
 
City Code Enforcement Review: 
No comment from Code Enforcement at time of review letter.  
 

 City Fire Review:  
No comment at time of review letter. 
 
City Police Review: 
No comment at time of review letter. 
 

 City Public Works Department Review: 
No comment from Public Works at time of review letter. 
 

 City of Leesburg Utilities Review: 
This drawing does not show in detail where our pole line is along Miller Bv. There are two poles 
that may be in conflict with the entrance. Easements will be required throughout the 
development for the City of Leesburg to install power. All roads will have a minimum of 10’ on 
either side for easements. Miller will require easements, this will encompass an easement to Lake 
County as well. The easement will need to be 15’ in width at a minimum. The developer needs to 
reach out to the City of Leesburg to begin preparing routes for electric and to fine tune the 
easements that will be needed. 
 
Lake County Public Schools Review: 
No comment at time of review letter.  

  
Lake County Public Works Review: 
No comment at time of review letter.  
 
Enc (1) 
 

  
  
     
   



kimley-horn.com 3660 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 200, Orlando, FL 32803 407 898 1511
0038773\193462\12027622v1

May 19, 2022

City of Fruitland Park
506 W. Berckman St.
Fruitland Park, FL 34731

LPG Urban & Regional Planners, Inc.
Via email: Sherie Lindh (sherie@lpgurp.com)

Re: Timbertop Large Scale Comp Plan Amendment & Rezoning
North side of CR466A & East Timbertop Lane
Applicant: Tara Tedrow

To Whom It May Concern:

We are in receipt of the recent comments dated May 5, 2022 regarding the above referenced project
and offer the following in response:

Assessment Comments

Application

1. The traffic impact analysis submitted does not appear to address the proposed institutional uses.
Please revise the traffic analysis to be consistent with the conceptual plan.

Response: The traffic analysis is being revised to address institutional uses and will be
provided under separate cover.

Conceptual Plan

1. Staff previously recommended a 25’ buffer to mitigate the adjacent agricultural zoned property
located to the north, east and west. The applicant is proposing a 15’ landscape buffer with a 6’ tall
opaque fence along the northern property boundary adjacent to the Agricultural zoning. Please
add the note “Type B” after 15’ which would indicate that the buffer planting is 4 canopy trees, 2
understory trees and 15 shrubs per 100 linear feet.

Response: The plan has been updated accordingly to include reference to the Type B
buffer requirement on the north, east and west boundaries.

2. The applicant is proposing a 10’ landscape buffer along the east and west property boundary;
however, the plan indicates that the proposed buffer is within the existing 10’ right of way of
Timber Top Lane. Please be advised that the buffer area is required to be outside of the right of
way. In addition, the proposed 10’ buffer is not sufficient. Please either provide a 25’ buffer or a
15’ Type “B” landscape buffer with a 6’ opaque fence.

Response: The plan has been updated to reflect an additional 40’ future right of way
dedication for Timbertop Lane and an additional 15’ Type “B” with 25’ building setback is
provided from the future right of way line.

3. The note section on the plan regarding buffer widths does not match the proposed buffer widths
shown on the plan.



Page 2

kimley-horn.com 189 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1000, Orlando, FL 32801 407 898 1511
0038773\193462\12027622v1

Response: The plan has been updated accordingly.

4. Please be advised that the minimum setback from Lake Josephine is 35’ from the Ordinary High
Water Line pursuant to Chapter 165. Please add a note on the plan regarding the setback within
the setbacks note section.

Response: The plan has been updated accordingly.

5. The note section indicates 24 townhome units; however, the plan shows 25 townhome units.
Please revise note section to be consistent with the plan. The proposed DA indicates that the
townhomes may be fee simple or rental. If fee simple the roadway widths provided are
insufficient. In addition, the proposed parking appears insufficient; however, the proposed DA and
note section indicates that the applicant will meet parking requirements of the LDRs.

Response: The plan has been updated accordingly and a note has been added to Section 8
of the DA regarding LDC roadway width compliance depending on the townhome
ownership structure.

6. It is also noted that the proposed setback along the northern property boundary is 20’ and based
on the townhome design, it appears that only a 5’ backyard space is being offered. This is
insufficient. Please revise concept plan to provide a minimum of 15’.

Response: The plan has been updated to reflect the 15’ Type “B” landscape buffer and a
25’ building setback, thus providing a 10’ back yard for the future townhomes. Per code,
“setbacks for PUD’s are flexible however in no case shall the rear or side setback be less
than 10 feet between structures”. The current plan allows for the minimum of 10’ back yard
on the townhome development.

7. The Site data notes indicate a maximum ISR of .80 which is permitted under the General Mixed
Use. Please add a note regarding the maximum FAR of .70. The proposed commercial and
institutional maximum FAR is noted as .75. The maximum FAR of .75 exceeds the maximum
permitted. Please revise the FAR and associated calculations. Please note that the maximum
FAR also applies to the residential portions of the project (townhomes and apartments).

Response: The plan has been updated accordingly.  Please note that the maximum FAR
would permit a higher SF of commercial/retail/office uses than what we are proposing on
the plan (168,000 SF of commercial uses).  However, we would like to reserve flexibility to
build up to 300,000 SF of commercial and 50,000 SF of office uses (per our traffic study and
the revised Section 4 of the DA).  The cumulative 350,000 SF of commercial/retail/office
uses that could potentially be built in the future is still below the total that would be
allowed under the 0.70 FAR.  The applicant understands that any such SF of non-
residential uses must be able to meet development standards in code, including for
parking.

8. The project at build out is anticipated to have a population of 1,176 residents (2.42 pph x 486
units). Chapter 154 requires a minimum of 20% of common open space of which portions should
be suitably improved to meet the recreational needs of the community. The plan shows two (2)
clubhouses, two (2) pools, playground, walking trail, benches and four (4) fountains. The plan
indicates that the applicant is offering 25% open space which equates to 16.33 acres and
includes the proposed stormwater pond. The plan indicates that the proposed pond will contain



Page 3

kimley-horn.com 189 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1000, Orlando, FL 32801 407 898 1511
0038773\193462\12027622v1

water. The EA report indicates that the soils in this area are Apopka sands which are sandy, well
drained soils. Is the applicant going to line the proposed stormwater pond to assure that it is a wet
pond? If not, then it is highly recommended that the concept plan be revised to reflect that it is a
dry pond and other amenities such as a play field, dog park, etc. in this area.

Response: Based on the preliminary geotechnical information available currently, seasonal
high groundwater was estimated to be 6’ or more below existing grade. Based on the
proposed size and geometry of the stormwater management pond, providing a wet pond
appears achievable. Final pond design to be determined during final engineering and the
implementation of a pond liner, if necessary, may be considered at that time.

9. The note section identifies 4 phases. Please label the phases on the plan.

Response: The plan has been updated accordingly.

10. The applicant is advised that additional right of way will be required for Timbertop Lane which will
affect the site layout. Timbertop Lane is a planned major collector roadway with a minimum 100’
right of way. The DA indicates that the applicant will provide a pedestrian and bicycle trail of 15’ to
connect to 466A; however, there are no notes on the concept plan regarding the additional right
of way or proposed pedestrian and bicycle trail. In addition, it is our understanding that Lake
County Public Works has requested that the full median entry boulevard be moved further east.
The current location can be a right in/right out only and the proposed roadway located on the east
boundary will not be allowed. Please revise concept plan.

Response: The plan has been updated to reflect an additional 40’ future right of way
dedication for Timber Top Lane and an additional 15’ Type “B” with 25’ building setback is
provided from the future right of way line. A 15’ foot wide trail is now shown extending
along the Timbertop Lane right of way.

Final access design to be further coordinated with Lake County regarding full access
configuration vs. right in/right-out. Based on jurisdiction, access coordination to be
finalized with Lake County directly once Lake County is able to provide additional input,
separate from the ongoing rezoning request.

Development Agreement

1. Section 4, Development Standards – the proposed acreages and categories do not match the
concept plan. It is recommended that the Commercial Retail/Office category – 18.88 acres,
maximum square footage 168,000 SF, Institutional/Medical category – 6.88 acres, maximum
square footage of 209,785.

Response: These changes have been made, except the max SF of Institutional/Medical is
209,784 on the plans.  Also note that additional clarifications on the max allowable and
proposed SF of non-residential uses have been clarified in Section 4.

2. Section 5, Permitted Uses – it is recommended that the following uses be stricken – Maintenance
General Contractor, Mini-warehouses, Office warehouse facility, and Self-storage facility.

Response: All were removed except for self-storage facilities, which we would request be
included as an amenity to the growing population of the City, including our future
residents.  We are happy to discuss design standards for the same as needed.



Page 4

kimley-horn.com 189 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1000, Orlando, FL 32801 407 898 1511
0038773\193462\12027622v1

3. Section 5, Residential Uses – Where are the proposed detached residential units and duplex
units proposed? None are shown on the current concept plan. The City will require an Option B
concept plan to be submitted to address these units.

Response: Single family detached and duplex units have been removed from Section 5(B)
of the DA.

4. Section 5, Building Height – The building height referenced is 75’; however, the concept plan
shows a maximum building height of 45’. Staff recommends a maximum building height of 45’
provided that adequate fire protection is provided.

Response: Section 5(C) of the DA has been amended to note a maximum building height of
45 feet.

5. Section 7, Pedestrian and Bicycle Trail – Where is the proposed 15’ pedestrian and bicycle trail
on the concept plan? This section references a sidewalk on one side of the right of way within the
Property.

Response: A 15’ foot wide trail is now shown extending along the easternmost boundary of
the Timbertop Lane right of way.

6. Section 8, Road Improvements – This section does not include additional right of way which will
be required for the roadway improvements to Timbertop Lane.

Response: The plan has been updated to reflect an additional 40’ future right of way
dedication for Timber Top Lane and an additional 15’ Type “B” with 25’ building setback is
provided from the future right of way line.

7. The development agreement should refence minimum living areas, setbacks and residential
design standards. Proposed language has been added. Please see revised DA.

Response: Section 5(E) and (F) of the DA have been added to note the same.

Comprehensive Plan Amendment

1. Staff concurs with the justification submitted.

Response: Information acknowledged.

Environmental Assessment

1. The assessment indicates the presence of wetlands, potential presence of gopher tortoises and
the site is within the sand skink consultation area. Prior to development, a relocation permit will
need to be secured and a sand skink survey or exemption will need to be secured. Should sand
skinks occupy the site and habitat set aside is not an option, mitigation will be required.

Response: Information acknowledged.



Page 5

kimley-horn.com 189 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1000, Orlando, FL 32801 407 898 1511
0038773\193462\12027622v1

Recommendation

1. Please revise concept plan and submit revised traffic analysis as outlined above.

Response: The plan and traffic analysis has been updated accordingly.

If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at 407-427-1610 or by
email at brent.lenzen@kimley-horn.com.

Sincerely,

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Brent A. Lenzen, P.E.
Project Manager



kimley-horn.com 3660 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 200, Orlando, FL 32803 407 898 1511
0038773\193462\12027622v1

May 24, 2022

City of Fruitland Park
506 W. Berckman St.
Fruitland Park, FL 34731

LPG Urban & Regional Planners, Inc.
Via email: Sherie Lindh (sherie@lpgurp.com)

Re: Miller Park Large Scale Comp Plan Amendment & Rezoning
North side of CR466A & East Timbertop Lane
Applicant: Tara Tedrow

To Whom It May Concern:

We are in receipt of the recent comments dated May 24, 2022 regarding the above referenced project
and offer the following in response:

City Engineer

1. Conceptual Plan comments are as follows:
a. Provides gross densities
b. Proposed method of stormwater management
c. Typical road section
d. Soils within the project area
e. Project name
f. Existing topography at one-foot contours based on Lake County or St. Johns River Water

Management District datum
g. Net living area for each type of dwelling unit

Response: The plan has been revised to include the additional information requested
above.

2. Is the name Timbertop or Miller Park?

Response: Miller Park

City Land Planner Review
See attached Staff Report

Response: all comments in the 5/5/22 Staff Report have been separately addressed.

City of Leesburg Utilities
This drawing does not show in detail where our pole line is along Miller Blvd.

Response: this will be addressed at final engineering as the plan submitted is
conceptual in nature, as required by code.



Page 2

kimley-horn.com 189 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1000, Orlando, FL 32801 407 898 1511
0038773\193462\12027622v1

If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at 407-427-1610 or by
email at brent.lenzen@kimley-horn.com.

Sincerely,

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Brent A. Lenzen, P.E.
Project Manager



11/18/2020 Detail by Entity Name

search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/SearchResultDetail?inquirytype=EntityName&directionType=Initial&searchNameOrder=RESERVEATSP… 1/2

Document Number
FEI/EIN Number
Date Filed
Effective Date
State
Status

Department of State /  Division of Corporations /  Search Records /  Search by Entity Name /

Detail by Entity Name
Florida Limited Liability Company
THE RESERVE AT SPRING LAKE COVE II, L.L.C.

Filing Information

L20000025469
NONE
01/20/2020
01/14/2020
FL
ACTIVE

Principal Address

200 EAST CANTON AVENUE 
SUITE 102 
WINTER PARK, FL 32789 

Mailing Address

200 EAST CANTON AVENUE 
SUITE 102 
WINTER PARK, FL 32789 

Registered Agent Name & Address

CLARK & ALBAUGH, LLP
700 W. MORSE BOULEVARD 
SUITE 101 
WINTER PARK, FL 32789 

Authorized Person(s) Detail

Name & Address 
 
Title MGR 
 
DOODY, TRICIA
200 EAST CANTON AVENUE, SUITE 102 
WINTER PARK, FL 32789 
 
Title MGR 
 
MISSIGMAN, PAUL M
200 EAST CANTON AVENUE, SUITE 102 
WINTER PARK, FL 32789 
 

D������� �� C�����������Florida Department of State

http://dos.myflorida.com/
http://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/
http://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/search/
http://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/ByName
http://dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/
http://dos.myflorida.com/


11/18/2020 Detail by Entity Name

search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/SearchResultDetail?inquirytype=EntityName&directionType=Initial&searchNameOrder=RESERVEATSP… 2/2

Annual Reports

No Annual Reports Filed
 

Document Images

01/20/2020 -- Florida Limited Liability View image in PDF format

 
 

Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations

http://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/ConvertTiffToPDF?storagePath=COR%5C2020%5C0129%5C00406850.tif&documentNumber=L20000025469
http://search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry/CorporationSearch/ConvertTiffToPDF?storagePath=COR%5C2020%5C0129%5C00406850.tif&documentNumber=L20000025469






























CIVIL ENGINEERS

SITE







































11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=1287251 1/3

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 1287251

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

04-19-24-
0001-000-
01000

Millage Group and City:
000F
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

BREEZE LN
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

BEG 466.2 FT S 89-57-0 E OF NW COR OF NE 1/4, RUN S 89-57-0 |
 E 563.1 FT TO ACL RR, S'LY ALONG RR 763.5 FT, W 443 FT, N |

 475 FT, W 120.16 FT, N 0-39-40 W TO POB, W 1/2 OF 80 FT WIDE|
 ACL RR R/W LYING E OF ABOVE PARCEL |

 ORB 5408 PG 2069 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value Land Value

1 VACANT RESIDENTIAL
(0000) 0 0  8.7 AC $0.00 $104,400.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Miscellaneous Improvements

There is no improvement information to display.

Sales History
NOTE: This section is not intended to be a complete chain of title. Additional official book/page numbers may be listed in the property description above and/or recorded and
indexed with the Clerk of Court. Follow this link to search all documents by owner's name..

Book/Page Sale Date Instrument Qualified/Unqualified Vacant/Improved Sale Price
5408 /
2069 1/17/2020 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $470,000.00

5409 / 724 1/13/2020 Quit Claim Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $100.00
3550 / 836 11/8/2007 Quiet Title Multi-Parcel Vacant $0.00
3192 / 935 4/24/2006 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $1.00
1881 / 2118 10/11/2000 Quit Claim Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $1.00
1320 /
1517 9/1/1994 Warranty Deed Qualified Vacant $36,000.00

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=1287251
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=BREEZE%20LN,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5408/2069
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5409/724
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/3550/836
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/3192/935
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/1881/2118
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/1320/1517


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://www.lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=1287600 1/4

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: RESERVE AT APRING
LAKE COVE II LLC Alternate Key: 1287600

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE
102

 WINTER PARK, FL 32789
 Update Mailing Address

Parcel Number: 
04-19-24-
0001-000-
01100

Millage Group and City:
000F
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

35935 BREEZE LN
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731

Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop Map

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FROM NW COR OF NE 1/4 RUN S 89-57-0 E 275 FT FOR POB, CONT
S|

 89-57-0 E 191.20 FT, S 0-39-40 E 295.50 FT, S 89-20-20 W |
 270.05 FT, N 0-06-50 E 98.80 FT, N 89-57-0 W 75 FT, NE'LY |
 250.10 FT TO POB |

 ORB 5409 PG 716 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value
Land
Value

1 SINGLE FAMILY LAKEFRONT
(0103) 0 0  1.77 AC $0.00 $44,250.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Residential Building(s)
Building 001

Residential Single Family Building Value: $58,645.00
Summary

Year Built: 1955 Total Living Area:
1055 Central A/C: No Attached Garage:

No

Bedrooms: 3 Full Bathrooms: 1 Half Bathrooms: 0 Fireplaces: 1

 
Incorrect Bedroom, Bath, or other information? 

Section(s)
Section
No. Section Type Ext. Wall

Type
No.
Stories

Floor
Area

Finished
Attic Basement Basement

Finished
Map
Color

https://www.lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=1287600
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=35935%20BREEZE%20LN,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=1504333 1/4

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 1504333

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

04-19-24-
2175-00A-
00300

Millage Group and City:
000F
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

35819 BREEZE LN
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FRUITLAND PARK, ZEPHYR LAKE LOTS 3, 8, N 1/2 LOT 12, LOTS |
 13, 14 BLK A PB 11 PG 78 |

 ORB 3152 PG 1673 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value
Land
Value

1 SINGLE FAMILY LAKEFRONT
(0103) 0 0  2.58 AC $0.00 $61,920.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Residential Building(s)
Building 001

Residential Single Family Building Value: $47,182.00
Summary

Year Built: 1956 Total Living Area:
1164 Central A/C: No Attached Garage:

No

Bedrooms: 3 Full Bathrooms: 1 Half Bathrooms: 1 Fireplaces: 1

 
Incorrect Bedroom, Bath, or other information? 

Section(s)
Section
No. Section Type Ext. Wall

Type
No.
Stories

Floor
Area

Finished
Attic Basement Basement

Finished
Map
Color

1 FINISHED LIVING AREA
(FLA)

Block
(002) 1 1164 N 0% 0%  

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=1504333
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=35819%20BREEZE%20LN,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=1504341 1/4

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE II LLC Alternate Key: 1504341

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE
102

 WINTER PARK, FL 32789
 Update Mailing Address

Parcel Number: 
04-19-24-
2175-00A-
00400

Millage Group and City:
000F
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

35851 BREEZE LANE
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731

Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop Map

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FRUITLAND PARK, ZEPHYR LAKE LOT 4 BLK A PB 11 PG 78 |
 ORB 5409 PG 716 |

 
NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value
Land
Value

1 SINGLE FAMILY LAKEFRONT
(0103) 0 0  1.13 AC $0.00 $40,680.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Residential Building(s)
Building 001

Residential Single Family Building Value: $45,999.00
Summary

Year Built: 1944 Total Living Area:
1200 Central A/C: Yes Attached Garage:

No

Bedrooms: 3 Full Bathrooms: 1 Half Bathrooms: 0 Fireplaces: 0

 
Incorrect Bedroom, Bath, or other information? 

Section(s)
Section
No. Section Type Ext. Wall

Type
No.
Stories

Floor
Area

Finished
Attic Basement Basement

Finished
Map
Color

1 FINISHED LIVING
AREA (FLA) Block (002) 1 1200 N 0% 0%

2 ENCLOSED PORCH
BLOCK (EPB) Block (002) 1 276 N 0% 0%

 

 

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=1504341
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=35851%20BREEZE%20LANE,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=1504350 1/4

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE II LLC Alternate Key: 1504350

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE
102

 WINTER PARK, FL 32789
 Update Mailing Address

Parcel Number: 
04-19-24-
2175-00A-
00500

Millage Group and City:
000F
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

35915 BREEZE LN
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731

Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop Map

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FRUITLAND PARK, ZEPHYR LAKE LOT 5 BLK A PB 11 PG 78 |
 ORB 5409 PG 716 |

 
NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value
Land
Value

1 SINGLE FAMILY LAKEFRONT
(0103) 0 0  1.46 AC $0.00 $45,260.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Residential Building(s)
Building 001

Residential Single Family Building Value: $41,190.00
Summary

Year Built: 1982 Total Living Area:
1140 Central A/C: Yes Attached Garage:

No

Bedrooms: 3 Full Bathrooms: 1 Half Bathrooms: 0 Fireplaces: 0

 
Incorrect Bedroom, Bath, or other information? 

Section(s)
Section
No. Section Type Ext. Wall

Type
No.
Stories

Floor
Area

Finished
Attic Basement Basement

Finished
Map
Color

1 FINISHED LIVING
AREA (FLA) Wood (001) 1 1140 N 0% 0%

2 OPEN PORCH
FINISHED (OPF)

No Wall
Type (000) 1 56 N 0% 0%

 

 

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=1504350
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=35915%20BREEZE%20LN,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=1504368 1/3

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 1504368

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

04-19-24-
2175-00A-
01500

Millage Group and City:
000F
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

BREEZE LN
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FRUITLAND PARK, ZEPHYR LAKE LOTS 15, 16, N 73 FT OF LOT 17 |
 BLK A PB 11 PG 78, W 1/2 OF 80 FT WIDE ACL RR R/W LYING E OF|
 ABOVE PARCEL |

 ORB 5408 PG 2069 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value
Land
Value

1 VACANT RESIDENTIAL
(0000) 0 0  1.18 AC $0.00 $20,355.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Miscellaneous Improvements

There is no improvement information to display.

Sales History
NOTE: This section is not intended to be a complete chain of title. Additional official book/page numbers may be listed in the property description above and/or recorded and
indexed with the Clerk of Court. Follow this link to search all documents by owner's name..

Book/Page Sale Date Instrument Qualified/Unqualified Vacant/Improved Sale Price
5408 / 2069 1/17/2020 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $470,000.00
5409 / 724 1/13/2020 Quit Claim Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $100.00
3550 / 836 11/8/2007 Quiet Title Multi-Parcel Vacant $0.00
3152 / 1673 4/24/2006 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $1.00
1660 / 827 11/5/1998 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $1.00

Click here to search for mortgages, liens, and other legal documents. 

Values and Estimated Ad Valorem Taxes 

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=1504368
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=BREEZE%20LN,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5408/2069
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5409/724
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/3550/836
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/3152/1673
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/1660/827
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=2669306 1/3

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 2669306

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

33-18-24-
0004-000-
08300

Millage Group and City:
00F2
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

TOMMY LN
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

BEG AT INTERSECTION OF E R/W OF RR & N LINE OF SW 1/4 OF SE |
 1/4, RUN S ALONG SAID R/W 228.72 FT, S 89DEG 58MIN 20SEC W |

 258.72 FT, N 0DEG 34MIN 30SEC W 228.72 FT, N 89DEG 58MIN |
 20SEC E TO POB--LESS CO RD R/W-- |

 ORB 5407 PG 606 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value
Land
Value

1 VACANT COMMERCIAL
(1000) 0 0  1.27 AC $0.00 $44,450.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Miscellaneous Improvements

There is no improvement information to display.

Sales History
NOTE: This section is not intended to be a complete chain of title. Additional official book/page numbers may be listed in the property description above and/or recorded and
indexed with the Clerk of Court. Follow this link to search all documents by owner's name..

Book/Page Sale Date Instrument Qualified/Unqualified Vacant/Improved Sale Price
5407 / 606 1/10/2020 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $280,600.00
2753 / 2367 1/28/2005 Warranty Deed Qualified Vacant $70,000.00
2731 / 945 12/27/2004 Warranty Deed Qualified Vacant $20,000.00
2576 / 1937 4/26/2004 Personal Rep Deed Unqualified Vacant $0.00
787 / 2487 9/1/1983 Executors Deed Unqualified Vacant $1.00
797 / 1194 7/1/1983 Personal Rep Deed Unqualified Vacant $1.00

Click here to search for mortgages, liens, and other legal documents. 

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=2669306
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=TOMMY%20LN,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5407/606
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/2753/2367
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/2731/945
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/2576/1937
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/787/2487
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/797/1194
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=3038550 1/4

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 3038550

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON VE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

33-18-24-
0004-000-
04702

Millage Group and City:
00F2
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

36221 FAIR OAKS DR
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FROM SW COR OF SE 1/4 RUN S 89-53-0 E 600 FT, N 15-0-0 W |
 771.86 FT, N 0-01-0 E 179.60 FT, N 65-23-48 E 220 FT FOR |

 POB, RUN N 0-01-0 E 315 FT TO N LINE OF S 1/2 OF SE 1/4, N |
 89-58-20 E 220.39 FT, S 0-34-30 E 660 FT, S 89-58-20 W TO A |

 POINT THAT IS S 0-01-0 W OF POB, N 0-01-0 E TO POB--LESS |
 SPRING LAKE RD R/W-- |

 ORB 5407 PG 574 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value Land Value

1 STORE/RESIDENCE COMBO
(1200) 0 0  3.08 AC $0.00 $107,800.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Residential Building(s)
Building 001

Residential Building Value: $0.00
Summary

Year Built: 1982 Total Living Area:
672 Central A/C: Yes Attached Garage:

No

Bedrooms: 2 Full Bathrooms: 0 Half Bathrooms: 0 Fireplaces: 0

 
Incorrect Bedroom, Bath, or other information? 

Section(s)
Section Section Type Ext. Wall No. Floor Finished Basement Basement Map

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=3038550
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=36221%20FAIR%20OAKS%20DR,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=3801592 1/3

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 3801592

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

33-18-24-
0004-000-
09400

Millage Group and City:
00F2
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

TOMMY LN
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FROM SW COR OF SE 1/4 RUN S 89-53-0 E 834.17 FT FOR POB, RUN|
 N 0-34-30 W 1103.68 FT, N 89-58-20 E 258.72 FT TO A POINT ON|

 E'LY LINE OF SAID ABANDONED RR R/W, S ALONG SAID E'LY LINE |
 TO S LINE OF SE 1/4, N 89-53-0 W TO POB |

 ORB 5407 PG 606 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value Land Value

1 VACANT COMMERCIAL
(1000) 0 0  6.56 AC $0.00 $229,600.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Miscellaneous Improvements

There is no improvement information to display.

Sales History
NOTE: This section is not intended to be a complete chain of title. Additional official book/page numbers may be listed in the property description above and/or recorded and
indexed with the Clerk of Court. Follow this link to search all documents by owner's name..

Book/Page Sale
Date Instrument Qualified/Unqualified Vacant/Improved Sale Price

5407 / 606 1/10/2020 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $280,600.00
2753 /
2327 1/31/2005 Warranty Deed Qualified Vacant $120,000.00

2359 / 211 6/10/2003 Quit Claim Deed Unqualified Improved $100,000.00

2071 / 54 2/5/2002 AGMT/Contract
Deed Qualified Improved $146,500.00

1980 / 7/19/2001 Warranty Deed Qualified Improved $111,000.00

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=3801592
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=TOMMY%20LN,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5407/606
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/2753/2327
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/2359/211
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/2071/54
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/1980/1635


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=3823815 1/4

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 3823815

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

33-18-24-
0004-000-
09500

Millage Group and City:
00F2
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

36033 FAIR OAKS DR
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FROM SW COR OF SE 1/4 RUN S 89-53-0 E ALONG S LINE 600 FT |
 FOR POB, RUN N 15-0-0 W 695.40 FT, N 89-58-20 E 230.19 FT, S|

 0-34-30 E 671.96 FT TO S LINE OF SE 1/4, N 89-53-0 W 56.95 |
 FT TO POB |

 ORB 5404 PG 2133 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data
Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No. Units Type Class Value Land Value
1 SINGLE FAMILY (0100) 0 0  2.22 AC $0.00 $37,962.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Residential Building(s)
Building 001

Residential Single Family Building Value: $143,597.00
Summary

Year Built: 1881 Total Living Area:
3775 Central A/C: No Attached Garage:

No

Bedrooms: 4 Full Bathrooms: 2 Half Bathrooms: 0 Fireplaces: 1

 
Incorrect Bedroom, Bath, or other information? 

Section(s)
Section
No. Section Type Ext. Wall

Type
No.
Stories

Floor
Area

Finished
Attic Basement Basement

Finished
Map
Color

1 FINISHED LIVING
AREA (FLA) Wood (001) 2 1700 N 0% 0%  

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=3823815
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=36033%20FAIR%20OAKS%20DR,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=3823816 1/3

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 3823816

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

33-18-24-
0004-000-
09600

Millage Group and City:
00F2
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

FAIR OAKS DR
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FROM SW COR OF SE 1/4 RUN S 89-53-0 E ALONG S LINE 656.95 FT|
 FOR POB, RUN N 0-34-30 W 671.96 FT, N 89-58-20 E 177.21 FT, |

 S 0-34-30 E 672.40 FT TO S LINE OF SE 1/4, N 89-53-0 W |
 177.22 FT TO POB |

 ORB 5404 PG 2133 |
 

NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value
Land
Value

1 VACANT RESIDENTIAL
(0000) 0 0  2.73 AC $0.00 $42,322.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Miscellaneous Improvements

There is no improvement information to display.

Sales History
NOTE: This section is not intended to be a complete chain of title. Additional official book/page numbers may be listed in the property description above and/or recorded and
indexed with the Clerk of Court. Follow this link to search all documents by owner's name..

Book/Page Sale Date Instrument Qualified/Unqualified Vacant/Improved Sale Price
5404 /
2133 1/10/2020 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $220,000.00

4583 /
1481 12/16/2014 Warranty Deed Unqualified Vacant $100.00

3375 / 283 2/14/2007 Warranty Deed Unqualified Vacant $0.00
2773 / 20 2/17/2005 Warranty Deed Unqualified Vacant $35,000.00

2470 / 945 12/2/2003 AGMT/Contract
Deed Qualified Vacant $40,000.00

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=3823816
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=FAIR%20OAKS%20DR,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5404/2133
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/4583/1481
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/3375/283
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/2773/20
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/2470/945


11/19/2020 Property Details : Lake County Property Appraiser

https://lakecopropappr.com/property-details.aspx?AltKey=3839947 1/3

Property Record Card

General Information

Name: THE RESERVE AT SPRING
LAKE COVE LLC Alternate Key: 3839947

Mailing
Address:

200 E CANTON AVE STE 102
 WINTER PARK, FL 32789

 Update Mailing Address
Parcel Number: 

04-19-24-
2175-00A-
00900

Millage Group and City:
000F
(FRUITLAND
PARK)

2020 Total Certified Millage
Rate: 17.6785

Trash/Recycling/Water/Info: My Public
Services Map 

Property
Location:

COOKE DR
 FRUITLAND PARK FL 34731 

 Update Property Location 
Property Name:

--
 Submit Property

Name 

School Information:

School Locator
& Bus Stop
Map 

 School
Boundary Maps

Property
Description:

FRUITLAND PARK, ZEPHYR LAKE LOTS 9, 10, 11, S 1/2 OF LOT 12,|
 S 12 FT OF LOT 17, LOTS 18, 19, 20 BLK A PB 11 PG 78, W 1/2 |

 OF 80 FT WIDE ACL RR R/W LYING E OF ABOVE PARCEL |
 ORB 5408 PG 2069 |

 
NOTE: This property description is a condensed/abbreviated version of the original description as recorded on deeds or other legal instruments in the public
records of the Lake County Clerk of Court. It may not include the Public Land Survey System’s Section, Township, Range information or the county in which
the property is located. It is intended to represent the land boundary only and does not include easements or other interests of record. This description should
not be used for purposes of conveying property title. The Property Appraiser assumes no responsibility for the consequences of inappropriate uses or
interpretations of the property description.

Land Data

Line Land Use Frontage Depth Notes No.
Units Type Class

Value
Land
Value

1 VACANT RESIDENTIAL
(0000) 0 0  2.21 AC $0.00 $38,123.00

Click here for Zoning Info  FEMA Flood Map
 
Miscellaneous Improvements

There is no improvement information to display.

Sales History
NOTE: This section is not intended to be a complete chain of title. Additional official book/page numbers may be listed in the property description above and/or recorded and
indexed with the Clerk of Court. Follow this link to search all documents by owner's name..

Book/Page Sale Date Instrument Qualified/Unqualified Vacant/Improved Sale Price
5408 / 2069 1/17/2020 Warranty Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $470,000.00
5409 / 724 1/13/2020 Quit Claim Deed Multi-Parcel Vacant $100.00
3550 / 836 11/8/2007 Quiet Title Multi-Parcel Vacant $0.00
3146 / 1317 4/24/2006 Warranty Deed Qualified Vacant $130,000.00

Click here to search for mortgages, liens, and other legal documents. 

Values and Estimated Ad Valorem Taxes 
Values shown below are 2021 WORKING VALUES that are subject to change until certified.

 The Market Value listed below is not intended to represent the anticipated selling price of the property and should not be relied upon by any individual or entity as

https://lakecopropappr.com/address-change.aspx?AltKey=3839947
https://gis.lakecountyfl.gov/MyPublicServices/?a=COOKE%20DR,%20FRUITLAND%20PARK,34731
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://busstop.lake.k12.fl.us/InfoLocator/infolocator/locator.aspx?OrgGuid=ORG-LCS
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lakeschools.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8d04c211263243029b4506d404d18bd9
https://lcgis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=562c9b6fc99e441a856b388c81a95a87
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5408/2069
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/5409/724
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/3550/836
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/Details/GetDocumentByBookPage/O/3146/1317
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/
https://officialrecords.lakecountyclerk.org/


May 2, 2022 Project Location Spring Lake Cove 1" = 300'May 2, 2022 FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA P

Reserve at Spring Lake Cove PUD

Project Location

Cooke Drive

Spring Lake Road

PUD Details:
1) Site has lakefront ownership along a portion of Zephyr Lake.
2) Spring Lake Road and Cooke Drive abut the project on the north and 
south side, respectively.
3) Proposed land use is single family residential
4) Gross densities are 2.7 DU/AC
5) Project proposes 95 units
6) No commercial is proposed.
7) Adjacent zoning is Industrial, PUD, R-1, R-2 and unincorporated 
properties.
8) Maximum building height shall be 35 feet.
9) No phasing is proposed.
10) Applicant proposes City water service, fire protection, sewage 
disposal and will provide privately maintained stormwater management
.11) Percentage of Open Space shall be greater than 25%.
12) Typical ROW width shall be 50' or larger for two way streets.

Zephyr Lake Existing Zoning Snapshot:



May 2, 2022 Project Location Spring Lake Cove 1" = 300'May 2, 2022 FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA 01P

Reserve at Spring Lake Cove Conceptual Plan

N

 Legend

Upland Open Space - 6.25 Acres 

Stormwater - 6.1 Acres 

ACREAGE & DENSITY
Gross Acreage: ± 35.9 Acres
Net Acreage: ± 35.7 Acres
Proposed Density: 2.66 Du/Ac
Proposed Units: 95

150'0' 300' 600' 900'

Cooke Drive

65' x 120' Single Family Homes - 95

Zephyr Lake

Spring Lake Road

Spring Lake Cove 
Apartments 

Wetland Buffer - 0.8 Acres 

Wetlands - 0.2 Acres 

1.1 
acres

1.2 
acres

2.3 
acres

0.9 
acres

0.6 
acres

Combined Open Space - 12.35 Acres 
(35% - Includes Buffers & Stormwater)

Typical 65' Lot

Front Yard

Rear Yard

Buildable 
Area

5'
 S

id
e 

S
et

ba
ck 5' S

ide S
etback

20
'-

0"
25

'-
0"

5'

Typical 50' ROW





















431 E. Horatio Avenue  Suite 260  Maitland, FL 32751  407‐629‐8330  FAX 407‐629‐8336 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove 
 

Rezoning Justification Statement 
 
 

The applicant has requested the rezoning due to the numerous existing zonings on the 
parcels included with this project.  In the pre-application meeting with staff it was stated 
a rezone to PUD would be required to develop this property as for rent apartments.  The 
proposed project will be a villa type apartment, for rent.  The villa product was selected 
because we believe that it fills a need for residents that will want single story rental 
living.  Additionally, the low density product allowed us to plan the development in a way 
to maximize preservation of significant oak trees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

David A. Stokes, P.E. 
Vice President 

11/19/2020 



  1 

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK 
STAFF REPORT BY LPG URBAN & REGIONAL PLANNERS, INC. 

 
REZONING AND SITE PLAN 

 
Owner:   Paul Missigman, Manager, Reserve at Spring Lake Cove, LLC, 

Reserve at Spring Lake Cove II, LLC 
 
General Location: West of US 27/441, north of Cooke Drive and south of Spring 

Lake Road 
 
Number of Acres:   35.99 ± acres  
 
Existing Zoning: R-1, R-3 and PUD 
 
Existing Land Use:   Multiple-Family High Density (MFHD) (15 units/acre) 
 
Proposed Zoning:   Residential PUD 
 
Date:     April 30, 2021 
 
Description of Project 
The subject site consists of 35.99 +/- acres and a portion of the site borders Zephyr Lake. The subject 
site’s existing future land use is Multi-Family High Density (maximum of 15 units/acre). The applicant is 
seeking a rezoning to Residential PUD for a 128 unit apartment complex. The proposed gross density is 
3.2 units/acre.  The apartment layout consists of 30 buildings some of which are 2-story with units 
ranging from 2 units to 7 units per building.  It should be noted that the subject site is an extension of 
the existing Spring Lake Cove Apartments located to the east. The recreation amenities provided include 
a dog park, trails, 20’ x 20’ pavilion with 4 picnic tables and 2 grills, and lake overlook sitting area with 2 
grills.  It is the applicant’s intent to also utilize the recreational amenities at Spring Lake Cove apartments 
which includes playground equipment.  In addition, the applicant is seeking Preliminary Plan approval 
for the rezoning process.  The applicant is also requesting a variable buffer width adjacent to the cul de 
sac located within the southwestern property boundary from 25’ to 10’ and to allow a 10’ buffer 
adjacent to a small portion of the stormwater pond. 

 
  

 Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Land Use 

North PFD and CP (County fire station) Institutional  

South R2 SF Medium Density 

East IND and C2 Industrial & Commercial 

West R3 and Ag Lake County Urban Medium (7 du/acre) 

 
 

 
 
 



  2 

Assessment 
 
The applicant has addressed all outstanding planning issues. 
 
 
  

Recommendation 
 
Please provide Sheet C006 as a separate exhibit for the Preliminary plan exhibit for the proposed 
Developer’s Agreement.   
 
Planning recommends approval subject to engineering approval. 



1 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

Record and Return to: 
City of Fruitland Park 
Attn: City Clerk 
506 W. Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, Florida 34731 
 
 
 
 

MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into and made as of the _____th day of ____________, 20221, 
between the CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation, (hereinafter 
referred to as the “City”), and The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove, LLC., a Florida limited liability company 
and The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove II,  LLC, a Florida limited liability company, (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “Owner”).  
 

RECITALS 
 

1. The Owner desires to rezone approximately 35.99 + acres of property within the City of 
Fruitland Park, described and depicted as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached to and incorporated in this 
Agreement (hereafter referred to as the “Property”).  

 
2. The Property is currently located within the City of Fruitland Park and is currently zoned 

“Planned Unit Development” (PUD), Single Family Low Density Residential (R-1), Industrial and Multi-
Family High Density (R-3) with a future land use designation on the City of Fruitland Park Future Land 
Use Map of “Single-Family Low Density” and “Multi-Family High Density.”  

 
3.  Owner has filed applications for rezoning for the Property as a Rresidential Pplanned 

Uunit Ddevelopment.      
 

4. Owner represents that it is the sole legal owner of the Property and that it has the full 
power and authority to make, deliver, enter into, and perform pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement and has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery, and performance 
of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.    

 
5. The City of Fruitland Park has determined that the rezoning of the Property and the 

proposal for its development presents, among other things, an opportunity for the City to secure quality 
planning and growth, protection of the environment, and a strengthened and revitalized tax base.  

 
6. Owner will fund certain public improvements and infrastructure to facilitate the 

development of the Property.    
 
7. The Property is within the City’s Chapter 180, Florida Statutes, utility district, and Owner 

has requested and City desires to provide water and sewer as well as other municipal services to the 
Property.    

 
ACCORDINGLY, in consideration of the mutual benefits and the public interest and other good and 
valuable considerations, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto 
agree as follows:  
 



2 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct, are hereby incorporated herein by reference, 
and form a material part of this Agreement.  All exhibits to this Agreement are hereby deemed a part 
thereof.    
 
Section 2. Conditions Precedent.     Owner has filed an application for rezoning for the Property.  It is 
understood and agreed to by the City and the Owner that this Agreement shall not be binding or 
enforceable as to any party unless and until:  a) the City duly adopts the Agreement and adopts an 
ordinance rezoning the Property.    The parties hereto understand and acknowledge that the City is in no 
way bound to rezone the Property.  The City shall have the full and complete right to approve or deny the 
application for rezoning.    
 
Section 3. Land Use/Development.  Development of the Property shall be substantially 
consistent with the “PUD Preliminary Plan” prepared by Madden, Moorehead & Stokes, LLC., dated _____ 
, 20220, and attached as Exhibit “B” (which may be referred to as the “Plan” or the “PUD Master Plan” or 
“Development Plan”).  The project shall be developed in accordance with the Permitted Uses set forth 
belowas an apartment complex.  All development shall be consistent with City’s “PUD” (Planned Unit 
Development) zoning district and, subject to City approval.  As set forth further below, all land use issues 
addressed herein must be adopted by City through its regular procedures before being effective.    
 
Section 4.  Permitted Uses.   Permitted Uses shall include:  

a. Multi-family residential dwelling units meeting the R-3 standards. 
b. Single-family residential dwelling units. 
c. Attached single-family residential dwelling units (Townhomes). 
a.d. Garage Apartments (for rent) as an Accessory Use to Single-family residential.  
b.e. Multi-family unitsResidential Density shall not exceed 15 units per acre. 128 units.  
c.f. Passive and Active Recreation Facilities.  
d.g. Accessory uses per City of Fruitland Park Land Development Regulations. 
e.h. Accessory structures shall not be constructed within required buffer areas. 

  
Section 5.  Development Standards.  Development Standards shall be as follows:   

a. Multi-family development shall meet the R-15 MF HDR3 zoning development 
standards. 

b. Single-family residential (with or without Garage Apartments) may be constructed in 
accordance with (need a standard) zoning development standards as individually 
platted lots or on a single lot under unified ownership in accordance with an approved 
Development Plan.  
 
a. Minimum lot width 50’ 
b. Minimum lot area 5,500 SF 
c. Principal Building Setbacks 

• Front 20’ 
• Rear 20’ 
• Side 5’ 
• Street Side 15’ 

d. Accessory Structure and Pool Deck Setbacks 
• Front Behind front of Principal Structure  
• Rear 5’ 
• Side 5’ 

e. Minimum Living Area 1,200 sq.ft. 



3 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

a. Maximum Building Coverage 50%, on a per-lot basis 
b. Minimum Open Space 25%, which may include all buffers, manmade stormwater 

ponds, recreation and other pervious area not located within platted road right 
of way 

c. Maximum Building Height 35’, measured to the mean height of hip or gabled 
roofs 

 
 
a.  

b.c. Minimum distance between multi-family buildings shall be twenty feet (20’) 
measured from building wall to building wall. 

c.d. Interior buildings shall have a setback of thirty feet (30’) from the edge of pavement 
(travel lane). 

d.e. Minimum Setback requirements, as measured from the PUD perimeter property lines 
shall be: 

 
North:  Local Roadways – Twenty-five feet (25’) 
South:    Twenty-five feet (25’) 
East:   Twenty-five feet (25’)    
West:  Twenty-five feet (25’) 
  

e.f. Maximum building height shall be limited to fifty-five feet (55’). thirty five feet (35’). 
 
f.g. Open space shall not be less than twenty-five (25) percent of the total property area. 

 
g.h. Parking: The Owner will be required to meet the parking requirements of the 

Fruitland Park Land Development Regulations.  
 

h.i. Landscape buffers of twenty-five feet (25’) shall be provided along all PUD perimeter 
property boundaries with the exception of that portion of the property located 
adjacent to Spring Lake Cove Apartments located along the westerneastern property 
boundary.  

 
Section 7.  Multi-Family Design Standards. Design Standards shall be as follows:   
 

a. Architectural features - All buildings shall utilize at least three of the following 
design features to provide visual  relief along all elevations of the multi- family 
units. Front doors shall incorporate the following decorative elements: raised 
decorative panels, decorative glass panels or panes, decorative handles, etc. 
Designs may vary throughout the development. 
1) Dormers  
2) Gables  
3) Recessed or raised entries  
4) Covered porch entries  
5) Cupolas  
6) Pillars or decorative posts  
7) Bay window (minimum 12 inch projections)  
8) Eaves (minimum 6-inch projections)  



4 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

9) Front windows with arched glass tops and minimum 4-inch trim 
   10) Metal roofs 
   11) Decorative Corbels and Brackets 
 

b. Building Materials - Exterior building materials contribute significantly to the 
visual impact of a building on the community. These materials shall be well 
designed and integrated into a comprehensive design style for the project. The 
total exterior wall area of each building elevation shall be composed of one of the 
following: 
1) At least thirty-five percent (35%) full-width brick or stone (not including 

window and door areas and related trim areas), with the balance being 
1) 1)The exterior wall area may be any type of lap siding and/or stucco, 

including.   
  

2) At least thirty percent (30%) full-width brick or stone, with the balance being stucco and/or a 
“cementitious” lap siding. (A “cementitious” lap siding product is defined as a manufactured strip siding 
composed of cement-based materials rather than wood fiber-based or plastic-based materials. For 
example, Masonite or vinyl lap siding would not be allowed under this option.) The exterior may include 
full width or cast brick or stone. 

 
2)  All textured stucco, provided there are unique design features such as 

recessed garages, tile or metal roofs, arched windows etc. in the elevations 
of the buildings or the buildings are all brick stucco. Unique design features 
shall be reviewed by the Community Development Director for compliance. 

3) Details, such as, brackets, corbels, decorative panels, may be made from 
alternative materials, such foam with a hard shell finish.  

 
c. Buildings shall have landscape areas planted with trees, shrubs or groundcovers, 

other than sod, around the building as follows: 
1) Building Perimeter landscaping. A minimum three (3) foot wide landscape 

area, with an average of five (5) feet or more, around a minimum of forty (40) 
percent of the total building perimeter and within twenty-five (25) feet of the 
building walls. 

c.2) Minimum planting requirement. One (1) canopy tree or three (3) understory 
trees, and twenty-eight (28) shrubs shall be required for every three hundred 
and fifty (350) feet of planting area in c. 1) above. Trees installed for any other 
requirement of this subsection c. may be credited towards this requirement 
if in the required location.  

 
Section 8.  Development Phasing.  The proposed project may be constructed in phases in 
accordance with the Planned Unit Development Master Plan (attached as part of these conditions). 
Changes to the Planned Unit Development Master Plan, other than those conditions described in this 
agreement, shall be revised in accordance with the Planned Unit Development review process. If such 
changes are consistent with this Master Development Agreement, the amendment to the Planned Unit 
Development Master Plan will be processed as a Minor Development under LDC section 160.040. 
 
 
 



5 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

Section 9.  Site Access and Transportation Improvements.  Vehicular access to the project site shall 
be provided by a minimum of two access points, one primary access on Spring Lake Road and one access 
on Cooke Road. The primary access shall be through a divided landscaped boulevard type road. Other 
potential vehicular and pedestrian accesses will be reviewed during the development review process.  The 
Owner may include cross-access to the existing entry to the Spring Lake Cove Apartment Community 
adjacent to the west. 
 

a. The Owner shall provide all necessary improvements/signalization within and 
adjacent to the development as required by Lake County and City of Fruitland Park.  

b. All roads within the development shall be designed and constructed by the developer 
to meet the City of Fruitland Park requirements. Drive aisles within parking areas shall 
not be required to be constructed to City street standards.  

c. Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of the local internal roads and shall provide 
cross connections to all recreation and residential areas. Internal road rights-of-ways 
shall be of sufficient width to contain the sidewalks. All sidewalks shall be constructed 
in accordance with City of Fruitland Park Codes.  

d. The City of Fruitland Park will not be responsible for the maintenance or repair of any 
of the roads or transportation improvements. The Owner shall establish an 
appropriate legal entity that will be responsible to pay the cost and perform the 
services to maintain the roads and transportation improvements.   

e. A traffic/transportation study shall be submitted prior to preliminary plan approval 
for review and determination of any necessary access improvements if required by 
Lake County. Said improvements will be the responsibility of the Owner.   

f. At such time that traffic signals are warranted at the proposed project entrance, the 
Owner shall pay their pro-rata share of the cost of the signal(s) as determined by City 
staff.   

 
 
Section 10. Lighting.  All exterior lighting shall be arranged to reflect light away from adjacent 
properties to the greatest extent possible while providing lighting adequate to ensure safety on road right 
of way and parking areas.     
  
Section 11.  Water, Wastewater, and Reuse Water. Subject to the terms herein, Owner and their 
successors and assigns agree to obtain water, reuse water, irrigation water, and wastewater service 
(hereafter, “Utilities”) exclusively through purchase from City.  Owner covenants and warrants to City that 
it will not engage in the business of providing such Utilities to the Property or within City’s F.S. Chapter 
180 utility district.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, private wells for irrigation purposes will be allowed 
within the Property so long as such wells are approved and permitted by the St. Johns River Water 
Management District (the “District”) and comply with the rules and regulations of the District.  Owner 
shall construct, at Owner’s expense, all on-site utility facilities (e.g. lift stations and lines) as well as pay 
for the extension of facilities from City’s current point of connection.  Owner shall also construct, at 
Owner’s expense, “dry” utility lines for reclaimed water purposes.  All such improvements must be 
constructed to City requirements and transferred to City as a contribution in aid of construction.    
  
Section 12.  Impact Fees.  Owner shall be required to pay impact fees as established by City from 
time to time, including water and wastewater impact fees. The amount to be paid shall be the adopted 
impact fee rate at the time the building permit is issued.  The Owner shall be given Water Impact Fee 
Credits for the design, permitting and construction costs of the water line shown on Exhibit C.  



6 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

  
Owner agrees to pay all other impact fees and any impact fees adopted after the execution of this 
Agreement as building permits are issued.  If impact fees increase from the time they are paid until the 
building permit is issued, Owner shall pay the incremental increased amount at the time building permits 
are issued.  Prepayment of utility impact fees and acceptance by City of such fees shall reserve capacity.  
No capacity is reserved until or unless such fees have been paid pursuant to an agreement with City.  
Owner agrees and understands that no capacity has been reserved and that Owner assumes the risk that 
capacity will be available.  Accordingly, if capacity is available at the time of site plan and City is willing to 
allocate such capacity to Owner, Owner shall enter into a reservation agreement and any other utility 
agreements or easements related to the Property as requested by City from time to time.      
  
Section 13. Easements.[A1]  Owner shall provide the City such easements or right of way in form 
acceptable to the City Attorney, as the City deems necessary for the installation and maintenance of roads, 
sidewalks, bikeways, street lighting or utility services, including but not limited to sewer, water, drainage 
and reclaimed water services.  
  
Section 14.  Landscaping/Buffers.  Developer has reviewed City’s Land Development Regulations 
relating to landscaping and agrees to comply with such regulations.  Owner shall install and maintain a 
twenty-five foot (25’) landscape buffer along  all perimeter property boundaries, with the exception of 
the property adjacent to Spring Lake Cove Apartments, as shown on the Preliminary Plan consisting of 
four (4) canopy trees, two (2) understory trees, and fifteen (15) shrubs per one hundred feet (100’); 
however, no buffer shall be required along the perimeter boundary adjacent to the wetlands.  A twenty-
five foot (25’) native buffer shall be provided onsite adjacent to Zephyr Lake.  All landscaping and tree 
protection shall comply with Chapter 164 of the City of Fruitland Park Land Development Regulations.    
  
Owner shall, at its sole expense, install underground irrigation systems on all common areas of the 
Property, as well as exercise any other measures reasonably necessary to ensure the long-term 
maintenance of the landscaping.    
  
Owner shall design and construct, at its sole expense, the interior landscaped areas and islands within the 
parking areas of the Property in accordance with all applicable City of Fruitland Park Land Development 
Regulations.  Owner shall maintain such areas.  
  
Owner acknowledges City’s goal of achieving a greater level of tree preservation within the City.  In aid of 
such goal, Owner agrees to comply with all applicable City of Fruitland Park Land Development Regulations 
pertaining to tree removal and replacement.        
  
Section 15.   Stormwater Management.  Owner agrees to provide at Owner’s expense a 
comprehensive stormwater management system consistent with all regulatory requirements of the City 
and the St. John’s River Water Management District.  Impacts to flood plains are allowed in accordance 
with the Water Management District procedures for compensating storage and will be based on the 100-
year floodplain established by Lake County.    
  
Section 16.  Other Municipal Facilities/Services.  The City hereby agrees to provide, either directly 
or through its franchisees or third party providers, police and fire protection, emergency medical services, 
and solid waste collection, disposal, and recycling services to the Property under the same terms and 
conditions and in the same manner as are afforded to all other commercial property owners within the 
City.    



7 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

  
Section 17.  Environmental Considerations.  The Owner agrees to comply with all federal, state, 
county, and city laws, rules and regulations regarding any environmental issues affecting the Property.  
  
Section 18.  Signage.  Owner shall submit a master sign plan as a component of the final site plan (i.e., 
construction plan) application for the Property.  Such plan shall be in compliance with all applicable 
regulations contained within the City of Fruitland Park Land Development Regulations, unless City grants 
a waiver or variance pursuant to the City’s Land Development Regulations.  Alternatively, the Owner, in 
the Owner’s discretion, may apply to amend the PUD to incorporate a Master Signage Plan at the time 
that the Owner desires to install signage at the development.  
 
Section 19.  Title Opinion[A2]. Owner shall provide to City, in advance of the City’s execution of this 
Agreement, a title opinion of an attorney licensed in the State of Florida, or a certification by an abstractor 
or title company authorized to do business in the State of Florida, showing marketable title to the Property 
to be in the name of the Owner and showing all liens, mortgages, and other encumbrances not satisfied 
or released of record.   
  
Section 20.  Compliance with City Laws and Regulations. Except as expressly modified herein, all 
development of the Property shall be subject to compliance with the City Land Development Regulations 
and City Code provisions, as amended, as well as regulations of county, state, local, and federal agencies.  
All improvements and infrastructure shall be constructed to City standards.    
  
Section 21.  Due Diligence.   
The City and Owner further agree that they shall commence all reasonable actions necessary to fulfill their 
obligations hereunder and shall diligently pursue the same throughout the existence of this Agreement.  
The City shall further provide all other municipal services to the Property as are needed by Owner from 
time to time in accordance with the City’s applicable policies for the provision of said services.    
 
Section 22.  Enforcement/Effectiveness. A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle 
the other party to all remedies available at law. This is a non-statutory development agreement which is 
not subject to or enacted pursuant to the provisions of Sections 163.3220 – 163.3243, Florida Statutes.    
  
Section 23.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Florida and venue for any action hereunder shall be in the Circuit Court of Lake County, Florida.   
 
Section 24.  Binding Effect; Assignability.  This Agreement, once effective, shall be binding upon and 
enforceable by and against the parties hereto and their successors in interest and/or assigns.  This 
Agreement shall be assignable by the Owner to successive owners.  Owner shall, however, provide written 
notice to the City of any and all such assignees.  The rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement 
shall run with the land and be binding on all successors and/or assignees.  Owner consents to the 
placement of a claim of lien on the Property upon default in payment of any obligation herein without 
precluding any other remedies of City.  The parties hereby covenant that they will enforce this Agreement 
and that it is a legal, valid, and binding agreement.    
 
Section 25.   Waiver; Remedies.  No failure or delay on the part of either party in exercising any right, 
power, or privilege hereunder will operate as a waiver thereof, nor will any waiver on the part of either 
party or any right, power, or privilege hereunder operate as a waiver of any other right, power, privilege 



8 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

hereunder, not will any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege hereunder preclude any 
other further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege hereunder.  
 
Section 26.  Exhibits.  All exhibits attached hereto are hereby incorporated in and made a part of this 
Agreement as if set forth in full herein.  
 
Section 27.    Notice.  Any notice to be given shall be in writing and shall be sent by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, to the party being noticed at the following addresses or such other address as the 
parties shall provide from time to time: 
 
 
 

As to City: 
 

City Manager 
City of Fruitland Park 
506 W. Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, Florida 34731 
352-360-6727 Telephone 

Copy to: 
 

Chris Cheshire, City Mayor 
City of Fruitland Park 
506 W. Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, Florida 34731 
352-360-6727 Telephone 
 
Anita Geraci-Carver 
Law Office of Anita Geraci-Carver, P.A. 
1560 Bloxam Avenue 
Clermont, Florida 34711 
352-243-2801 Telephone 
352-243-2768 Facsimile 
 
 

As to Owner: 
 

Paul M. Missigman, Manager 
The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove, LLC 
and 
The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove II,  LLC 
200 East Canton Ave., Suite 102 
Winter Park, FL  32789 
 
 

Copy to: 
 

Tricia Doody, Manager 
The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove, LLC 
and 
The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove II,  LLC 
200 East Canton Ave., Suite 102 
Winter Park, FL  32789 

 
Section 28.    Entire Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth all of the promises, covenants, agreements, 
conditions, and understandings between the parties hereto, and supersedes all prior and 



9 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

contemporaneous agreements, understandings, inducements or conditions, express or implied, oral or 
written, except as herein contained.  However, the failure of this Agreement to address a particular 
permit, condition, term, or restriction shall not relieve Owner from complying with the law governing said 
permitting requirements, conditions, terms or restrictions.  
 
Section 29.  Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date this 
Agreement is executed by both the City and Owner, or the effective date of the annexation of the 
Property, whichever occurs later, and shall terminate twenty (20) years thereafter; provided, however, 
that the term of this Agreement may be extended by mutual consent of the City and the Owner, subject 
to a public hearing.    
 
Section 30.    Amendment.  Amendments to the provisions of this Agreement shall be made by the 
parties only in writing by formal amendment.  
 
Section 31.  Severability.  If any part of this Developer’s Agreement is found invalid or unenforceable 
in any court, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not effect the other parts of this Developer’s 
Agreement, if the rights and obligations of the parties contained herein are not materially prejudiced and 
if the intentions of the parties can be effected.  To that end, this Developer’s Agreement is declared 
severable.  
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and the City have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 
above written.  
  
SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED   THE RESERVE AT SPRING LAKE COVE, LLC and 
IN THE PRESENCE OF:     THE RESERVE AT SPRING LAKE COVE II, LLC 
  
  
_________________________________   By:_______________________________  
Witness Signature                   Paul M. Missigman, Manager    
 
 
_________________________________    
Print Name               
 
 
_________________________________  By:_________________________________  
Witness Signature          Tricia Doody, Manager  
 
 
_________________________________     
Print Name               
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  
COUNTY OF _____________   
  
  
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by [  ] physical presence or [  ] online notarization 
this ____ day of ___________________ by Paul M. Missigman, Manager and Tricia Doody, Manager, of  



10 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove, LLC and The Reserve at Spring Lake Cove II, LLC on behalf of the 
companies, who are personally known to me or who have produced 
__________________________________ as identification.  
 
   

       ______________________________  
       Notary Public  
       Notary Public - State of Florida  
       Commission No ______________  

                                 My Commission Expires __________  
  



11 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

 
  
 
                                                                                                         ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK    

   
Approved as to form and             By:_______________________________  
Legality for use and reliance          Chris Cheshire, Mayor  
by the City of Fruitland Park  
       

            Date:____________________________  
  
______________________________     ATTEST:___________________________  
Anita Geraci-Carver             Esther B. Coulson  
City Attorney              City Clerk  
  
 STATE OF FLORIDA        
COUNTY OF LAKE  
  
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by [X] physical present or [ ] online notarization 
this _____ day of ___________________ by Chris Cheshire, Mayor of the City of Fruitland Park, a Florida 
municipal corporation on behalf of the corporation and Esther B. Coulson, City Clerk of the City of Fruitland 
Park, Florida, on behalf of the corporation, who are [X] personally known to be me or produced 
_______________________________ as identification.  
 
 

       ______________________________  
       Notary Public  
       Notary Public - State of Florida  
       Commission No ______________  

       My Commission Expires ____________  
  



12 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
PARCEL 1: 
FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 
24 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN SOUTH 89°57' EAST 275 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; RUN 
THENCE SOUTH 89°57' EAST 191.2 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°39'40" EAST 295.5 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
89°20'20" WEST 270.05 FEET; THENCE NORTH 0°6'50" EAST 98.80 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°57' WEST 75 
FEET; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 250.10 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
ALSO: AN EASEMENT FOR ROAD PURPOSES OVER THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND: BEGIN AT THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 24 EAST, 
LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN THENCE SOUTH 89°57'00" EAST 466.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°39'40" 
EAST 265.50 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE EAST 150 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°39'40" 
EAST 505 FEET; THENCE WEST 30 FEET; THENCE NORTH 475 FEET; THENCE WEST 120 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 30 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
PARCEL 2: 
FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 
24 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN SOUTH 89°57' EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SAID 
NORTHEAST 1/4 A DISTANCE OF 466.2 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; FROM SAID POINT OF 
BEGINNING, RUN THENCE SOUTH 89°57' EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 
DISTANCE OF 563.1 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE SEABOARD 
COAST LINE RAILROAD; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF THE SAID RIGHT OF 
WAY 763.5 FEET; THENCE RUN WEST 443 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 475 FEET; THENCE RUN WEST 
120.1 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO A POINT THAT IS SOUTH 0°39'40" EAST OF THE POINT OF BEGINNING: 
THENCE RUN NORTH 0°39'40" WEST 288.5 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
INCLUDING A 40 FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND BEING THE ABANDONED FORMER ATLANTIC COASTLINE 
RAILROAD, LYING EAST THEREOF. 
PARCEL 3: 
LOT 5, BLOCK "A", ZEPHYR LAKE, ACCORDING TO PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 78 
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
PARCEL 4: 
LOT 4, BLOCK "A", ZEPHYR LAKE, ACCORDING TO PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 78 
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
PARCEL 5: 
LOT(S) 3, 8, 13 AND 14, BLOCK "A", ZEPHYR LAKE, ACCORDING TO PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT 
BOOK 11, PAGE 78 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
AND 
 
THAT PART OF LOT 12, NORTH OF LINE RUNNING FROM SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 8 EXTENDING 42.5 
FEET NORTH TO SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 13 AND RUNNING EAST 150 FEET ALONG SOUTHERN 
BOUNDARY OF LOT 13 TO BREEZE LANE AND RUNNING SOUTH ON BREEZE LANE 42.5 FEET; THENCE 
WEST 150 FEET BACK TO SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 8, BLOCK "A", ZEPHYR LAKE, ACCORDING TO PLAT 
THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 78 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
PARCEL 6: 



13 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

LOT(S) 9, 10, 11 AND THE SOUTH 1/2 OF LOT 12 AND THE SOUTH 12 FEET OF LOT 17 AND LOTS 18, 19 
AND 20, BLOCK "A", ZEPHYR LAKE, ACCORDING TO PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 
78 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
INCLUDING A 40 FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND BEING THE ABANDONED FORMER ATLANTIC COASTLINE 
RAILROAD, LYING EAST THEREOF. 
PARCEL 7: 
LOT(S) 15, 16 AND THE NORTH 73 FEET OF LOT 17, BLOCK "A", ZEPHYR LAKE, ACCORDING TO PLAT 
THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 11, PAGE 78 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
INCLUDING A 40 FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND BEING THE ABANDONED FORMER ATLANTIC COASTLINE 
RAILROAD, LYING EAST THEREOF. 
 
 
 
 
  



14 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
THE PLAN 

 
 

  



15 | P a g e  -  T h e  R e s e r v e  a t  S p r i n g  L a k e  C o v e  M D A  
0909692\196248\11743145v2 

Exhibit “C” 
New City Water Line 

 

 


	Fruitland Park Resubmittal Let 4-22-22.pdf
	Insert from: "Traffic Memo_Intram-Timbertop_2022-4-4_signed-11911433-v1.pdf"
	Trip Generation
	Insert FIGURE 1

	Existing Roadway Capacity Analysis – Year 2019
	Planned and Programmed Improvements
	Growth Projections for Lake County
	Five-Year Analysis, Year 2026
	Long Term Analysis, Year 2030
	Conclusions and Recommendations
	Attachments.pdf
	ATTACHMENT A - Internal Capture.pdf
	Daily IC Tables_2021-10-7
	CURRENT Retail-Res-Ofc Daily
	PROPOSED-Retail-Res-Ofc Daily
	CONCEPT -Retail-Resid Daily-

	NCHRP Report 684 estimator update_adopted_2021-10-7
	Page 1-P
	Page 2-P

	NCHRP Report 684 estimator update_proposed_2021-10-7
	Page 1-P
	Page 2-P

	NCHRP Report 684 estimator update_CONCEPT_2021-10-7
	Page 1-P
	Page 2-P


	ATTACHMENT E - TGEN Concept.pdf
	Concept TGEN




	PD1.0-WithoutColors UPDATED 5.4.22.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	WithoutColors


	Water Main report.pdf
	2020-08-26 Spring Lake Cottages Flow Test.pdf
	Hydrant Flow Chart
	Data

	Flow Test Map
	Map Photo
	19079 AERIAL-AERIAL


	Supplemental Subsoil Investigation and Seepage Analyses.pdf
	ATTACHMENTS COMBINED.pdf
	PLATE 1 POND CROSS SECTION
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	FIG 1 LOC PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	FIG 2 SOIL PROFILES
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	FIG 3 SOIL PROFILES
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	FIG 4 SOIL PROFILES
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	COMPUTER OUTPUT A - POND 1
	COMPUTER OUTPUT B - POND 2
	COMPUTER OUTPUT C - POND 3


	Lift Station Report.pdf
	Spring Lake Cottages (1)F.M. Calcs.pdf
	Sheet1
	Sheet 2

	Spring Lake Cottages (2)F.M. Calcs.pdf
	Sheet1
	Sheet 2





